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1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

The Hobart City Council is undertaking a major systematic review of Hobart’s built cultural
heritage. This heritage review of Hobart's Central Area represents a continuation of this
heritage assessment process, as reviews have already been completed of the City Fringe,
Lenah Valley, Mount Stuart, South Hobart, Sandy Bay, and West Hobart.

In 1990, a strategic heritage assessment of the central area was conducted as part of the
Central Area Strategy Plan (CASP), a large Council project that addressed a wide range of
urban development issues. CASP resulted in a number of additional listings being
incorporated within a scheme amendment in 1996. In addition to these listings, CASP
highlighted other properties, recommended for future review.

It was in this context, that the Central Area Heritage Review was instigated, coupled with a
requirement under the Land Use Planning and Approvals Act 1993 to keep planning
schemes under regular review.

The CASP Heritage Topic Report has been closely examined, and key findings in this study
have contributed to preparations for the field work component of the Central Area Heritage
Review (Appendix A).

This review is consistent with the Council’s Strategic Plan 2001-2005, which recognises that
“Hobart’s identity is dependent upon its unique cultural heritage”, and that it is the Council's
responsibility “to ensure the City’s intrinsic cultural heritage values are conserved, protected
and celebrated.”

1.2 Study Area

The detailed study area is defined by Bathurst Street in the north; Davey and Macquarie
Streets in the south as well as the southern boundary of St Davids Park; Brooker Avenue
and Campbell Street in the east; and Harrington Street and Sandy Bay Road in the west
(Figure 1).

The Central Area boundaries have been determined by the Sullivans Cove Planning
Scheme boundary and the boundaries of Study Area A and B of the City Fringe Heritage
Review.

1.3 Key Outcome

The key outcome identified for this heritage review by the Hobart City Council is the creation
of an inventory of significant cultural heritage places to be considered for inclusion on the
City of Hobart Planning Scheme 1982.

1.4 Authorship

This review was conducted by Katheryn Bennett, Project Consultant, under the guidance of
Brendan Lennard, Cultural Heritage Officer, Hobart City Council. All major study tasks were
reviewed after initial and final completion.

1.5 Timing

The project was conducted over a period of four months. Work commenced in April and
was completed in September 2003 (with a months break in August). The literature review
component of the study was conducted within the first two weeks, and the majority of the
field work was conducted from late April throughout May and June. The inventory
compilation was undertaken from May through to September. The main report (this
document) was completed in September.
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1.6 Limitations

1.6.1 Level of Information

The level of information provided for individual heritage places, though sufficient to
establish significance for the purpose of inclusion onto the final inventory, must not be
regarded as definitive. This information is not a replacement for the systematic and detailed
research and documentation undertaken as part of the conservation planning or
development consent processes.

1.6.2 Street Addresses

A more specific limitation is the use of street addresses to identify places included within the
Inventory of Significant Places. In some cases places were found to have more than one
possible street address, this was a particular problem of properties located on street
corners. In other cases, ownership of a single structure was found to be newly divided by
stratum titles. In order to avoid confusion, and to provide some level of consistency, the
address and general property information provided by Land Information System Tasmania
(LIST) has been used in preference to property information provided by the Hobart City
Council’'s Geographical Information System (GIS), which is currently being reviewed so that
it is consistent with the land information details that are presented on LIST.

As well as the current street address, other land information has been supplied for each
place included within the inventory. This information includes title references and the
Property Identification Number (PID) obtained from LIST. It was thought necessary to
provide the PID of each property, as this number can be used to initiate a quick search on
the Council’s GIS.

1.5 Methodology

The project methodology clearly outlined in the NSW Heritage Office and Department of
Urban Affairs and Planning, 1996, Heritage Studies, New South Wales Heritage Manual (3rd
Edition), was referred to during the course of this study.

The evaluation criteria applied to inventory items are those required for entry on to the
Tasmanian Heritage Register (THR). These criteria are clearly defined in the Historic
Cultural Heritage Act 1995 (Appendix B). The inventory format is taken from the
Tasmanian Heritage Register Database, which has been created using Microsoft Access.

1.6 Terminology

The main body of this report does not generally adopt any special terminology, however,
terminology used to describe building style, form and materials has been used in the
Inventory of Significant Places. This terminology generally follows that which is set out in
Apperly, R., Irving, R., and Reynolds, P., 1989, A Pictorial Guide to ldentifying Australian
Architecture. Many of the architectural style names allocated to places within the inventory,
however, differ from the above book, as many places were found to be composed of a
combination of different style elements.
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1.8 Report Structure

The Central Area Heritage Review is presented in one volume, which contains two
documents, these include:

= Main Report (this document); and
= Inventory of Significant Places.

The Main Report of the heritage review consists of six chapters. Chapter Two examines the
major project tasks including literature review, field work and historical research. An
analysis of the Inventory of Significant Places is provided in Chapter Three. In Chapter
Four community consultation efforts are discussed, and recommendations are given in
Chapter Five. The final sections of the Main Report include references and appendices.

The Inventory of Significant Places is included in the same volume. This section contains a
list of significant places identified as part of the review, and individual inventory sheets for
each place in the prescribed format. There is also an electronic version (in Access ‘97) of
the inventory which is located at the Hobart City Council.
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2. PROJECT TASKS

2.1 Literature Review

A review of relevant literature was the first major task to be undertaken. This allowed for a
greater understanding of the history of specific sites, and also contributed to a general
understanding of the historical evolution and development of Hobart’s central area.

The review of key sources of literature also assisted in determining the scope of the study,
as previously identified places of cultural significance were identified, as well as places of
potential heritage significance.

2.1.1 Key Sources

An assortment of information sources, mainly key secondary sources, were consulted
during the review process in an attempt to identify heritage listed places, and places of
potential cultural heritage significance. Schedule F of the City of Hobart Planning Scheme
1982 was examined, as well as the Tasmanian Heritage Register. Places included on
these heritage lists were then plotted on a 1:2000 base plan.

Other sources were also analysed during this stage. These sources provided further
detailed information about places being considered for inclusion within the Inventory of
Significant Places. The key sources that were consulted include:

An Architectural Guide to the City Hobart;

CASP Heritage Topic Report;

Central Hobart: A Thematic History

City Fringe Heritage Review;

Hobart's Industrial Heritage;

Hobart Heritage Survey;

Twentieth Century Buildings for the National Estate Register Tasmania (Vol.
1&2); and

Women’s Sites and Lives in Hobart.

2.2 Field Work and Research

The field work component of this study was undertaken after the completion of the literature
review. A marked-up base plan created during the literature review stage provided a
starting point for the field work. The plan was taken into the field, and used as a guide.

Approximately fifteen working days were spent on field work. All unlisted places located
within the study area were assessed for heritage significance. The sites of prima facie
heritage value were plotted onto a base plan, and photographs taken of each place.

A preliminary inventory of approximately 70 sites was then developed, and further historical

research on specific sites was undertaken to verify or establish their cultural significance. A
further 14 sites were added to the inventory after the initial research phase.
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2.3 Historical Research and Confirmation of Heritage Values

Primary sources were consulted after the initial field work and research phase and the
compilation of the final inventory was commenced.

Key primary sources examined include Building Plans and House Connection Files held by
Development and Environmental Services, Hobart City Council. Other primary sources
consulted include: photographs, postcards, post office directories, assessment rolls, and
property files held by the Hobart City Council.

The major historic map sources used were: Survey Sheets 1841-1845, by James Sprent,
and Metropolitan Drainage Board, City of Hobart, Detail Plans 1905-1910.
2.4 Compilation of the Final Inventory

Further research was undertaken to gather information about sites included within the final
inventory of significant places. In some cases Assessment Rolls were examined further in
order to attempt to confirm construction dates.

The datasheets for each site were then proof read, and any inconsistencies in the
information presented were clarified.
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3. INVENTORY ANALYSIS

3.1 Previously ldentified Places of Significance

3.1.1 Characteristics

The majority of places listed on Schedule F — City of Hobart Planning Scheme 1982 date
from the early to mid nineteenth century, which covers the Old Colonial Georgian (1803-
€1840) and Victorian (c1840-1890) architectural periods. There are a smaller number of
buildings that date from the Federation (c1890-c1915) and Inter-War (c1915-c1940)
periods.

Most places are commercial buildings, such as offices and shops. Distinctive groups are
located throughout the central area, mostly in the outer blocks. The two blocks framed by
Collins, Davey, Murray and Harrington Streets provide examples of commonly listed
structures, as most of the listed buildings in these blocks are mostly Victorian Georgian
edifices, such as London Chambers, Stone Buildings, and the Tasmanian Club.

There are also other types of listed places located within the central area such as: halls,
public houses, factories, educational institutions (such as the suite of Hobart Technical
College buildings), theatres, club houses, post offices, service stations, stables, and
warehouses.

Places on Schedule F were found to possess a similar level of cultural significance,
however there are numerous structures that are of State significance, grand historic
structures that are evidence of the growth and prosperity of Tasmania’s capital city during
the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.

3.1.2 Statistics

There are 110 previously listed places of significance located within Hobart’'s central area
(Appendix C). These places are listed on Schedule F and the Tasmanian Heritage
Register (THR). Most places are included on both registers, however there are a small
number of places that are listed only on Schedule F or the THR (Figure 2).

HERITAGE INVENTORY | No. | %
HCC/THR 101 | 92
HCC Only 1 1
THR Only 8 7
TOTAL 110 | 100

Figure 2 Table of Previously Listed Heritage Places

There is only one place that is listed on Schedule F and not on the THR. This is:
52-56 LIVERPOOL STREET Former Carlton Club Hotel

This apparent oversight is the result of changing land information. The building occupies a
corner site, and has substantial frontages on both Liverpool and Argyle Streets. The
property is divided by title into a number of sections, and only one of these sections is listed
and defined on the THR.
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There are eight places that are identified on the THR and not on Schedule F. These
include:

18-26 BATHURST STREET Technical College (Dechaineaux Wing)

18-26 BATHURST STREET Technical College (George Mclintyre Hunter Wing)
22-26 ELIZABETH STREET ANZ Bank (former Broadcast House)

29 ELIZABETH STREET Former Bank of Australasia

34-36 ELIZABETH STREET Wellington Building (includes 98 Collins Street)

139 LIVERPOOL STREET Formerly part of Tasmanian House
112 MURRAY STREET Cow (former Tattersall's Hotel)
3 VICTORIA STREET  Service Station

The majority of these listings are as a result of nominations prepared by the Royal
Australian Institute of Architects (Tasmanian Chapter), which primarily focussed on
buildings dating from the twentieth century. These nominations were gradually added to the
THR from 1997.

The significance of some structures is compounded by the fact that they have early
nineteenth century associations. The Service Station at 3 Victoria Street, for example,
incorporates outbuildings that once belonged to Macquarie Hotel, built in c1815.

Many of these sites are part of complexes that already have sections (mostly dating from
the nineteenth century) listed on both Schedule F and the THR. ANZ Bank (Broadcast
House) is a case in point. This large Inter-War office complex built in 1926 is technically
already part of a listed site - the Victorian Georgian former Commercial Bank of Tasmania
building located at 103 Macquarie Street. Broadcast House was incorporated into the listed
property in 1989, when the site was redeveloped into the ANZ Centre. The two places
therefore became part of the same property.

Given the cases described above it was thought necessary to produce datasheets for each
of the eight defined places (refer Appendix D). This will effectively update Schedule F, and
help to clarify existing listings.

There are an additional three places that are not defined on either Schedule F or the THR,
including:

53-57 COLLINS STREET Charter House (refer also Former Red Cross House)
101-103 HARRINGTON STREET Conjoined Commercial Buildings

43 LIVERPOOL STREET Police Office (former YMCA Gymnasium)

These places are part of properties that are listed on both registers, but the particular
buildings are not identified within the current listing. Datasheets have been prepared for
each of the three properties, and are also presented in Appendix D.
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3.1.3 Schedule F - Inconsistencies

During the review of Previously Identified Places of Significance, specifically Schedule F, it
became apparent that many of the addresses provided in Schedule F were not compatible
with currently available land information.

The majority of places were listed on Schedule F more than twenty years ago as they were
the result of National Trust of Australia (Tasmania) hominations. Many of the original street
addresses have subsequently changed.

The street address for each property was checked against the Land Information System
Tasmania (LIST). If there was an inconsistency between the two addresses this was noted,
and a list of inconsistencies produced (refer Appendix E).

3.2 Inventory of Significant Places

3.2.1 Characteristics

The majority of places included in the Inventory of Significant Places (identified by this
study) are commercial buildings dating from the early to mid twentieth century. There are
also substantial numbers of commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth century with
early to mid twentieth century additions, most commonly to facades.

The majority of these buildings are shops and/or offices, which is not surprising given that
they are located within Hobart's central business district.

Various other types of places have been assessed and ultimately included in the inventory
such as police stations, public open spaces, theatres, bank buildings, gymnasiums and
infrastructure, specifically that associated with the Hobart Rivulet.

The places included in the inventory are mostly located within the central blocks of the study
area, those city blocks bounded by Collins, Harrington, Liverpool and Elizabeth Streets.
There are also clusters of identified buildings in lower Argyle Street and upper Campbell
Street.

3.2.2 Statistics

The Inventory of Significant Places contains 84 places. This figure represents the number
of places that have been identified not the number of properties. In some cases, for
example, there are several buildings on the one property.

Myer Department Store is one such example. The property is composed of several
buildings located in the block bounded by Murray, Liverpool, Collins and Elizabeth Streets.
Five of these buildings (three with frontages on Liverpool Street and two with frontages on
Murray Street) have been included in the Inventory of Significant Places. Although they are
part of the one property, datasheets have been prepared for each of the five buildings in
order to ensure that the values of each building are adequately defined.
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3.2.3 Format

The inventory sheets that have been produced are identical in format to those produced by
the Tasmanian Heritage Council, because they have been produced using the Tasmanian
Heritage Register Database. The following fields appear on the inventory sheets.

10

FIELD DEFINITION

Reference Located at the top right-hand corner of each inventory sheet,
this number refers to the location of the item within the
computer database.

Name Current place hame and former names, where known.

Address Current street address according to LIST and HCC base maps.

Original Use What the items was originally used for.

Present Use

What the items is presently used for.

Feature Type

What type of item it is, e.g. shed, house, bridge, church.

Architectural Style

Defined by the architectural periods and styles outlines in A
Pictorial Guide to Identifying Australian Architecture.

Integrity

The integrity of a place is related to the degree to which its
fabric and curtilage remains intact. Where a place appears to
be intact, the phrase “externally predominantly intact” has been
used. Alternatively, when a place is not externally intact, a
brief description is given of the elements affecting its integrity
(or intactness).

Construction Date

The date the place was built.

Floors The number of floor/storeys.

Roof The type of roofing material used, e.g. shingles, corrugated
iron, tiles.

Walls The material from which the exterior walls of the place are

constructed, e.g. face brick, weatherboard, stone; and details
of any subsequently applied coating, e.g. painted or rendered
brick.

Attic/Basement

A tick box is provided to indicate whether the items has none,
one or both of these features.

Streetscape Contribution

The location of the place within the study area, and the
contribution it makes to the streetscape.

History

The history of the place, its development and evolution.
Includes a historical information about the place, e.g.
construction date, original owners etc.

Physical Description

A brief physical description of the place as it appeared at the
time of the field survey.

Criteria for Entry in Register

These criteria are outlined in the Historic Cultural Heritage Act
1995, Section 16. Through these criteria a statement of
significance is produced.

Digital Images

Two digital images are mostly provided of each place.
Photographs showing the front and side elevations are
included on most inventory sheets.
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4. CONSULTATION AND CONSERVATION OPPORTUNITIES

Community consultation has been an important part of this study. Details of completed and
future planned community consultation are given in the sections below.

4.1 Completed Community Consultation

The Project Consultant spent time contacting several property owners, gathering historical
information about their properties and organising site visits.

The Bank Arcade, 64-68 Liverpool Street became a property of particular focus. The
Project Consultant met with the owners on site and was given a comprehensive inspection
of the complex. The owners are currently preparing some on-site historical interpretation,
and the meeting provided a perfect opportunity for information exchange to take place.

The Bank Arcade later became the focus of a talkback session on 936 ABC Radio hosted
by Ric Paterson in July 2003. This program encouraged people to call in and contribute
information about the history of the arcade. It was from this radio session that some
fascinating historical information came to light. This information was subsequently
incorporated into the Inventory of Significant Places and will also be used in the Public
Exhibition of the project.

4.2 Future Planned Community Consultation

4.2.1 Public Exhibition

A public exhibition of the Central Area Heritage Review, including the Inventory of
Significant Places will be prepared in late September, and presented for public viewing at
the Hobart Council Centre in early October 2003.

The exhibition will stress the educational importance of the study in terms of informing the
wider community about the nature of its heritage.

4.3 Conservation Opportunities

There are numerous places located within the study area that have unsympathetically
altered facades. The former His Majesty’s Theatre at 168 Liverpool Street is one such
example. This once intricately detailed Federation facade was covered with metal cladding
in the early 1970s. Similarly, there are several commercial buildings in Liverpool Street
(between Elizabeth and Murray Streets) with intricate Inter-War Art Deco facades that have
simply been painted one colour. This paint scheme does not enhance their impressive Art
Deco maotifs.

All the abovementioned buildings make a significant contribution to the historic streetscape
of Hobart’'s central area and have been included in the Inventory of Significant Places.

A major opportunity to improve the conditions described above would be to encourage
sensitive re-painting and/or restoration of facades, most of which belong to prominent
commercial buildings. Financial incentives could be provided through the Council’'s
Heritage Funding Program.

Other incentives that could be used include:

Land use concessions;

Rate relief;

Waiving Development Approval application fees; and/or

Free professional advice (e.g. offered by Council's Cultural Heritage Officer).
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4.4 Heritage Promotion Opportunities

The conservation of heritage places detailed above could be assisted through the provision
of information to property owners and members of the general public relating to the
restoration and painting of facades.

4.5 Use of Heritage Resources

There is an opportunity to work more closely with other sectors of Council, such as City
Services and Parks and Customer Services, in order to use the historical information
researched for sites within the Inventory of Significant Places. There may be opportunities
for this information to be used in interpretative panels installed within the city centre.
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5. RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Adoption of the Heritage Review

1.

The inventory sheets prepared for individual places which comprise the Inventory of
Significant Places should be adopted by Council following a process of public
exhibition.

Consideration should be given by Council to the adoption of additional places onto
Schedule F identified in Appendix D.

Inconsistencies in the Schedule F outlined in Appendix E should be corrected in
accordance with the information provided.

5.2 General Recommendations

1.

It is recommended that Council further investigates the opportunity to encourage
fagade restoration/re-painting of key commercial buildings with identified heritage
significance, by use of the Council’'s Heritage Fund and/or through other incentives.

It is recommended that Council further investigates the opportunity to encourage
facade restoration/re-painting of buildings with identified heritage significance, by the
provision of general information to property owners and the broader community.

It is recommended that the information within the Inventory of Significant Places be
disseminated to other sectors of Council where it may be of assistance to other work
programs.
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of the National Estate, The Macmillian Company of Australia in association with the
Australian Heritage Commission, Melbourne.

Bennett, K., 1996, The Survival of Georgian Buildings in Inner Hobart, 1996, Honours
Thesis, University of Tasmania, Hobart, held at HCC.

Bennett, K., 1997, Cultural Heritage Places: Assessments of Colonial Buildings within Inner
Hobart, prepared for the Hobart City Council, Hobart.

Bingham, M., 1992, Cascade: A Taste of History, The Cascade Brewery Company Limited,
Hobart.

Bolt, F., 1981, Old Hobart Town Today: A Photographic Essay, Waratah Publications Pty
Ltd, Hobart.

Bolt, F., 1993, Hobart Heritage Survey, Hobart City Council, Hobart.
Bryce, D., Pubs in Hobart from 1807, Davidia, Rosny Park, Tasmania.

Clark, J., This Southern Outpost, Hobart 1846-1914, Corporation of the City of Hobart,
Hobart.

Cyclopedia of Tasmania, 1900, Maitland and Krone Publishers, Hobart.
[The] Cyclopedia of Tasmania, 1931, The Service Publishing Co., Hobart.

Hobart City Council, 1990, Heritage Topic Report, Central Area Strategy Plan Hobart, HCC,
Hobart.

Hobart City Council, 1997, Hobart’s Historic Places: A Walking Guide Through the City
Centre, published by the Hobart City Council, Hobart.

Hudspeth, A., Evans, Kathryn, 1992, Drysdale Hospitality College, Hobart: A Report for the
Department of Construction Tasmania, Tasmanian Government.

Newton, P., 1990, Heritage Inventory, prepared for the Central Area Strategy Plan, HCC,
Hobart.
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NSW Heritage Office and Department of Urban Affairs and Planning, 1996, Heritage
Studies, New South Wales Heritage Manual (3" Edition).

Rand, A., 1991, Temple House and Tasmania Police Headquarters: Archival Investigation,
prepared for Department of Construction, Tasmanian Government.

Rayner, T., 1988, The Hobart Rivulet, prepared for the Hobart City Council, with funds
provided by the Commonwealth Government under the NEGP.
Robertson, W.G., 1919, Hobart Streets, Archives Office of Tasmania, NS 1374/1.

Royal Australian Institute of Architects, Tasmanian Chapter, 1984, An Architectural Guide to
the City: Hobart, RAIA, Tas. Chapter, Hobart.

Royal Australian Institute of Architects, Tasmanian Chapter, University of Tasmania
Department of Urban Design, National Estate Grants Program (Aust), National Estate
Tasmania, 1994, Twentieth Century Buildings for the National Estate Register Tasmania,
The Chapter, RAIA, Hobart, Vol. 1.

Royal Australian Institute of Architects, Tasmanian Chapter, Department of Architecture and
Urban Design, University of Tasmania, 1997, Twentieth Century Buildings for the National
Estate Register Tasmania, Commonwealth Government under the National Estate Grants
program, Vol. 2.

Sandy Bay Historical Society Inc, 1997, Sandy Bay Connections, Proceedings of A
Conference on the History of Sandy Bay, Hobart Tasmania, published by Sandy Bay
Historical Society Inc., Sandy Bay.

Scripps, L., 1991, Central Hobart: A Thematic History, Appendix 1 of the Central Area
Strategy Plan (CASP) Heritage Topic Report, HCC, Hobart.

Scripps, L., 1997, The Industrial Heritage of Hobart: Historical Study and Site Database,
Vol. 1 & 2, prepared for the Hobart City Council, Hobart.

Scripps, L., 2000, Women's Sites and Lives in Hobart: Historical Research, Hobart City
Council, Hobart.

Solomon, R., 1976, Urbanisation: The Evolution of an Australian Capital, Angus and
Robertson Publishers, Sydney.

6.3 Related Legislation
City of Hobart Planning Scheme 1982

Historic Cultural Heritage Act 1995
Sullivans Cove Planning Scheme 1997

Wise, H., & Co, Tasmanian Post Office Directory, 1890-1948, held at the Tasmaniana
Library, State Library of Tasmania, Hobart.

6.4 Directories/Registers

Assessment Rolls, Tasmanian Government Gazette.

The Tasmanian Hotel and Boarding House Directory, Tasmanian Government Tourist
Department, Hobart.

Tasmanian Heritage Register.
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Tasmanian Post Office Directory, published by H Wise and Co. 1891-1937, held at
Tasmaniana Library, State Library of Tasmania.

6.5 Websites

www.talis.tas.gov.au
www.thelist.tas.gov.au
http://www.tasheritage.tas.gov.au

6.6 Map Sources

City of Hobart: Central Business District, 1968, produced by Southern Metrpolitan Masyet
Planning Authority, Hobart.

Hobart and Suburbs Aerial Survey Maps, 2™ Edition, 1954, Lands and Surveys Department,
Tasmania.

Hobart Town Plan and Buildings, Intercolonial Exhibition of Industry Chart, 1866, held at
Lands Titles Office, DPIWE, Hobart.

Plan of Hobart Town 1839, by J. Frankland, held by Allport Library and Museum of Fine
Arts, State Library of Tasmania.

Plan of Hobart Town ¢.1840, (coloured) based on Frankland Plan, held by Allport Library
and Museum of Fine Arts, State Library of Tasmania.

Survey Sheets 1841-1845, by James Sprent, copies held by Hobart City Council.
Metropolitan Drainage Area, Detailed Sheets, prepared in 1897 by A Mault.
Metropolitan Drainage Board, City of Hobart, Detail Plans1905-1910.

6.7 Photographic Sources

Archives Office of Tasmania
Dennison Heritage Collection
Hobart City Council Photographic Collection, held in HCC Library.

Hobart City Council Slide Collection, held by Development and Environmental Services
Division.

Postcard Collection, Tasmaniana Library, State Library of Tasmania.

Private Collections.
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APPENDIX 2 - PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE A

Places for which a prima facie case exists for inclusion on the
Heritage Schedule of the City of Hobart Planning Scheme 1982 (as
consolidated).
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APPENDIX 3 - PROVISIONAIL SCHEDULE B

CITY HEART HERITAGE REVITALISATION AREA
PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE OF LISTED PLACES

The following places have been compiled with a view to an
Advisory Panel selecting a representative range of facade styles,
shop fronts and awnings for inclusion on the City of Hobart
Planning Scheme 1982 (as consolidated), Heritage Schedule.

National Estate criteria most likely to be relevant include:

A.4 Importance for their association with events,
developments or cultural phases which have had a
significant role in +the human occupation and
evolution of the nation, state, region or community.

B.2 Importance in demonstrating a distinctive way of
life, custom, process, land-use, function or design
no longer practised, in danger of being lost, or of
exceptional interest. '

D.2 Importance in demonstrating the principal
characteristics of the range of human activities in
the Australian environment (including way of life,
custom, process, land-use, function, design or
technique).

E.1 Importance for a comnunity for aesthetic
characteristics held in high esteem or otherwise
valued by the community.

F.1 Importance for their technical creative, design or
artistic excellence, innovation or achievement.

For example the significance of brass shop front technology and
design relates to criteria B2, D2, E1, F1. In particular
instances other criteria may be relevant e.g. historical research
may reveal connections with particular historically significant
events or people.

Places denoted (HR) are already scheduled but are included in
this list to make explicit which features are included in the
place’s significance, eg. It is probable that the Peking Gift
Shop’s shopfront is at least as significant as its Colonial
Georgian upper storey.

The taxonomy used as a basis for classification is that developed
by Apperly et.al. (Identifying Australian Architecture: Styles
and Terms from 1788 to the Present, Sydney, 1989) in the
Tasmanian context, a considerable time-lag (about two decades)
exists between the dates published in this work as being
characteristic of a style’s period and that actually prevailing
in this "Southern Outpost".
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Hence, buildings which can best be described as "Georgian"
persist in Hobart well past the middle of the 19th century; those
which can only be classified as "Victorian" were being erected
well past Her Majesty's demise and the return of the Boer War
Contingent; "Federation" or "Edwardian" parapets and Art Nouveau
leadlighting continued until at least as late as 1928, and
"Inter-War Functionalist" architectural essays were pioneered for
at least a decade after World War II, (especially by architect -
educator S.W.T. Blythe, former H.C.C. Alderman Colin Philp and
the European trained Frank Stary, then working for the H.C.C.
Building Surveyor's Department).

Information pertaining to shop front craft and technology was
gleaned from surviving practitioners of the art still able to
throw light upon an ill-researched field: most especially from
Mr. Bill Lansdell, whose family business was working in the area
in the early decades of the present century.

The responsibility for errors of fact or in interpretation is the
author'’s.

[Peter Newton M.Sc. (Env.Cons.); Dip.Arch., March 1991.]

e —




159

*IB8I 3® SjuBlUWSI TETUOTOD
JUBDTITUBTS ‘18304 Aaupds
S.3IBH 8dusyy ‘(0987 ®BOITD)
Swi1y sxepiing 8yjy ArTiswiog

HOTUIINT/SATON

"FT30W TeIOoTF ueipresmpd
‘3173705 Tejew pessaag

"ubTssp nesanoy 3ay
‘3113F0S Tejeuw pessaig

ONINMHY

VIUY NOILVSITVIIATY JADVIIYVAH I¥YAH AIID
€ FINAIHOS TYNOISIAOYMd - € XIaN3ddy

*0S6T EOITO eureIj
18235 SsaruTreas

INO¥I dOHS

'199135 Y3eqezITd TIT 885 300115 Y3eqezITd YjTa

IaUJI0) 3SeM Y3nog
ddIS HLNOs
LIFHLS ISUNHIVE

'399J38 YjeqezTTd 96-26 o85S €07

‘BuipTing ueibioces uo T230H AaupAs maN

apeoeI o008g 31y 48

‘382135 UieqezIld ST ees 1881318 Yjeqeziry

UaTa Isulon

1sed YjaoN

A1s1ppes

B4
*{eorSsen

9814 uoijeIspag s, ueiybnor
*eouUanyIug

oDaQg 3IY TeOTISSEID s,ATezen

8814 uoT3eISpa] pue A31H joog g/
*@oueniyuT ooeg Iy

Teo1Isserd PTIOM SsSaulsng

9914 UOT3RISpPA] T/

ddIS HIMON ILIFYLS ISUNHIVE

TIAZT DNINMY FAOHY SsE¥aav






161

" TEOTISSEID sIaqureyy qnip

8814 UBTIOADTA SOT-€E0T
‘o138 opeday eoeld ayj,
8314 UOTQRISDPS] 10T

*[RUOTIRUISIUT IeM-1S0d

Teotsser)
9913 UOT3IRISPa] S,pleaabzaty
- oDe(g 13y T6
*0S6T ®OITO * wPasTUISpOW,,
Bur113 oTweiso pue - [E2ISSeI) suebooy
BUeIF [903S SSeTUTRIS ga1] UBTIOZDTA 18-6/
*Ie21 3® S3UBUWSI TRTUOTOD
P10 ‘doys sf330q 03 *uxajzed oosg 3ay *TedTSser) Te@30H diys
Burtreo i1siserd papinoy ‘317305 Tejew pessaig 8814 UBTJIOIDTA SL-EL
'398435 Y3leqezlld 62 @9 TT®H Y3eqezZiid ystm
JI8UI00 3SeI-Y3.I0N
*sseTb pauteas pue
butaybripEeT nesanoy *IEBDTSSEID
31y pue Aijus Teutbrig 291J UOT3RISpag 1930H SUSIBTOON
T9
* (eBueyoxs
*1007F do3 o3 * TBDISSRID 30035 JIawiog)
SsuotjeasitTe or3syjedudsun 991J UBRTJIOJDTA 8SNOH eTepsiig
6S
"AIOMHDTIQ OTIBWOIYDRTP . ‘008 3IY 9SNOH Je3xeys
LS

JAIS HIY¥ON LIFULS SNITIOD

HOTHAINI/SHLION ONINMY LNOY4 dOHS TIAFT ONINMY FTAOHY ssdyaay




162

‘ubtsep Axoijseisard
U3tk Teabejut
uisjged Teorsser)
‘31TFFOS Telaw possald

*eTeztdeo wumyoo o3 .
FT30W pIT1g-914T UOTyRISpag

*ursjjed samBam-3@YSEq
‘3T3J0S Tejaw pessaig

*8In3onI3s
239J0U0D poDIoIUTaI ATJeo
SI030{ ®AT3eIadp-0) ATIsuLIog

* apouw

wuetbioen,, utr smopuim pauwexy
19835 A11eg ‘Butrjybripest
pue squbTTAYS ‘1007:

3SITF pue A1jus oq A1autol
PU® 85eDITR]}S J0TI93Ul

*INY JI07F pajeurtwou
8q pTnoys *,8143s asnoy,
Fo ardurexs BUTATAINS aiey

"ubtsep yzm
Teabajut Butume paddaag

YOIMIINI/SIION ONINMY

‘Pioysexys pue Aijug

*q3oequt AtebaeT

LNOYd dOHS

193135 03

TITI-UT UOTIRIAPa]
U3TA TROTSSBID
991 UBTIOJOTA

*(Z16T) T=PTSSEID
9913 UoT3lRILapal

*(€58T)

ButprIng xsyriEe uo
opeOBF TeDISSeI)d
8914 UBRTIOIOTA

‘388135 uojbutarey g/ eeg

*spuRIjUS

padelds ‘Butzelb
pauisjaed ‘swel;
18815 ssaTulE]3s

*3STTERUOTIOUNg
Jem-193ul

*TeOTISSRT)
@814 uorleispag

"(YH) (826T) TeoTSSEID
OTWepeoy JeM-I18qul

(BEBT) 00aQ 3Iy¥

‘W'd o
86

(A°]
JdIS HLNOoS
LIFYLS SNITTI0D

EST

DLVT
HLRT ‘VLFT ‘LPT

doys aeag Appef
S¥T

apeDIy Aemsljus)
YIET-TET

qnid 'v°'L*D JIswrog
1271

sbutpting 9 3 I
LTT-ETT

(*INOD) HQIS HIMON IFT™IS SNITIOD

TIAZT ONINMY FA0EY

SSTHAgY



163

SPIND 'Y 'I'VY'Y o8g

YOTHIINI/STLON

"0S6T ®2IT0 ButrT]
DIWRIsD pue swelj

*sBbutume paddaijg 12831s sSsoTUTIe}S - #T

‘peacwax Butume Teuibrap

‘uxejjed ooeQq 3ay
‘11FJ0S TejeW passeld

*quoxz-doys
:U@EMHEMQHPW: 30
aTdurexs Burtpueasang

ONINHKY INOHI dOHS

*(BEBT) oOzZzeleRqg
TBTOISUWIO) IeM-JI83UT

*3STTRUOTIOUNT
IeM 9504

*fousabey UBTJIOJDTIA

*1EOTISSRT)
891] uUOT3RISpag

*HNY TRUOTSTAOIJ
(688T) egeueTTelI
UeTI030TA

*INY TeUOTSTAOCIg

(276T) ®143s
991J UOT3RI9pa]

*o0e(q IV

*(S06T) TeoTSSse)
891J uoljeispai

*eousnTIUT ooeQg IV
qSTTeUOTLoUN]
IeM-Ja3u]

"ITEH'H

62

ddIs Isvd
LIHHLS HIAGVZITA

¥T ‘2T ‘0T ‘8 ‘9 ‘v
JdIS LSEM
LITULS NOIYALIHD

88T

PGT
Tetasdus
0¥ T-BET
jueIne3ssy

ATTTPRODTg
9eT

IsuTWexXy/seynT 15

DET

[AI]

00T

(*INOD) HAIS HINOS IFFYLS SNITIOD

TIATT ONINMY JAogy

SsHyaay

—



164

"ATUO €6 03 ‘FT3OW [RIOTJ
UBTPIeMPE ‘3TFFOS
Te3sw pessaad paalnep

*ubtsep
NEsANON 3IY ‘aT1JJ0S
Tejew passaid pajinea

*FT3oul
TeIOTF UeTpIempy ‘jijjgos
Tej3aw passexd pajzTnep

*FT3ow
Teli0TF uRIpIempd ‘313170S
1233w pessexd pajTnep

*FT30u paitdsut

*dnoab se S3Fel) pue s3Iy ‘3i1FJos
Po3ISIT 29 03 I§-6¢€ Tejaw pessexd pejTnep

*uzejjed nesAnoN 3Iy
Te3sw pessaid pajinep

YOIYALNI/SIION ONINMY

*009g 3avY

* (dH)
Aousbey uetioloTp

*9DUSNTIUT 009(Q 3IY

‘asTTERUOT3OUN]
IemM-Ia3ur

*goueIjua padferdg
"SweII pur Joop *auuy ussnpg
80URIIUS UBRTPIEBMpPY uotjelspag

*8T143S 8914 uoTjelspaj

*TROTSSEBI)
2013 UoT3eIapad

*yoang-o1buy uotgeaspay

" (¥H)
0S6T BOITD SMOPUTM
12938 oT3sujreduisun
uetbioesn uetio307TA

Axoyeg s,0fueg
EOT

LB-EB

s ,Apunog
19

TS-6¥%

Ly

oSNOH Hepoy
S¥

osnoy juay
Ev-6€

YSE-EeE

(*INOD) HAIS ISVA IATYLS HIAGVZITI

INOYA dOHS TIATT ONINMY FA0OHY

SSIY¥aayY



165

Atadeaq s,aseg A1T1eUTBTIQ

*0T6T B1ITO JoOpP
BUTPTTS ‘SBUT33TI ‘SeATayg
*ButpTIng 0487 03 epeoey

*uuy uobeag
pue abioey iswiozy jo 9315

HOIYAINI/SALON

"FTI0W TRIOTF ueTpIempy
‘313305 Tej8W passeig

"3TIFOS "[L°A
He0°'SeL 9 % I “‘eury
giIs) woIy joeq psAcw
Paaow Butume Teurbrag

‘uxejaed oosq jay
‘313305 Tejew pessaig

ONINMY

*SI0IITW

I0TI83XY *3Dejut
Arebrer - sswexg
sseiq Teutbiap

‘INY I0F uoTjBRUTWOU
Fo AyzioM ‘aiogs
9T33e Ut gubtTuez

NBIANON 3aY - 4£e[I2A0
DTesSOW jusdel Japun
I0BIUT saTT13 Teuibrag
*ed43 ,10pTaa0),,
‘@ourIjus pajusput
pue paferds -gysT
BOITO fjuoxz-doys
pswelz-sseiq joejuy
Butpueasing *At1uo BZT

'0EBT ®BOITO
Sawely Tejsuw
93TUM 30B3UT suiog

"0S6T B2aI1d

surexy Tesas
Ssalure3s ‘epueijus
pederds ‘ATuo £pT

LNOYA dOHS

(S06T) (¥H) Teoisserd
DTWepeDY uoTjelepsd

*TeDTSSEeI)
9814 uoTjeIoped

*90UaNTFUT 3STISUURK
- TeoIsser)
8814 UOT3}RISpS]

*BuTpiIng TeTUOTOD UO
epedeJ TBOISSsed
9814 UoT3RIOpPS]

"(¥H) sousnyzuy
93eUeRT[R}I ‘TeDTISSsEel)
9914 UBTIOJOTA

S, uuesnpy
EPT-T¥T

EET

ASTIOTd S,3UERWy
62T-L2T

UTYoUuTW %3 Trsqdure)p
HSTT-S77

60T ‘ZOT

(*INOD) 3IQIS ISVA IFFYLS HIAGVZITH

THAZT ONINMY HAOHY

SsI¥aay



*AoBwIeyd S,pINOD ATIsWIog

*(zz1'd ‘sddiaos)
S, TITMpPOOY ATIaWIog

166

*(9s°d “yaerd) umrIoduy
s,uebaoN D d ATTRUuIbrag

HOIYAINI/STION

*FTI0W [RIOTF UBTPIEMPE
‘11330S Tejew passoig

*ubtsep
Yats Teabajuy Butumy

"I'D pue
Sa1833ux pesodxe ‘Bujurt
31¥30s ou ‘Butume adAhy
wqnd £13uno),, papuadsng

‘uxs3jed neasanoy
II¥ ‘31FFOS Tejzew
pessexd - ATuo ggi

DNINMY

‘axeMpIey
1833nys  owexs

I2qUITY UBTpPIeMpH JO
UBTI03DTA 83®T - 98

*(YH) enuenTIuT
93BURITE]}] ‘TEOISSET)
DTWepeDY UBIIOADTA

*TeoTSsel) 991g
Iem-Ia3ur

*3198J3S T00dIaATT 85-8/ 099

*quoxy doys psuwexl
IaqiT] UeTIOZOTA

"BL4T-LLT I0F sY

*saoueIque pafeidg
*3oejut A1ebaer
S3juoxgy-doys pawely
Isqury Teutbrag

*SI00p ueIpIeMpH
‘10073 pailtl
‘goueijus paderdg
*Butrty oTwexen
pasouTIng yatm
sjuoay doys pewels
—-19quTy ueTpIeMpF
/UBRTIOZDTA @3%e]

LNOYA dOHS

*4STTeUOTIIOUN]
IeM-I8qUT

{(3NY) (¥H) 3uoaz-doys
UBTJIOJDTA .:mﬂmkomm

TeTUOTOD PTO

*3STISUURY
UBTIOLDTA

*TeDISSBID
9914 UBTJIOADTA

* (4H)
Aousbay uetIOlOTA

398135 3sanyjeg
€8 DButpnyout
96-26

sButp1Ing sauen
9L-¥L

392135 T00dISATT Y3TAM
I8UI0) 3S8M-~-Uanog

S,pTeIabzatg
BY—¥¥

4aIs ISAM
IIFYLS HIAGVZITI

TLT

SLT-ELT

BLT-LLT

S9T-£9T

("INOD) 3AIS ISYd IATULS HIAAYZITA

TAATT DNINMY JAQHY

SsEYaay



167

*LZBT 8duTs doys Ieyoang
s® uotrjexsdo snonuijuos uy

YOIYALNI/SIION

‘P11 JI03F sy

‘uie3jed nesanoN 11y
‘313J0S Tejauw passaag

*syeued urt

urejzed Terors UBTpIRMAPg

‘173F0s TejaW passaig

*sTeued ut
FT30W TRIOTF ueIpIEMpF

‘@oueljus peAerds
*9DUSNTIUT 008 IV
‘sselb psutejls pue
Butqybtipest ‘eweay
1squty TeUIbTI0 -0ZT

*0S6T ®2aT0

‘S8TT3 OoTWeIsd pue
sWwely [883S SSaTuTE]S
‘@purIjus paferds

"0267 BOITID

85BOMOUS J0 Ta23Xs

pue Butira ‘seweay
Sseaq ‘sserb pauteas
pue Burqybtrpes
“S8ARIlTUDIE puR
sis3sel1d ‘punolans
UBTIOJOTA ATIee

o Teutbiio Burpnyourt

‘3T3F0s Tejeuw passaig sjuoaz-doys Fo A3stTaep

ONINMY

INOYA dOHS

(LZBT) TeRTSSEID ®SNOH Y3eqezilg

8214 uotjeispaj YOCT-8TT
*(¥H)

uetbioey ueTIOlOTA Y9TT ‘91T
*(¥H)

uetbioesn uetIolorp PIT

*3STISUUEK UBRTIOROTA OTT
* (dH)

TEOTISSBe]) UBTIOIDTA BOT-%0T

*(¥H) ueibaosn Ieyssg ysy

TBTUoTOD PIO ¢0T-86

(*INOD) IAIS LSIM IIFYLS HIAGVZITH

TIATT ONINMY FAOHY ssIyaav



168

*BUTTTeD Te3eW passaid yoTTropuny

—1I0TI33UT  "0ET ‘BZT *92T1 ‘el

Yata dnoib se pe3siy oq of

HOTMAINI/SAION

'YeZeZT °ss

‘YZeT @9g

'VZZ1 °@8%

*peT Duripniout pue oj

dn vgzT woiy subisep jo
Ajetaep *Telswl pessaid

‘uxajaed ooaqg 3avy
‘313305 TejoW posseld

ONINMY

‘uorjezdepe
erbTelsoN auexabtwyg
Japun soeid
ut teutbrio Jo jaed

*I00TF Axjus

03 BUTTIL r1I1S
MOToq ButiI3 pezers
*sTeued Joxxtw

pue Ssaseo-Moys
Teuxsjxe ‘Burzerb
qy611 doa peuaszaed
‘eouerjus peAerds

*I00TJ eoueIjUd

03 BUurrIL “T1ITS
03 S9T13 OoTWeIsD
‘@oueijus pefeids
*quoxz-doys pawexy
-Iaquty Teutbrio
qoejut Atebie]

*I00T73 Axjus

03 BUITT} ueTpIEMpPF
‘eoueijus peferds
‘saybt1 doy sserb
pauisjjed ‘swelr
Jaqury Teutbtag

"GPET

eDn1To ‘Buriteizep
uwpauTIWELI]s,, pue
Butzeib psuxejjed
Uita sqybir dog
Te3lUOZTIOY ‘awel3
19915 ssaTuTels

LNOYI JOHS

*TeDTISSeTD
9a1J uot3eIspsi

*(¥167) TeOTISSRID
®914 uoTjeRIOpPaI

*(¥T767) eousnygur
auuy uasnp ‘e1438
9811 uoTjeIapa]

"(PTBT)
PouUaNTIUT S3FeIn
pue sj3ay ‘eT4as
9814 UOTIRISpPa]

31SITRUOTIOUNg
IeM asod

8eT

9zT

per

veer

188115 BTTITATSH 9F
Burpniout

(44!

("INOD) IAIS ISIM LIFYLS HIAAYZITH

TIATT ONINMY FAOLVY

Ssayaay



169

‘uxejjed nesanoN Iy
‘313305 Telow pessaig

‘#T30W TRIOTI ueTpIEMpF
‘3TF30s Tejsuw pesssig

*uxejjed 1eIO0T]
UBTPIeMPT ‘3TF30S Tej8W
pessaid -uojbBuriaey

LL O1 SUTTTIOD H6%T

*I'D pue sas33Fex pssodxa
‘Bututy 313308 OU ‘ed4a
wyepuersa, pspuadsng

"(vEBT) uur
118€ PTO 18182 O 931

R FAAE- =l

'VEeT 9%

UOI¥ALNI/SAION ONINMY

‘punoIIng

IaquT] UBRTIOROTA Aouebey uetIOj0TA
3STTRUOTIOUN]
JepM-JI93qu7

*eDuanTIuT
NeSANON 3V ‘S3IeI)
PU® S31y UOT3RISpa

"TI11S mMOTeq
sTsued Tejsw passaid
‘Butze1b peanotroo ut

s3yb11 do3 suuy usenp
*(30®3UT 3sow (£z)
30B3UT Arebael squoag
doys peureiy Isquitg,

(906T) TE2TSSEl)
9913 UOT3RJISpaJ

*80UBNTFUT NEesAnopN
Jay *9143s
#91] uUoTjelIspej

"0267 ®BDITID
Seweiz [e3sWl 83TUM

81435
9313 uoTjerepsj

*ButT1eued Gurpniout
30ejut Arebrer
Selely MOpPUTH

suid uetiojorp (¥H) uetbaoan
*eT143s

991 uoTlRI9pag

L0T

SI0U0D,0
(ATuo) g

sButpring s, {TRUBTH
£6-48

399135 SUTTT0D
OLVPT “HL¥PT ‘VLIVT
‘LyT Butpniout ygg
‘G8 ‘€8 ‘BL ‘LL ‘SL
JdIs Isvd

LITYLS NOILONIVHMYH

98T-25T

sIequeyp TTed PTO
0ST - V9¥T

BET ‘9ET ‘PET ‘zeT

0ET

(*INOD) QIS ISAM IFTUIS HIGIYZITa

INQYd JOHS TIAZT ONINMY FAOGY

—_— ——— SR PR | e ——d —

SsHy¥aay



*Jlaqumu 38913s
Uyata qybt11-uey sserb
pejsoxg -jured moiraq
Butiyy pezerp ‘eurexz

‘uiajzjed nesAnop ‘uzejzied nesAnoN 11y JoquT] UBTIpIeMpT a1A3s9a1g
3ay ‘BuTriieo Tejsw pessald ‘3TFFOS Tejl8Wl passaid *gourIjue paderdsg uoTyeIapag 534
HAIS HIYON
LATULS TOOdHIAIT
(¥H) TT=H
Sa1dosag Bunog
(T261) enbsaueuwoy AuIy uOoT3BATES
5 JeM-I83u7 207
P~
g *3199135 T00dIBATIT E6T-TBT 98% 198135 ToodIaATT]
U3TA Isuxon
iaSed YjaoN
*392138 T00dIsATIT G6T 289 399135 ToodaeATT
U3aIM Iauxo)
IS9M YjaoN
388135 T00dISATT 86T-F6T ©8% 00T
*0v¥8T1 Burtjepaad
ButprIng uerbiosy
‘juswestlIaApe Aq painosqo auo Tetuo10) p1o Teutbiao
= 398135 uojbuTiiey woig uo spedey S3ivI)
SadurIjus Cm.wmhomw \mH.H.mm pue s3ay uoTjeIapag 06-8%9

JAIS LSIM IIFHYLS NOILONIMMYH

HOIYUAINI/SAION ONINMY INOYI dOHS TIATIT DONINMY FAODY SsTHUaAav



171

*Butrieo Tejsw
pessaid ‘nesAnoN 3aY UOTjRISpag

‘S9Tqe3s AJIeATT JsWIoT
Butpniout ‘1esx 3® pue apeoey
PUTUSq Ssjueuwal [ETUOTOD PTO

‘10307 A1vUOT]O08IUOD
ATa®® Jo 83Ts o1qrssod
*AIeucTroszuod Butulssuop
ButpTIng 30 9pPTS UO ubTg

*1eax ae
sButpT1Tngano pue S3871103 TeUuIbTaO
‘smoputm paued T ‘syoraq JOTAUOD

‘SjuBuWaI [RTUOTOD PTO LS-EG

HOIYHINI/SHION

*uxajjed 1eIOTI
ueTpaespd ‘Butume
Tejeuw passaid pajinea
Fo oTdwexs jueyTeoxy

BUON

‘uxsiged TeDTSSEID }E9I9
- 3TFFOos Tejsu passeid

*uxejjzed ooceqg qay
‘3T73F0S TEjew passeaad

DONINMY

‘UOT3ONIISUOD juUsnal
ButTeued ‘proyseays
0zzZeilal ‘eoueIjus
paderds *saoop
pazelhb uetiojotp

*SZ6T ®OITD

Sourely Tejswl e3TUM
‘punoxins Iejserrd pue
S8ARIITYOIR TEOISSRI)
URBTIOJDTA - ATJUO T/

‘PToyseayy

ozzeaaa] -sseib
paute3s ‘Burqubiipeet
nesanou 3ae ‘BuirIl
OTwexaed DOTjeUOIYORT(Q
*I00TF punoab joejuy

‘quted MoTeq seT3

pazZers “8@durajus
paderds ‘0167 eoaro
sweiy sseiq - gg
*sTaued

JOIXTW Teulalxy

‘BI8 UBRTIOIOTA ejer
Fo Jequii-ButyTeued
pue sIoop ‘sweij - gg

LNOYd dJOHS

(¥H) uetibiaocan

TeTUCTOD PIO EL-TL

(LZBT) ®TA3s 1930H }OoTMSUNIg
-981J UOT3RISpa] L9

*ButTTR3Sp
NesANON 3aY¥ ‘yoang

o1buy uotqeispeg T19-65

fousbey ueroloTp G5-T§
(*3U02) FQIS HI¥ON IFFUIS TOOJHIAIT

THAET ONINMY JAOHY SSTHAavY



‘318 Y3jeqezild ur s,uostbieg woig
Pa31BoOTa81 0Z6T-00BT mmmﬂuuﬁm doys
*£301S818T0 UBRTPIBMPT — JOTIS3UJ

172

*sBut3aty pue Lisurol ‘Aioaseiaro
‘sessniy ‘Butiiteo Joraejur

*JI00TF 35aTF 03
jromasgseld pue Lisutol ‘qubif
-JOOX ‘ITe3s 10\3UT - JI0TIS3UT

"SpEORF UOT3RISpPad pPUTYeq
Butp1ing uerbioss TRIUOTOD PTO

HOTIYAINI/SIION

‘uxajjed nesAnoN 3ay
‘31330 [ejew passeid

*uxeijed nesanoN jay
‘3T3J0S Tejsw passaid

*uI933ed nesAnoN Iy
‘1T3F0S Tejew passaig

'GTT-60T

U3TA Snonutauon
‘uxsljed neaanoN qay
Tejsw passaad pejnep

*aueT

Sisyjel ojur Butuingex
‘ursjjyed teIOTZ

‘Te3sw pessaid pajlnej
*pP83onI3suossy

*uxejyed oosg 3ay
~ 31FF0S Tejaw passald

ONINMY

"G26T B0aTD
sWely Tejswl o3TUM
‘wIoy Axjus peferdsg

‘wIoy AIjus pedeidsg
"0S56T7 ®DITD

S8112 OTWeIsD
pue 18935 ssajutre]sg

LNOYd dOHS

(¥H)
uetbioss ueta030TA

(¥H)
uetbrosn UeTIO]O0TA

uetbioss ueTIOqDOTA

81438
9314 uoIjelispeg

(¥H)
uetbiosn uetiojoTp

ooa(@ 31y JIeM I93ul

*BOUSNTIUT NBSANON
3ay oTAalsea1g
uorjeIspsj

L2T

s,uosTtbieg
S2T

TZT-6T17

9Snoy uoaaqg
VATTI-LTT

SIayjlel ATIsWIo -
s, Apunog
STT-60T

‘Y'O'M° K
‘wooxtted eatydeg
‘saTpuny
LOT-G0T

9SNOH eTuRuISE]
€6

(*3Uod) HAIS HIMON IIAULS TOOJHIAIT

TAAAT ONINMY FAO4Y

SSI¥aay



173

"BUTPTING STY3 UT 58T pue gpgy
PBUSTIqelss 8103s A182016 ssabang

*esenitels
S3Fel) pue s3ay ‘sBUTTTen Telow
possead j0B3lUT BwWOS — I0TI93U

*Butrirten fejew pessead - I0TI83Ur

HOIMALNI/SIION

‘Suxajjed nesAnoN 31y
PUBR TeDTSSsRI) 32a1n
‘313J0S Tejauw pessaid

‘Y49 03 I00p £1jugm
*Aijue peferds

*I00p UBTIPJIEMpT
perTsued pue
pozeib-ITey ‘BWexz
Te3all 93Tys -~ ATUO g9

*urejjed oosqg jay
‘11F30S Tejsuw pessaig

*uoTjeotrdde

INY JI0F pspusumiocoey
‘9167 ®0aTo BuTtIT]
OTWEI8D DI3RWOIYIRTP
pue seurexr

MOpUTM SSelg *8sed
Ae1dstp Butpuejs-eeiz
Uath £13us erqnop jo
e1dwexs Butpueasang

DNINMY INOY¥d JOHS

(¥H)
93BURT[E]] UBTJIOJOTA

(¥H) zs8ert
uetbiosy ueriolofp

*(S2Z6T)

Butpitng ueibiosn
uo speoey sayel)
PU®R S31Y UOTIjRISpeJg

*3STTRUOT3OUNS
Iep-Iequl

(¥H)
uetbioen uetIozoTp

LYT-S¥T
saa7 saq

TvT-LET

8@SNoH uoTup

392135 AelIni §9-/9
Butpniout ge7

EET-TET

doys 33719 Butieg
62T

(*3U0d) FAIS HIYON IITUIS "T00dHIATT

TIAZT ONINMY FA0GY

[ — S, CI— [ -

SSHYaav



174

*Aatabejur
s,DUTPTTINg WOIy 30BI3qNS ‘SMOpPUTM
I00TF punoib o3 suorjelsgyy

*IBal 3® SJURUWSI
TRTUOTOD PTO ATI®Y GGT-T8T

*Jeax
1® SjUBUWSI ue1bIoay TeTUOTO) PO

HOIYMAINI/STLON

*uxsjaed nesanoN Iy
‘1T330S Te3suw passaid

*uxejjed nesanoN aay
‘313305 Tejauw passaig

‘uxejjed nesanoN 3ay
‘31F7F0s Tejaw pessaid

‘uixsjjled
(¥®219) TEOTSSRID
‘317305 Tejew pesseiy

ONINMY

‘0S67 ®2ATD
yszoq BuriIg
DTweIan ‘swexy
19935 ssefutels

*SI0XITW

Teuirelxy “-Buriry
olueJI2) *saourIjUSL
pederds -sduentzuUT

0o08Q 31y f‘sseib
paanb1y pue paure;s
pue Butjybiipest
‘sewely Tejsu

23TUA YDTTaspuny
*juoxz-douys
UeTpIeMpy oj3el JFo
ardwexs Burpue3sing

INOYA JOHS

TBOTSSBT) 881d
uotqeIspag

(0TBT) enbseurmwoy
uotjeIspad

@ousnIjur ooa(g A1y
‘3sTTRUOTIOUN]
IeM-I9qul

aTf3s00xg
uotjeispsg

(998T) 3sTI8UURY
UBTIOFDTA

*BUTPITNg [RTUOTOD UO
apeoeg oda(Q 3ay

(6267) ®T143s
9914 uUoTjeIapaj

T2

19pe3TD AuULly UOT3RATES
102

18304 yooaureyg

S6T

doys poozeaToyM eIeBy
87T

813uep Butmes jaeqoy
64T

utIepuUERl ayf,
LLT

sButpTIng Telajus) oyg
65T-GGT

(*3u0d) HAIS HIYWON IFTULS TOOJYIAIT

THAIT ONINMY JA0QY

SsHy¥aay



175

*8urT ABIIN) WOII Ieai

1B Sjueuwel arqrssod - (9e8T)
doys ,sesol 3o 8315 I8WI0F
PuU® (2T ‘41T dd ‘sddtaong)
8881 S, [TeuMoxg ATaswiog

*(007°5°dd ‘sddrang)
TTTH uojbutrTapm 3o s31g

* (sddtaog)
OTET-5S687 JueUd] fs,I0TTE}
U3TA pe3einosse A1qissod

HOIYAINI/SAION

‘UIs3jed nesanoN Iy
‘17FF0S Tejsw passaid

‘uxsjjed ooaq 31y

‘1T330S TelsW pessailg

‘96-BL4 888

"urejjed neaAnoN 31y
37F30S [e3sw pessaig

86-84 bButume jo 1Y

"PTTIUD Teotyzdu
Jo aanb1z ‘£A1qus

Pa3jusput 03 313FoS gg

ONINMY

*TenIssern

8814 uoTjeIspag
1STTRUOTAOUN]
JepM-IaquT

TeDTSse) OTWepeny UBTIOIDTA

*@dueIjUL paferdg
"O0EBT ®BOITOD

Swely felsw 93TUM 98
*oDuRIjUS paAeidg
"0S67 B0ITD swely

18835 ssaTuTe3s Zg
*apueIjue paderdsg
"0EBT ®OITO

SweIy Tejlsw 83TUM 08

LNOYS dOHS

[SRe—

TeoTSser)
8914 UBRTIOLOTA

Teatrsserd paddraag

Iep-Iajurg

ooa( iy

*(¥H) sburp1ing
uerbiosn Iaao
8pedeF ejeuerTell
UBTIOZDTA

ooaq Iy

1STI8UUEY
URTIO3DTA

b ET A
BOT-86

doys paep
IS)MRHY UOSTTTH
96

utyTesndzy
v6

JIo)MBH UOSTTTH
26-06

96-84

Isuxo) sbBurpron
88-84

T930H eweqery
L

04

4dIS HINOS IATYLS TOOJHIAIT

TIAZT ONINMY FAogy

SsZyaav



176

*072-00% dnoab se pe3stT aq of

"0¥8T Butjepsad Buipring TeTUOTOD
PTC 70 juswabielus o1qIsSsod

*813e8yy, 8an3o01d
S,A3salel sTH ATiswiog

*dous at1d s,184MQ BK ATaswiog

"¥S8T PaysTIqElSe

‘SAIOM 3TNOSTg Weajg prouly
uewmsN L1i1swiol Buirreo
A93se(d URTpIeMpy - JoTIequy

YOIYAINI/SAION

*ursjged nesAnoN 3Iv
‘313305 Tejsw passaid

ONINMY

mrmsed [SPS—— [ .

"066T ®B2aTD
uoT3oNnIgsUODal
Teanjoaluon

*056T BOATO ‘Sewelz
19835 SSauTe3s

LINOYI dOHS

*s3¥eI) pue
S3I¥ UoTjeISpad

S9-T9

JdIS HIMON IIFHLS FTTIATAW

(¥267T) o143s
8813 UOTlRISpe]

(5Z6T) o1438
8814 uoTjeIspsjg

(1887)
23BUBTTE]I URTIOJOTA

*apeoe]

8JIANOT Te3aw putyeq
opeORy TROTSSEI) 8a1g
uotjexsped joequr

*9DUSNTFUT e3euelrell
TEDTSSRID UBTJIOIDTA
uerbiosn ueTIOFOTA
Aouabey uerIo30TA
(£9871)

}STISUURK URTIOADTA

*eousnIIUl suuy
ueeny ‘TeOISSEID
8213 uoTqeIapeg

072-202

S,Uo3BUTTITTIH
002

V6T

I8)ied PUBR JIBSSEBT9H
89T

99T1-2971

8€T

FET

Y0ZT-0ZT

seuor Jeyoierg
OTT

(°3U0d) HAIS HINOS IITULS TOOJHIAIT

THAZT ONINMY FAOGY

ssd¥aav



177

*(471°d ‘sddtaog) eiry 4q
pafoigsep ATTerared Butpring opgr

"ES
03 Buriteo Tejew passsexd 3oejur

"T®30H s,871In) Jauioy Jo 831g

"ITeH souexedusg,

'Y} si078q pue BWOUTH
UOTBAY ATIswIog *joejurt
I0TIL3UT JO yonw — I0oTI83ur

HOIYAINI/SAION

*uxejzed nesAnoN qay
‘3T330s Tejew passaig

DNINMY

*yoang
-07buy uotrjeIepsj

spedRIy TEOISSEID
8813 uoTjeIepeg

a1A31sea1g
uotT3yRIape]

TeDTSSBTD
OTWapeOY UBRTIO}OTA

3881315 To0dIaATT GET ey

*30BJUT Joop

@ouerjus t1eutbiao

PUR sawely Mopurs
I8quT] I00TF punolsn

TeDTSSsET)
991] uoljeIapag

jeuRITR]]
UBTIOJOTA
"0Z6T ®2aTO BurTTy
paze1b pue sjybyy doa
sserb psanbtz ‘surexy oT143g

Tejell @37yM 30m3UT

9913 UoTjeIsps

"399135 y3jeqezild gz oes

apeonay
®IPPT4 pPue 3e)

*@sSnoy suangain
Speday eIppTJg
puUE 3®) gg

YES - €9

T84l
65-GS

2SNOH uoTun
69-49

TL
ddIs Isvd
JATYULS AVHUNKW

sexyang Auueg
A

0G6-8%

Sb

ddIS HINOS IIAFUIS ITIIATIW

INOYS dOHS THAZT ONINMY Fnody

L [ s sad [ S—

Ssa¥aavy



178

‘suresq pue suumioo ‘Buiren
pairsued URTPIRMPE ‘UOT1TPUOD
JUaT[8DX8 UT asenifels

pu® susaios ‘BuryrTsued
‘sbut33TF ueTpIeMpd - JOTJI8jul

*(e¥7°d ‘sddraog)

uSNOITO umoabauwoy,,
S,UBTUBWISE], 3SITF JO 8318

HOIYAINI/SIION

"398135 SUTITOD BIT-E£TT °8g

" FT30u ‘Butaubtipeat

uS,edoouaprg, Y3Tm ‘BueIy sseaq
3TF305 pelnea [ezsw pue Isquty “°g976T
pessaad bBurpueasang BDITD juoxy doys

‘0967
BOITD SOT13 oTesow
pPuUe [323S SSefulels

ONINMY INO¥d dOHS

Aﬂ.m.C SuoTjeaalile
oT3eyzedulsun

£q psowzep
ATpeq uerbaoan

(T267T) °oT43S
-9914 uoTrjeispsq

*@ouanT Ul auUUY
uesnp - 814£as
9814 uoljlelapeg

(*3uod)

TIAZT DNINMY JAOHY

Buipiing 5 % ‘g

LIFHLS SNITTIOD HLIM

YANY¥OD ISHM HI¥ON

sadoouspig
26-086

1830H S, TTEeSI833e]

(AN

JdIS ILSIM IITULS AVHMNKW

HIE‘YTE  TE

JAIs ISYd IITHLS AVHUNKW

S53Y¥Aav



Fo—

179

APPENDIX 4 — PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE C

The following places, compiled by the Royal Australian Institute
of Architects, may be considered for scheduling by a Heritage
Advisory Panel.

(Refer R.A.I.A. An Architectural Guide to the City Hobart.)
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R.A.T.A. LISTED BUILDINGS NOT OTHERWISE SCHEDULED

COLLINS STREET

115 T. & G. Building, p.31
160 Cox Kay, p.30

ELIZABETH STREET

22 A.B.C. Broadcast House, p.26
29 M.B.F. Building, p.26

38 Westpac Bank, p.26

56 C.B.C. Bank, p.32

ELTZABETH MALL

Cat & Fiddle Square, p.32

HEATHFIELD AVENUE

1 Sunray Flats, p.30 (on border of S.A.)
MACQUARIE STREET

144 T.G.I.0. Building, p.23
179 Motors Showrooms, p.22

MELVILLE STREET

6 Scots Child Care Centre, p.33
MURRAY STREET

91 State Library, p.16

198 Hobart Animal Hospital, p.16
65-97 M.L.C. Building, p.30

VICTORIA STREET

3 Service Station, p.24

r——




APPENDIX B CRITERIA OF HISTORIC CULTURAL HERITAGE ACT 1995




HISTORIC CULTURAL HERITAGE ACT 1995 - SECT 16 Required criteria for entry.. Page 1 of 1

ﬁ Tasmanian Consolidated Legislation

[Index] [Table] [Search] [Notes] [Noteun] [Previous] [Next] [Download] [Help]

HISTORIC CULTURAL HERITAGE ACT 1995 - SECT 16

Required criteria for entry in Register

SECT

. 16. The Heritage Council may enter a place of historic cultural heritage significance in the

Heritage Register if, in its opinion, it meets one or more of the following criteria:

(a) it is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of Tasmania's history;
(b) it demonsirates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of Tasmania's heritage;

(c) it has potential to yield information that will contribute to an understanding of
Tasmania's history;

(d) it is important as a representative in demonstrating the characteristics of a broader
class of cultural places;

(e) it is important in demonstrating a high degree of creative or technical
achievement;

(f) it has strong or special meaning for any group or community because of social,
cultural or spiritual associations;

(g) it has a special association with the life or work of a person, a group or an
organisation that was important in Tasmania's history.

[Index] [Table] [Search] [Notes] [Noteup] [Previous] [Next] [Download] [Help]

http://www.austlii.edu.au/aw/legis/tas/consol _act/hchal995279/s16.html 6/12/2001




APPENDIX C SCHEDULE OF PREVIOUSLY LISTED HERITAGE PLACES




THC
Ref

R1671

R6624

R6463

R1690
R1692

R1728

R1713
R1714

R1750

R1765

R1751
R1759
R1766
R1752

R1768

R1769

R1760
R1761

R1762
R1762
R1763

R1691

R1778
R1778
R1779

R1780

NUMBER
0dd

57-59

19-29

55
57

53-57

73

71

117
121-123

25
25

39-41

Even

18-26

18-26

18-26
106

116-118

136

138

154-156
158

180-184
180-184
186

18-36

CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Previously Listed Heritage Places

STREET

ARGYLE STREET
ARGYLE STREET

BATHURST STREET

BATHURST STREET

BATHURST STREET

BATHURST STREET
BATHURST STREET

BROOKER AVENUE
NO SITES LISTED

CAMPBELL STREET

CAMPBELL STREET

CAMPBELL STREET
CAMPBELL STREET

COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET

COLLINS STREET

COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET

COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET

COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET

COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET
COLLINS STREET

CRITERION STREET

CRITERION STREET

DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET
DAVEY STREET
DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET

PLACE NAME

Synagogue

Hobart Technical College
(Dechaincaux Wing)

Hobart Technical College
(George McIntyre Hunter
Wing)

Cruikshank Building
Playhouse Theatre

Blundstone's Boot Factory

(formerly 46 Campbell Street)

Hollydene
Royal Exchange Hotel

Lewis Building (former Red

Cross House)

Central Café and Bar
(Formerly the Ship Hotel)

T & G Building
Former CTA Club

Former H. Cook & Son and
Piccadilly Restaurant

Former Imperial Hotel/Coffee

Palace

Stable

Former Cascade Brewery Co.

Offices

Former Chapel
Former Chapel

Athenaeum Club

Family Court of Australia
(former Trades Hall)

NOTE: Places are shown with current addresses determined through Land Information System Tasmania (LIST).

LISITNG TITLE

TYPE

HCC/THC

THC

THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
THC/HCC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

NO.

117821

136565

136565

136565
No title ref

197034
55211

122686

104660

198888
101385
252489
102180

4387

101637

129448

106048

48531
48531
127189

116612

3488
6043
96147

249737

FOLIO
NO.

8919

o= O e

98

o -

186




THC
Ref

R1781

R1782

R1819
R1809
R1820

R1820
R1820

R1821

R1826
R1880

R1880
R1880

R1827
R1827
R1855
R2956

R2957

R1828
Re462

R6462

R1829
R1829
R1883
R1830
R1831
R1831
R1832
R1833
R1833
R5756

R1915

R1905
R1906
R1906
R1507

NUMBER
0Odd Even

45

47

49

51

11
11

15-19

15-19
18
22-26

29

33
34-36

34-36

35
35
38
57
93
95-97
103-105
107
107
109

57-59

73
101-103
101-103
121

CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Previously Listed Heritage Places

STREET

DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET
DAVEY STREET
DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET
DAVEY STREET

DAVEY STREET

ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET

PLACE NAME

Hobart Royal Tennis Club
(Royal Tennis Court and
Clubrooms)

Former Davey Street

Congregational Church & Hall

Ranelagh
St David's Park
Kilburn / Buckingham House

Kilburn / Buckingham House

Kilburn / Buckingham House

General Post Office
Former Commonwealth Bank

Former Commonwealth Bank

Former Commonwealth Bank

CML Building

ANZ Bank (Former Broadcast
House)

Former Bank of Australasia

Wellington Building
(including 98 Collins Street)

Wellington Building
(including 98 Collins Street)

Former Bank

HARRINGTON STREET

HARRINGTON STREET

HARRINGTON STREET
HARRINGTON STREET
HARRINGTON STREET
HARRINGTON STREET

Former Del Sarte's Assembly
Rooms

NOTE: Places are shown with current addresses determined through Land Information Svstem Tasmania (LIST).

LISITNG TITLE

TYPE

HCC/THC™

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
THC

THC

HCC/THC
THC

THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

NO.
108313

121306

43092
52
4647

124285

42572
119982

119982
119982

34485
71056
70808
50547

49724

48335
123609

123609

124151
124151
35016

136589
196500
198413
134301
31788

67235

100812

44

127189
228434
90613
62541

FOLIO
NO.

1

9465

1413

49

%]

(18]

e e T TR = S S S Ry

4455

73

1

ta




THC
Ref

R1919

R1919

R1919

R1670

R1930

R1680

R1931

R1921
R1921
R1932
R1933

R6316

R6317

R6318

R6319

R1922

R1923
R5706
R5707
R2058
R2058
R6002

R1924
R1524
R1924
R1924
R1934
R1934
R5425
R5426
R5426

R1950
R1950

NUMBER

Odd

71-73
71-73

109-113

125
127
129
137
137
139

145-147
145-147
145-147
145-147

89
89

Even

48

50
52-56

60

76
78-78A

80

84

86

88

162
162
164
166
166

CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Previously Listed Heritage Places

STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET

LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET

PLACE NAME

Town House (includes
outhouses) =

Town House (includes
outhouses)

Town House (includes
outhouses)

Temple House / Selomon

House

Royal Hobart Hospital - 1938
building, sculptures and
forecourt

Former Carlton Club Hotel
Former Carlton Club Hotel

Former AG Webster's
Building

National Australia Bank
Golding and Son's Corner

Formerly part of Golding and
Son's Corner

Formerly part of Golding and
Son's Corner

Formerly part of Golding and
Son's Corner

Formerly part of Golding and
Son's Corner

Formerly Soundy’s Store
(including buildings at rear)

Former Tasmanian House
Former Tasmanian House

Formerly part of Tasmanian
House

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET

Ingle Hall
Ingle Hall

NOTE: Places are shown with current addresses determined through Land Information System Tasmania (LIST).

LISITNG TITLE

TYPE

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

NO.

36530

36530

36530

222001

No title ref

118351
No title ref
49988

120317
234248
123909
No title ref

114057

119687

198132

45

No title ref

23666
23666
50796
49736
49736
90125

108555
215962
108555
108555
107219
107219
39251

111950
111951

FOLIO
NO.

1

1

1309

e TR T + RN U R (N TR Sy

79




THC
Ref
R1951

R1952

R1953

R2018

R1954

R1991
R1992

R1955
R1958
R1959
R2016

R1960

R1961

R1962
R1963
R1964
R1993
R1965

R2048
R2049
R2039

R2051

R2052

R2040
R2053
R2054
R2055
R2055
R2055
R2055
R2055
R2055
R2056
R7116
R7117

NUMBER
Odd
103

127 - 131
133-135
137-139

145
151
159

161-163
161-163

165

25-27

29

Even

130
132

142

164

22
24

26

28

30
32
34
34
34
34
34
34
48A-48B
50A
52

CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Previously Listed Heritage Places

STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET

MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET
MACQUARIE STREET

MURRAY STREET

MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET

MURRAY STREET

MURRAY STREET

MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET
MURRAY STREET

PLACE NAME

ANZ Bank (former
Commercial Bank of
Tasmania)

Mercantile Mutual
Building/Franklin Chambers

LISITNG TITLE

TYPE
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

National Mutual Life Building HCC/THC

Bishop Hay Memorial Centre HCC/THC

Church Offices (former
Deanery of St. David's
Cathedral)

J. Walch & Son Building

Tasmanian Club (former
Derwent Bank)

Stone Buildings
Stone Buildings
Stone Buildings
London Chambers

Queen Mary Club (former
Bank of Australasia)

Macquarie House / Birch's
House

Legacy House
Cullen House
Cullen House

St. Joseph's Roman Catholic
Church

Former Masonic Hall
Cathedral Chambers

Former Hobart Savings Bank

Former Derwent & Tamar
Insurance Building (plus iron
railings)

Victorian Tavern

Hadley's Hotel
Hadley's Hotel
Hadley's Hotel
Hadley's Hotel
Hadley's Hotel
Hadley's Hotel

NOTE: Places are shown with current addresses determined through Land Information System Tasmania (LIST).

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC

HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC
HCC/THC

NO.

50547

225873

22113

96100

108908

123695

32723

19542
50240
40522
51

105618

33810

123805
100208
100208
10799
34

37967
113967
34411

3211

32722

7839
19542
19542
129447
129447
208391
208394
50802
50802
80327
117327
80327

FOLIO
NO.
1

[+ + JR ST S

4324
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CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Previously Listed Heritage Places

THC NUMBER STREET PLACE NAME LISITNG TITLE FOLIO
Ref Odd Even TYPE NO. NO.
R2057 00-92 MURRAY STREET Former Bidencope's (listing  HCC/THC. . 109590 1

includes shop fittings)

R5226 112 MURRAY STREET Cow (former Bath [nn and THC 29586 3

Circus, and later Tattersall's
Hotel)
R2059 118 MURRAY STREET HCC/THC 129300 1
R2060 124 MURRAY STREET Offices (former Highfield HCC/THC  No title ref
House)
SANDY BAY ROAD
NO SITES LISTED
VICTORIA STREET
R2983 3 VICTORIA STREET Service Station THC 17 6901
R2097 9-11 VICTORIA STREET Victoria Chambers HCC/THC 86248 1
R2099 14-16 VICTORIA STREET HCC/THC 61101 1
R2098 15 VICTORIA STREET Heritage House HCC/THC 198644 1
WATCHORN STREET
NO SITES LISTED

A

NOTE: Places are shows with current addresses determined through Land Information System Tasmania (LIST).




APPENDIX D PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HERITAGE PLACES TO BE INCLUDED
ON SCHEDULE F - CITY OF HOBART PLANNING SCHEME 1982.




Ref. No.
C91
C95

C4

Cc47
C7

C33
Ca0
C46
Cco3
Co94

Cceo

Street No.

18-26
18-26

53-57

22-26
29
34-36
101-103
43

139

112

LIST OF INVENTORY SHEETS

Street Name
BATHURST STREET
BATHURST STREET
COLLINS STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
ELIZABETH STREET
HARRINGTON STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
LIVERPOOL STREET
MURRAY STREET

VICTORIA STREET

Place Name
Technical College (Dechaineaux Wing)
Technical College (George Mcintyre Hunter Wing)

Charter House (refer also Former Red Cross
House)

ANZ Bank (Former Broadcast House)

Former Bank of Australasia

Wellington Building (includes 98 Collins Street)
Conjoined Commercial Buildings

Police Office (former YMCA Gymnasium)
Formerly part of Tasmanian House

Cow (former Tattersall's Hotel)

Service Station




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart Gity Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Hobart Technical College (Dechaineaux Wing refer also THR R1690,
R6624 & R6463.
18-26 Bathurst Street Hobart HCC

Reference: (C9]

Original Use:  Education & Training Present Use:  Educarion & Training

Feature Type:  Technical College Architectural Style: Post-War (Stripped Cldssical influence)
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢/954 .
Floors: 4 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Brick/ Sandstone Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Bathurst Street, and is one of a group of historic structures that
Contribution:  are part of the former Hobart Technical College (now TAFE). Itisa prominent Post-War building located

within a multi-layered historic streetscape.

History:  The Dechaineaux Wing was designed by SWT Blythe in 1950, who was the key architectural consultant to the
Public Works Department. The building opened in January 1954. It was named after Lucien Dechaineux, the
first principal of the Hobart Technical College. Blythe was the head of architecture in the Hobart Technical
College at this time, and the School of Architecture was subsequently ro occupy part of this new wing.

Physical
Description:

Itis a four storey Post-War building with Stripped Classical design elements. These elements include an
emphatic portal, vertically divided bays and pilasters to the fagade. The building demonstrates similar
characteristics to the 1938 (George Hunter McIntyre Wing) in its materials, spacing and fenestration.

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

The building is part of a rare group of structures that are
physical evidence of a history of representative education
architecture spanning five decades.

(c)-Research Potential:

(d)-Representative of:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact late nineteenth-mid twentieth century
streetscape dominated by buildings linked with education
and training,

(g)-Association:

The Dechaineaux Wing is of historic heritage significance
because of its associations with SWT Blythe, and its
namesake Lucien Dechaineux, who was the first Principal
of the Hobart Technical College.

This building is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a three
storey brick Post-War building with Stripped Classical style
elements.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Hobart Technical College (George McIntyre Hunter Wing refer also THR  Reference: C95
R1690, R6624 & R6463 (including Cruikshank Building and Dechaineaux

Wing)
18-26 Bathurst Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Education & Training : Present Use:  Education & Training
Feature Type:  Technical College Architectural Style: Inter-War Art Deco
Integrity:  Predominantly intact. Construction Date: 1938
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Sandstone Attic: L1 Basement ™I
Streetscape The building is located ar the south-west corner of Bathurst and Campbell Streets., and is one of a group of

Contribution:  hisroric buildings that are part of the former Hobart Technical Coliege (now TAFE). It is a prominent Inter-
War building within a largely intact multi-layered historic streetscape.

History: The George Mclntyre Hunter Wing was named after the college council chairman. The land Sor the building
had been purchased in 1922 with the first section of the college being built in 1927 fronting Campbell Street.
The George Mcintrye Hunter Wing was built in 1938 and was designed by S.W.T. Blythe whilst he was part of
the Public Works Department. A.H. Tucker was also involved in the design.

Physical The George Mclntyre Hunter Wing is a two storey building with a half basement on Bathurst Street and has an

Description:  addition of a full basement level on the Campbell Street side. The building features large timber framed
windows, glass bricks on the half basement floor and circulation areas and reconstructed sandstone detailing.
The location of the staircases is expressed on the outside by streamlined vertical elements.

_______
I

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: ()-Community:

The building is part of a rare group of structures that are This site is of historic heritage significance because its
physical evidence of a history of representative education townscape associations are regarded as important to the
architecture spanning five decades. commaunity's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

The George McIntrye Hunter Wing is of historic heritage
significance because of its associations with SWT Blythe
and AH Tucker the Architects, George McIntyre Hunter
the College Council Chairman, and Lucien Dechaineux
who was the first Principal of the Hobart Technical College.

(d)-Representative of;

The George Mclntyre Hunter Wing is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a an Inter-War Art Deco technical college
building.

PLEASE NOTE y
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that ure not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Charter House (refer also Former Red Cross House) Reference: C4
53-57 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. There Construction Date: ¢/935

is a new glazed entrance door and
display window which are located in
original openings.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick Attic: [J Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is part of a larger properry that incorporates
Contribution the heritage listed former Red Cross House. Charter House makes an important contribution to the mostly
nineteenth/early rwentieth century streetscape of the area.

History: Charter House is located on land that was originally granted to Anthony Fenn Kemp, an officer of the NSW
Corps who came to Tasmania in 1816. In 1846 Kemp subdivided his property, and it was purchased by the
Lewis family who constructed a warehouse (later known as Red Cross House) and a residence by the late
1840s.  Charter House was built on land that was once the front vard and main access to the Lewis Samily
residence, which was positioned behind the warehouse. Charter House was connected to the City's sewerage
system in 1935. At the time it was owned by Col. Tasker. It later became the office of well-known Hobart
Architect Eric Round.

Physical A two storey Inter-War brick commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet that encircles the

Description:  building. The facade is richly decorated with various configurations of blue ‘clinker’ bricks. The words "Charter
House' are located directly below a geometric motif located at the centre-edge of the parapet. Windows are
timber-framed double-hung single-paned sashes. There is a large rectangular window with highlights flanked
by two double-hung sash windows to the first floor facade surrounded by polychromatic ornamentation. There
are two large original openings to the ground floor facade that are outlined by a single row of clinker bricks. A
solid mass of clinker bricks form a decorative base to the facade.

2

Wabere Yorr

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (D)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Charter House has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
lo a greater understanding of central Hobart's settlement,
given that the land upon which the structure stands was built
upon from the early nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of;
Charter House is of historic heritage significance because of
its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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storey face brick Inter-War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  ANZ Centre (formerly Broadcast House/Bursary Building - refer also Reference: C47
R1951 ANZ Bank (former Cominercial Bank of Tasmania)
22-26 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Governmental, Workplace/Trade and Exchange,
Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Complex ' Architectural Style: Inter-War Free Classical
Integrity: The building underwent re-development Construction Date: 1926

in 1989 with the construction of the
ANZ Centre. The 1926 facade is
predominantly intact.

Floors: 6 Roof: Not known Walls: Masonry/Render Attic: [] Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the western side of Elizabeth Street, and is one of a group of late nineteenth/early

Contribution twentieth century office buildings, with the exception of the Westpac building which is adjacent. The building is
a landmark structure and an integral part of the streetscape. It is already part of a listed site: the former
Commercial Bank of Tasmania at 103 Macquarie Street.

History:  This large office complex is located on land that was orignally granted to John George Briggs, who was given
one acre (approx.), and a smaller land parcel (11 perches) granted to John Fawkner. By the 1840s, the site was
built upon. There was a building known as Bank Chambers located on part of the site by the early 1900s, this
structure had a narrow frontage onto Elizabeth Street. In 1926, the building that currently occupies the site
was constructed. It was designed by local architectural firm, Salier, Glaskin and Ricards, and was built for the
Busaries Board of Tasmania. It subsequently became known as the Bursary Building. It was later occupied by
the Australian Broadcasting Commission including the radio station 7ZL. The building continued to be
occupied by ABC Radio until 1989, when it moved to new premises at the old Hobart Railway Station. Due o
the long occupation of ABC Radio, the building became known as Broadcast House. In 1989, however, the
building was re-named the ANZ Centre, when the site underwent major re-development, and a large office rower
was built at the rear and incorporated into the original building. An extra banking chamber of The Commercial
Bank located in Macquarie Street was demolished in 1989 to allow for the construction of the new office tower.

Physical It is a six storey masonry Inter-War Free Classical building that contains mixed shops and offices. It is an

Description:  example of period eclecticism, reflecred in the exaggerated bulging columns, the truncated arches over the first
floor windows, sash windows in the end bays and a Baroque scallop shell balcony on the roof top, which bears
the date of construction.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Scction 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early twentieth century commercial
streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; g)-Association:

The ANZ Centre at 22-26 Elizabeth is of historic heritage
significance because of its long association with ABC
Radio, which conducted many of its early broadcasts from
the building which it occupied by for many years.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

The ANZ Centre at 22-26 Elizabeth is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability (despite extensive
maodification) to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
six storey masonry Inter-War Free Classical office building.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (former Bank of Australasia) Reference: C7
29 Elizabeth Street Habart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Financial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Commercial Building (former bank) Architectural Style: Inter-War Commercial Palazzo
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  ¢/938
Floors: 35 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Render : Attic: ] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located at the north-eastern corner of Elizabeth and Collins Streets. It is a landmark structure

Contribution that dominates the entrance to Elizabeth Street Mall, which mostly contains two and three Storey buildings. The
structure is also a prominent feature of the Elizabeth and Collins Streets intersection, which is occupied by
other prominent historic landmark structures such as the former Westpac Bank at 38 Elizabeth Street.

History:  This building was constructed berween 1938 and 1940. The architects were the prominent architectural firm of
A and K Henderson of Melbourne. It was built for the Bank of Australasia, which occupied the building from its
completion in 1940 to 1960. The building was connected to the City's sewerage system in April of 1940. In
1960, internal modifications were carried out.

Physical A five storey brick and render building in the Inter-War Commercial Palazzo style. It is a corner office building

Description:  which has a steel frame clad completely in brickwork. The building has classical style elements, such as the
ground floor rendered mock coursing topped with an entablature. The date of the opening of the building
(1940} is inscribed on a fourth floor cornice.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer w Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early to mid twentieth century streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of;

29 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
five storey brick and render Inter-War Commercial Palazzo
office building.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is imtended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be & comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Wellington Building (includes 98 Collins Street - refer also R6462) Reference: (C92
34-36 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC

Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Feature Type:  Shops/Offices Architectural Style: [nter-War Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: o
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The building has two frontages, one on Elizabeth Street and the other on Collins Street. It is a prominent

Contribution:  element within the historic streetscape of the area.

History:  The Collins Street building was Jfirst connected to the reticulated sewerage system by 1908. It was owned at the
time by Messrs PO Fysh & Co. Further drainage worked were undertaken on this building in 1938, during
which time it was the property of Messrs Oldham, Beddome & Meredith Pry Ltd. House connection records
were unavailable for the Elizabeth Street building.

Physical This is a three storey retail building with two balanced bow windows over the upper two storeys and a shop front

Description: 10 the street as well as a side entry to the floors above from the street. There is an awning over the street and top
lights above giving light to the shop inside. The site also includes 98 Collins Street, a two storey brick building
with a first floor balcony and classical pilasters on the first floor as well as a mezzanine floor inside.

———

ENTRY IN REGISTER  (Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for tl pande(;:rileria.)

—_——

CRITERIA FOR
(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:
(b)-Rarity: (B-Community:

This site is of historic heritage significance because its
townscape associations are regarded as important to the
community's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of;

Wellington Building is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey Inter-War Free Classical
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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Name: Commercial Building (refer also THC datasheet R1906) Reference: C90
101-103  Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Habitation Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, with Construction Date:  ¢1845/c1900 o

the exception of the shop windows that
are modern additions.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Render Attic: []  Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street, and conjoined to an early nineteenth century

Contribution:  building which is part of the same property (refer THC datasheet R1906). The building is an important historic
element within a section of commercial streetscape that has been degraded over the years. It should be included
in the current listing for the property.

History: The building occupies land that was originally part of a large one acre (approx.) grant to Samuel Bate. This
site was built upon by the 1840s, occupied by one of rwo conjoined cottages, one of which (101 Harrington
Street) survives intact. Both buildings were connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system in May 1906, at
this time both were owned by Mr David Saunders. By 1921, further drainage works were carried out on 103
Harrington Street, with Mr William Long being the owner of the property at this time. By the early 1950s, both
conjoined buildings were part of the one property owned by Mr G Long. 103 Harrington Street is thought to
date from the 1840s, however is thought to have been rebuilt in the late nineteenth/early twentieth centuries into
a commercial premises. No HCC archived plans conld be found showing this re-construction.

Physical It is a single storey brick rendered Federation-style commercial building possibly with Victorian Georgian

Description:  fabric surviving. It has a gable roof clad with corrugated iron sheets. The facade has a classically-styled
paraper with a curved pediment located at the centre-edge. Below this is a cornice. There are two large shop
windows (one is multi-paned) positioned either side of a centrally-placed door with toplight.

B EE—

RITERIA FOR ENTRY I REISTR - ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:
103 Harrington Street (in conjunction with 101 Harrington
Street) has strong meaning for the community because it
contributes to a historically distinct nineteenth/early
twentieth century streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

{d)-Representative of;

103 Harrington Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a single storey brick/masonry Federation-
style commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Police Office (former YMCA Gyminasium - refer also R1670 Temple House) Reference: (46

43 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Recreation Present Use:  Police Services
Feature Type:  Gymnasium Architectural Style: Inter-War Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢/928
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Face Brick/Stucco . Attic: [ Basement []
Streetscape This building is located on the eastern side of Argyle Street, berween the Jewish Synagogue and Temple House.

Contribution It is now part of the Tasmania Police Southern District Headquarters, and is to be added to the current heritage
listing of the property, which includes Temple House. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
historic streetscape of the area.

History:  The building stands on land that was originally granted John Milward. This I rood and 27.5 perch allotment
was built upon by Joseph and Judah Solomon in 1825, who constructed a large residence, later known as
Temple House, on the site. This large Old Colonial Regency mansion and grounds was purchased by the Young
Men's Christian Association (YMCA) in 1921, after having been occupied by the same family for over 100
years. The new owners of the property almost immediately set about transforming the site into a recreation
centre by constructing a gymnasium on land that was originally used for a vegerable garden, and occupied by
various outbuildings, such as brick stables and sheds. The architects of this building, which was constructed
c1928, were Johnston and Crawford. The property was occupied by the YMCA until 1964, when it was
acquired by Tasmania Police.

Physical A single storey face brick Inter-War Free Classical former gymasium, now used as police offices. The roof is

Description:  concealed by a parapet, design features of which include a triangular panel at the centre flanked by other
angular panels which together create a geometrical silhouette. There are plaster triangles positioned at either
end of the parapet, which were formally the recognised symbol of the YMCA. The prominence of the parapet is
heightened because it is stuccoed, which is in contrast to the face brick used throughout most of the facade.
There is a wide-spanning triangular pediment to the top part of the facade, this connects with two pilasters. This
pediment is rendered and is decorated with dentils. An oval accent window is located di rectly below the apex of
the pediment. It is surrounded with a wide moulded architrave, and rests upon a plaster ornamental panel
consisting of an arrow entwined with a stylised ribbon and a wreath. A row of four casement windows with
highlights and wide rendered architraves are located below the accent window. A rusticated ashlar sandstone
plinth completes the Argvle Street facade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Scetion 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
Streefscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

This former YMCA gymnasium at 43 Liverpool Street has the
potential to yield important informnation, of an archaeological
nature, that may contribute to a greater understanding of the
early settlement of Hobart because it is located on land that
was once part of a residential property established in the

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended (o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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1820s. It may also provide information on the early twentieth
century recreational activities, specifically in relation to YMCA
in Tasmania.

(d)-Representative of:

The former YMCA Building located in Argyle Street but part
of 43 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal character of
a single storey Inter-War face brick gynmasium.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly part of Tasmanian House - refer also R6002 Reference: C93

& R2058)
139 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop 2 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Intér-War Art Deco
Integrity:  The original Victorian Georgian facade Construction Date: ¢1852

has been built over with a rendered
masonry Inter-War Art Deco facade.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Rendered Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, near the corner of Murray Street. It is one of a
Contribution:  group of commercial premises dating from the mid nineteenth century and is a prominent element within the
historic streetscape of the area.

History: Tasmanian House was erected in 1852 by William Burgess and Hugh Barrett. It replaced their earlier grocery
business established on the same location in 1846. It stands on land originally granted to Thomas James
Crouch and John Hiddlestone. The Burgess family owned and/or occupied this corner site from the 1840s to ar
least the 1950s. The main store of Burgess and Barrett was located in the section of the building located at the
corner of Murray and Liverpool Street, and became known as Foley’s Corner in the 1920s; occupied by Foleys
Proprietory Limited Ladies and Gent's Tailors and Mercers. 139 Liverpool Street was acquired and
incorporated into the Burgess' commercial complex in the mid nineteenth century. It remained part of the
business until the late nineteenth century. A tobacconist shop kept by John White operated from 139 Liverpool
Street from 1857 until the 1920s. An Inter-War Art Deco facade was added to the building around this time, a
trend that transformed many nineteenth century commercial premises within central Hobart. In 1990,
alterations were made to the ground floor shopfront of 139 Liverpool Street. Glass was used for the entire
shopfront.

Physical A three storey rendered masonry Victorian Georgian commercial premises with Inter-War Art Deco facade. The

Description:  roof is concealed by a stepped parapet, and there is a circular Art Deco motif to the centre of the parapet above
the second floor window line. There are two evenly spaced double-hung single-paned windows to both the first
and second floors, and a boxed-awning sheltering a modern glazed shopfront.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for llcxcd criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

139 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important The Burgess family had a long association with Tasmanian
archaeological information of central Hobart due to it being  House (which incorporated 139 Liverpool Street). As one
part of the Tasmanian House complex, which has a rich of the leading merchant families of the nineteenth century,
mercantile history dating from the mid nineteenth century. they played an important part in Hobart’s early history.

(d)-Representative of:

This building is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability (despite modification) to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey rendered masonry Victorian
Geogian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE .
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Cow (formerly Tattersall's Hotel refer also R5226) Reference: C94
112 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Horel Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Inter-War Free Style
Integrity:  Modified internally, facade Construction Date: ¢lI857/ci921 o
predominantly intact
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the western side of Murray Street, and is an important element within a largely intact
Contribution:  historic commercial streetscape.

History: This was the site of Australia's earliest circus (Radford 's Circus) established in 1848. A public house is known
to have occupied this site from 1857. It was first licensed as the Bath Arms. It later traded as Tattersall's Hotel,
and under went re-construction, with a new facade being built in c1921.

Physical This is a three storey inner city hotel symmetrically composed with prominent piers terminating in an
Description:  ornamental paraper. There is a balcony on the first floor. The composition relies heavily on the bracketed oriel

windows on the first and second floors.

& CRITERIA

(a)-Historical:

FOR ENT

bk | !

RY IN REGISTER #( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it demonstrates aspects of early twentieth century society.
(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:
112 Murray Street has the potential to yield important This site is of historic cultural heritage significance
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute because of its association with Australia's first circus of
to a greater understanding of central Hobart early history 1848.

(d)-Representative of:

This building is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a three
storey stuccoed Inter-War Free Style hotel.

PLEASE NOTE

‘This data sheel is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage valus of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Service Station

3 Victoria Street

Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Hobart

Present Use:

Reference: C69
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Feature Type:  Service Station Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian/ Inter-War Free
) Classical ..
Integrity:  Office sections date from c1815 and are Construction Date: 1928
predominantly intact whilst other
sections date from the 1920s and lare
1930s, and are representative of that
period. There is a car-port of modern
metal construction.
Floors: | Roof: Corrugated Iron/Tiles Walls:  Masonry/Render Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The Service Station is located on the eastern side of Victoria Street and is an important historic element within

Contribution

History:

the streetscape, which is predominantly composed of nineteenth/early rwentieth century office buildings.

Sections of the Victoria Street Service Station were originally outbuildings to Macquarie Hotel. Macquarie

Horel, located at 151 Macquarie Street, was built in 1815-16 by Thomas William Birch twelve years after the
settlement of Hobart. The service station was constructed in 1928, the architect was D Hartley Wilson. The
Kiosk was constructed later in 1939. Ir is one of the oldest Service Stations in Hobart.

Physical
Description:

A single storey masonry rendered Inter-War Service Station with some buildings dating from the Old Colonial
Georgian period converted during the Inter-War period. It has a forecourt occupied by a Kiosk building with
classical columns and Roman-tile roof. The whole represents the play with styles and materials that
characterised much service station architecture of the period.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER

(a)-Historical:

3 Victoria Street is of historic heritage significance because of
its ability to demonstrate pattern of Hobart's early settlement.

(b)-Rarity:

3 Victoria Street is of historic heritage significance as a rare
example of a Inter-War Service Station. The rarity of this
structure is compounded due to the fact that it is part of a

Colonial Georgian residence, one of the first substantial
residences built in Hobart,

(c)-Research Potential:

The site may contains subsurface deposits which date from the
early period of settlement, and have the potential to yield
important information that may contribute to a greater
understanding of Hobart's early settlement.

(d)-Representative of:

The Service Station at 3 Victoria Street is of heritage value as a
rare surviving representative example of an Inter-War Service
Station.

( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(g)-Association:

The site has important and significant associations with
people prominent in Tasmania's european history, such as
Governor Lachlan Macquarie, Governor Sorell, and
Thomas William Birch.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




APPENDIX E INCONSISTENCIES IN SCHEDULE F — CITY OF HOBART
PLANNING SCHEME 1982 o
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CENTRAL AREA HERITAGE REVIEW
Inconsistencies in Schedule F - City of Hobart Planning Scheme 1982

THC NUMBER STREET PLACE NAME LISITNG TITLE FOLIO NOTES

Ref Odd Even TYPE NO. NO.

R1762 184 COLLINS STREET Former Chapel HCC/THC 48531 2 This address has changed from 184 Collins Street (address in Schedule F) to
180-184 Collins Street,

R1780 41 DAVEY STREET Family Court of Australia = HCC/THC 249737 1 This address has changes from 41 Davey (address in Schedule F) 1o 39-41

(former Trades Hall) Davey Street.

ELIZABETH STREET

R1855 18-20 ELIZABETH STREET CML Building HCC/THC 70808 1 This address has changed from 18-20 Elizabeth address in Schedule F) to 18
Elizabeth Street.
MACQUARIE STREET
R1955 127-139A MACQUARIE STREET Stone Buildings HCC/THC 19542 1 This address has changed from 127-139A Macquarie Street (address in

Schedule F) to 127-131 Macquarie Street; 133-135 Macquarie Street; 137-139
Macquarie Street.

R1959 127-139A MACQUARIE STREET Stone Buildings HCC/THC 40522 1 This address has changed from 127-139A Macquarie Street (address in
Schedule F) to 127-131 Macquarie Street; 133-135 Macquarie Street; 137-139
Macquaric Street,

R1959 127-139A MACQUARIE STREET Stone Buildings HCC/THC 50240 1 This address has changed from 127-139A Macquarie Street (address in
Schedule F) to 127-131 Macquaric Street; 133-135 Macquarie Street; 137-139
: Macquarie Street,

R1960 143-145 MACQUARIE STREET Queen Mary Club (former HCC/THC 105618 1 This address has changed from 143-145 Macquarie Street (address in Schedule
Bank of Australasia) F) to 145 Macquarie Street.
R2055 34-38 MURRAY STREET Hadley's Hotel HCC/THC 129447 1 The address has changed from 34-38 Murray Street (address in Schedule F) to

34 Murray Street.

R2055 34-38 MURRAY STREET Hadley's Hotel HCC/THC 129447 2 The address has changed from 34-38 Murray Street (address in Schedule F)to
34 Murray Street.

R2055 34-38 MURRAY STREET Hadley's Hotel HCC/THC 208391 1 The address has changed from 34-38 Murray Street (address in Schedule F) to
34 Murray Street.

R2055 34-38 MURRAY STREET Hadley's Hotel HCC/THC 208394 1 The address has chunged from 34-38 Murray Street (address in Schedule F) to

34 Murray Street.

LS ]

NOTE: Addresses listed in this spreadsheer are taken directly from Schedule F.
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CENTRAL AREA HERTIAGE REVIEW

Inventory of Significant Places

Street Na_r_ﬂe

Place Name

Collection No.

Street No.

1117

60

7

| 48-51
o5
44-48

74

Collins Street

_ Collins Street

_ ARGYLE STREET

frgyle Siree

i

ArgyleStrest

_ BATHURST STREET

Bathurst Street

i

'BROOKER AVENUE

Brooker Avenue

(COLLINS STREET

i Collins Street
‘Collins Street

| .Col]ins Street

Coliins Street

| Collins Slreet
éCoIIin_s Street

i

éCc:Ilins Street

{

‘Callins Street

Gollns Sireet
Collins Sreet
ELIZABETH STREET
Elizabeth Strest

‘ Elizabeth Street

;Elizabe_i[j Street

:Elizabeth Street

§Elizabeth Street

;_EIiz_apeth Street

! Elizabeth Sireet

_ ;Gq!liqs Street )

& )fCommercia] Building _ ’ . . i

_ éCgmmercial Building (formerly Asmor Guesthouse)

,Fountain and Sunken Garden

__E__I_\_nc__:]_aren's Hotel facade - refer also C5 Dljysd__alghl-lqgsgi .

‘Commercial Building

Commercial Build‘r_n_g

i

Commercial Building (formerly Duke of Yark Tavern

i

C50

!
i

AWa[Is Habart Fiivule_t . S :'CS

i

Drysdale House facade (refer also C73 McLaren's Hote) ~'cs

C73

-Coqggp's Depanment Store

i Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department. Store - refer |
:also C61 and C81) _ ‘cas
3Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department Store - refer
JHIBTERS and bet) N B .
| Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department Store - refer|
/€48 and C81) - ;8

o4

__tgpmm_s_rc_i_a_l_uB”uilding (formerly Cemreway_Ar_cggg) 7 C72

_ ;ForfperAgricultural Bank of Tasmania o ;CE

~ Commercial Building _ 7 - _'CB

{Commercial Building

‘{Cs9

K_M;Commercial Building o
i Kent House _ _ ~ ¢cs

.Kodak House 7 . C9 7

‘Commercial Building c10

~ Commerical Building_ _ G11
] EBanj‘o'_su Bakery (Formerly Cripps' Hygi_galj'[c:_usgkery)
Commercial Building (facade only) :C12

Cane's Buildings

ceo

gl

_Cs8

,C87

52

Ct9

i
i
i




CENTRAL AREA HERTIAGE REVIEW

Inventory of Significant Places

Sire_é{ No

L. wzﬁ'ﬂ"inﬂt‘?“?‘_?‘*?‘_
:7?-81 o Harrington Street
183 iHaFf?EEFF?,E,?t??Et
'85 - :Ha[ri‘pg_ton Street
5?5&. | Harrington Street

87-93 :Harrington Street

17 ELiverpocI Street

19-29 Liverpool Street

231'41 : ;LW.‘?TF’.".‘?F,?V??*
4957 gLi\;'erhp‘:_onc?“l ‘S‘i'l"'eet
957 Lierpon s
5963 éLiverpgoI Street

67 \ Liverpool Street

LR

Liverpool Street
1105-107 | Liverpool Street

117 Liverpool Street
i |

119 _ é_Lis_r_erpooI Street

121 i ' Liverpool Street

|

131-133  Liverpool Street

135  Liverpool Street -

i

f141 ~ iLiverpool Strest

143 Liverpool Street

1159-161 | Liverpool Street

;183-167 ' Liverpool Street
179 Liverpool Street
181-181A

185 ~Liverpool Street

 Street Name

__|HARRINGTON STREET

5 113 ‘Harrington Street

_LIVERPOOLSTREET |

Liverpool Street

; fPl'éceiNa'm_g;

Commercial Building - : B .Cs57

§Commerc:ialr Building _ Cs6

_ (Commer.cial Building Cs55

‘Commercial Building - Cs4

Commercial Bulling Cs3

Wignall's Buildings 7 ‘c52

| Commercial Building 7 — C51

i

i} MenzieE qunt_ra (formerly Mather's DomainMqu['E) -

Commercial Buiding B . Cee

iy Police Station R L.

Commercial Building (refer also C 74) _Cc1s

H

o tCommet Bliding Ireteraln Gl e [OT

‘Commercial Building o , G117

: Brunswick Hotel _ e C1 8

[ Tasmania House C42

. Commercil Buiiding (iormer Sapphire Bakoom) _Cat

DevonHouse o o ST

‘Commercial Building C39 _

%Commercial Building Gas

Commerclal Building (formeriynp;‘;'..-rt of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also!
e O s RS ...
:Commercial Building (formerly part of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also.
1035) . SR ...

Commercial Building {formerly Wellington Buildings - refer also C33) 3034
;an]mercial Building (formerly W_e_llingutqn House - refer also 034_) \ (333

SRl Bulldigs S {5

i
i
i

‘Christian City Church (formerly The Strand Theatre/Odeon) e
' Commercial Building _ o B C44

‘Commercial/Residential Building o C43

{Gommerclal Building S S5

§
!

Collection No.




CENTRAL AREA HERTIAGE REVIEW
Inventory of Significant Places

Street No.-

187 fLiverpooI Street Commercial Building .. C3H

i

1189 |Liverpool Street B _égqmmercial Building (formerly Rainbow Inn/Tavern) - CBS o

s | f é

64-68 -Liverpool Street - ‘Bank Arcade - 915

Ssteethame | pwedame | colletonino,

70 Liverpool Strest ‘Commercial Building 7 G4 i

{
i

372 iLiverpooi Street 'Alabama Hotel - c13 |

gy  Liverpool Street e JOOmmErCiAl Buldng R e ]

%92 Liverpool Street ;Cormmerclal Building 7 =2

94 _ Liverpool Street Co_mmercial Building _ 7 ;Ga3

i

120 Liverpool Street .. [Femmersial Bullding . S .

§134 _ | Liverpoal Street fCornrnercial Building S C28

96 Liverpool Street ’Commermal | Building o 024__

110 : Liverpool Street o ECDmrrrercieI Building _ . o ic26

138 Liverpool Street . Commercial Building ) ) Cas

(168 | Liverpool Street ‘ Commercral Building (formerly His Majesty’s Theatre) o 7 CSO

MACQUARIE STREET

%91 -93 Macquarie Street The Mercury Building %(;33

153 _ MacquaieStrest  Marengo — (ce7 .

1157 Macquarie Street %Astor Private Hotel o %CGG

i

i

MURRAY STREET | o

| | |
;31-31‘5 ‘Murray Stree_t ] VEVCOmmerciaI Building )

'

49-51 gMurray Street - Club Chambers {Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C70, C78, C79, CBO) | ce2

Cat and Fiddle Square (Cat and Fiddle Arcade refer also Ce2, CTB |

49-51 Murray Street |C79, G80) C70

Commencal Burlding (Cat and Frddle Arcade - refer aiso (362 CTO C?Q

3 i : Commerical Building (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also ceé2, C?Cl, C?B, |
49-51 Murray Street CBO) c79

s Cleburne House (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C62, CTO C7B
4951 Murray Strest 679 |cao

‘Myer Department Store (leerpool Street Facedes - refer also C?S CTS. !

55-59 Murray Street ~ |C77 and C88) 7 _Cas

| : Myer Department Store (Lirrerpool Street Facades - refer also C25, C78, .
:55-59 éMurray_ Street _cry and C88) C75

i fMyer Department Store (leerpool Street Facades refer also 025 C?5 |
/55-59 ‘Murray Street _ (C77 and 088) gcm

i Myer Depertment Store (Murray Street Facade also refer 625 C?E i
'55-59 {Murray Stree} ‘ C76 and C88) 'CT7

iCue and Jacqueline Eve Sﬁops (part of Myer Department Store Property
55-59 Murray Street o {(Murray Street Facades - refer also C25, C75, C?G? C77) css

4951 Muray Strest ~ c8o) cr8




CENTRAL AREA HERTIAGE REVIEW
Inventory of Significant Places

%67769 7 | Murray Street

71 Murray Street

6 \Victoria Street

" .. Strest Name i b T :PléceNamB'

Str__eetNu-._:_:: 5

|

& Commercjg] Building

'VICTORIA STREET

'Commercial Bullding {formerly Victoria Hall)

Collection No.

‘cas

=

C65

—



Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Comunercial Building Reference: C1
11-17 Argyle Street Hobart Hobart
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop Architectural Style: Inrer-War
Integrity: The ground floor shopfront has dlso Construction Date: ¢1912

been modified with the introduction of
large metal-framed display windows

and glazed doors.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Render Attic: [] Basement [J
Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Argyle Street, and is an important element within the mixed

Contribution streetscape of the area, which is comprised of buildings dating from the Colonial, Victorian, Inter-War and
Modern periods.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to Charles Swanston. It was connected to the City's
sewerage system in 1912, at the time being owned by the Estate of George Adams (of Tattersall’s fame). By the
1920s, the building was occupied by The Medhurst Electrical Works and Telephone Company. This company
was formed in 1911, and undertook major projects including electrical services at the Electrolytic Zinc
Company at Risdon and the Carbide Plant at Electrona. By the mid-1940s, the building was owned by Mr R
Evans, and occupied by the National Service Office.

Physical It is a two storey rendered brick Inter-War commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet. At the

Description:  centre of the parapet is a rectangular moulding with 'RE Evans Refrigerator House' written in plaster lettering.
The facade is divided into three bays defined by pilasters. There is a three-paned window with highlights to the
central bay, flanked by single-paned windows with highlights. A solid and classically stvled cornice is a Sfeature
of the two flanking bays. The ground floor facade comprises large metal-framed windows and glazed doors.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer ta Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criterin.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:

11-17 Argyle Street has strong meaning for the community

because contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
mixed streetscape, composed of intact commercial buildings
dating from the nineteenth/ early to late twentieth centuries.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of*

11-17 Argyle Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey rendered brick Inter-War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Habart 7001

Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Duke of York Tavern) Reference: C§2
60 Argyle Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Public House Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian -
Integrity:  Although the building has undergone Construction Date: ¢1837

considerable internal and external
alterations, the basic form of the
historic building is discernable.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Render Attic: ] Basement W)

Streetscape The building is located in Argyle Street ar the south-western corner of the intersection with Bathurst Street, It is
Contribution:  one of two early nineteenth century buildings that frame this busy intersection, and is a prominent historic
element within the streetscape of the area.

History: This building is present on both the Plan of Hobart Town 1839 by Frankland, and James Sprent’s survey of
Hobart Town 1841-1845. Robertson confirms that the Duke of York Hotel was erected before 1845. It stands
on land originally granted ro William Wilson. The public house was licensed as the Kensington Inn in 1837,
and kept this name up until 1906, when it was renamed the Duke of York Hotel to commemorate the visit of the
Duke of York to Hobart. At the time, the property was owned by George Adams' Estate with DH Harvey as the
trustee. By 1919, Mr Sagar Whittles owned the property, by this time there was a single storey structure at the
rear of the building. This was modified so that two internal walls were removed to expand the kitchen area. An
old shed located at the eastern side of this structure was demolished and replaced with a laundry and toilets. A
second storey was added to the existing single storey, this contained a bedroom and bathroom. Stables were
situated at the rear of the pub at this time. Some time berween 1919 and 1941, while the property was still
owned by Mr Sagar Whittles, a huge two storey extension was made to the hotel, nearly doubling the floor area -
plans for this extension could not be found in the HCC Plan Archives. In 1947, the ground floor bar and
entrance were remodelled. Two new fireplaces were installed in the bar area, and one in the dining room.
Internal walls leading from the main entrance were demolished. Wooden floors were replaced with concrete in
several places. The first floor bedroom constructed in 1919 was converted into a toilet. An internal wall was
also demolished on the first floor. By this time the property owner was Mr JE Watt. In 1975, according to the
building specifications, fireplaces were to be removed, hence the probable removal of a chimney (not verified by
inspection). Some attempt, however, was made to retain the original features. Existing doors and windows
were 1o remain where possible, and a fanlight was to be installed above a new entrance way. Plans for the
construction of a cool room were submirred in 1980.

Physical A two storey brick rendered Old Colonial Georian public house. It has a roof of corrugated iron that is hidden

Description: by a paraper that wraps around the building. The corner of the building, facing the intersection of Argvle and
Bathurst Streets, is splayed. Like so many public houses of the period, the main entrance was probably
originally located at this corner, it is now a solid wall occupied with signage.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER 8 ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

60 Argyle Street is of historic heritage significance because it
has the ability to illustrate the evolutionary pattern and
development of public houses within central Hobari, This
ability stems from the fact that there has been a public house
located on this prominent corner site for aver 160 years.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient informalion and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:
Despite alteration, the structure at 60 Argyle Street makes a

significant contribution to the streetscape of the area, and
therefore is important to the community's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

60 Argyle Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early public houses of central
Hobart and Hobart's early society.

(d)-Representative of;

Despite alteration, 60 Argyle Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Old Colonial Georgian public

house.

PLEASE NOTE )
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage RBTJiB'ZU Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Asmor Guesthouse) Reference: C83
34 Bathurst Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Habitation Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Office/Shop : Architectural Style: Vicrorian Georgian
Integrity: The exterior of the building has been Construction Date:  ¢1845

modified, the original face brick surface
has been rendered, and original
windows and doors ro the facade have
been replaced. The original shape and
Sform of this structure is discernable
despite the modifications.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Render Attic: ] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Bathurst Street ar the intersection with Argyle Street (SE corner).
Contribution: It is one of two early nineteenth buildings that frame this prominent and busy intersection, and makes an
important contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area.

History: The building stands on land originally granted to Robert Jeffery, who is also likely to have built the structure,
which was originally a house and shop. According to The Captain, "Crossing over Liverpool Street, Robert
Jeffery owned a house, and also the house on the corner of Bathurst Street which was a shop. Richard Berry
was in the shop.” Robertson’s recollection differs somewhat, according to him, "*Asmor’ at the corner - was
owned by John Wood in 1845 and was long after an inn. The Assessment Rolls confirm that Robert Jeffery
owned and occupied the house and shop from 1847 1o 1860. In 1872 it was owned by Philip Allen, and from
1882 to 1901 Maria Allen was the owner. The building was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system
by July 1907; the owner at the time was Mrs Annie L.E. Crawford. Further drainage works were completed in
1920, and by the 1930s, ‘Asmor’ functioned as a guesthouse. By 1940, Mr VR Davidson was the owner, and by
the early 1950s the building was owned and occupied by the Hobart Club. This club occupied the building until
the 1980s. Although the building has been modified over time, there are no plans of alteration within the
Council’s Archival Planning Inventories (1920s-1992). A general idea of the modifications that have taken
place can be gained from two photographs; one dating from the 1930s, the other taken in 1983, In the 1930s,
external modifications o the building appear to have been minimal as its Georgian features had been rerained.
On the first storey, there were seven 12-paned sash windows defined by painted sandstone lintels and sills. A
large window or balcony (photo unclear) was located on the first floor at the SW side of the building. On the
ground floor, at the centre of the northern facade was a crescent shaped awning sheltering a large entrance.
One large chimney was located at the southern side of the building. By 1983, while the original shape and form
of the building was intact, its Georgian features (such as original face brick work, windows and doors) were
gone. The building had been rendered and modern windows and doors had been firted. Glass bricks were used
in six windows, and two short strips of these are a feature of the splayed corner wall. In 1989, a canvas awning
was erected over a doorway on the northern facade.

Physical A two storey brick rendered Victorian Georgian corner office building with hipped roof clad with corrugated
Description:  iron. The corner of the building facing the intersection of Bathurst and Argyle Streets is splayed. There are two
double doorways at the northern face of the building, one of these is sheltered by an awning.

B CRITERIA FO TRY IN REGISTER M ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:
Despite alteration, the structure at 34 Bathurst Street makes

a significant contribution to the streetscape of the area, and
therefore is important to the community's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

34 Bathurst Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial premises of
central Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

Despite alteration, 34 Bathurst Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georian commercial
building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Fountain and Sunken Garden Reference: C50

Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:
Floors:
Streetscape

Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

Brooker Avenue Hobart HCC
Recreation/Memorial Present Use: Recreation/Memorial

Fountain and garden Architectural Style: Lare Twentieth Century

Predominantly intact. Construction Date: 1963

n/a Roof: n/a Walls: Concrete/Paint ' Attic: [] Basement [

The fountain is located within a roundabout ar the intersection of the Brooker and Tasman Highways. Thereis
a sunken garden within the roundabout, and the fountain is located at the centre. It is a prominent feature of
what is one of the main entrances to the City, and as such is a valuable historic landmark element.

The fountain was erected by the citizens of Hobart as a tribute to the Mayors and Lord Mayors of Hobart since
1833. The structure appears to have been planned for some time before its construction, as it was part of the
Park Street reconstruction which included the building of dual carriageways compliant with modern Motorway
standards of the time, which created a new northern approach to the City. Construction of the roundabout
commenced in c1960, and it became the focal point of the northern entrance to the City. Included within this
complex was a network of pedestrian subways which ran through the roundabout to and from the Railway
Station. The fountain was designed by three citizens of Hobart, sponsored by the City Development Association,
built by public subscription and the Hobart City Council. It was originally illuminated with 92 lights which
played in various colours on the 120 fountain jets. The 44 feet high fountain was 'switched on' by Sir Stanley
Burbury KBE on 4 February 1963. The sunken garden surrounding the fountain was designed and planted in
1962 by the HCC Reserves Department. The Reserves Department planted lawns, colourful shrubs and
selected rockery plants. Miniature rockeries composed of colourful Tasmanian stone collected from all parts of
the island were created, and were intended on giving visitors an indication of the varied material available for
garden display.

This Late Twentieth Century fountain is of concrete construction, and has a 'spaceship’ design. It has a round
base and is supported on approximately eight pillars. There is a centrally placed 'spire’ set within a round
pool, that is illuminated. There are eight plaques around the fountain base with the names of the Mayors and
Lord Mayors of Hobart since 1853. It is part of a sunken-garden, the circular design of which is reinforced by a
series of stone retaining walls.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(D-Community:

The Fountain on the Brooker Avenue has strong meaning
for the community because it is part of a prominent
entrance to the City of Hobart, created in the late twentieth
century as part of a broader public works scheme of
highway construction. It is also of secial significance
because it is a long-standing memorial to the Mayors and
Lord Mayors of Hobart constructed by the citizens of
Hobart; and a prominent recreation area.

(c)-Research Potential: g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

PLEASE NOTE

‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Walls Hobart Rivulet Reference: C3
Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Services, Sewage and drainage Present Use:  Services, Sewage and drainage
Feature Type:  Rivulet Walls Architectural Style: Old Colonial period
Integrity: Predominantly intact. 7 Construction Date: ¢/825
Floors: N/A Roof: N/A Walls:  Brick/Stone ' Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The Hobart Rivulet runs along an open stone-lined channel in Collins Street, berween Argyle and Campbell

Contribution Streets. It is an important historic and aesthetic element within the streetscape of the area.

History: The Hobart Rivulet once flowed along what is now Market Place and emptied into the Derwent River to the
eastern side of Hunter Island. In the 1820s, however, the course of the rivulet was substantially altered. By
1824, work had begun on the 'New Cut', in which a stone-lined channel was constructed down the middle of
Collins Street to Park Street (now Brooker Avenue). John Lee Archer, Colonial Government Architect was
responsible for this work. The rivulet was joined via this channel with the Park Rivulet, and together the
watercourses flowed into the Derwent River along what is now Evans Street. A single arched bridge was built
over Collins Street at Campbell Street to allow traffic across the New Cut; this was known as the Palladio
Bridge. Wapping was essentially created by this first diversion, as land was able to be reclaimed and later
subdivided.

Physical The only place in the central area where the Hobart Rivulet is visible is along Collins Street, between Argyle ana

Description:  Campbell Streets. A section of the stone-lined channel, built in the 1820s to contain the rivulet, is exposed along
Collins Street, outside the Royal Hobart Hospital. The Campbell Street bridge built over the New Cut is visible
under the road surface when looking along the rivuler down Collins Street towards the Wapping District.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  { Refer to Scction 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

The open stone-lined section of the Hobart Rivulet that runs The open stone-lined section of the Hobart Rivuler that runs
along Collins Street between Argyle and Campbell Streets is of along Collins Street between Argyle and Campbell Streets

historic heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrates a high level of technical skill, as the New Cut
demonstrate the development of the Sullivans Cove and was a significant early engineering work in the town. Both
Wapping areas. the section of open stone-lined channel and the Palladio

Bridge contain evidence of stone working and construction
techniques representative of the Old Colonial period.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

The open stone-lined section of the Hobart Rivulet that runs
along Collins Street between Argyle and Campbell Streets
has strong meaning for the community because it makes an
important contribution to the streetscape of Hobart's central
area.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

The open stone-lined section of the Hobart Rivulet that runs
along Collins Street between Argyle and Campbell Streets has
the potential to yield important information, of an
archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater
understanding of early engineering work in Hobart,
specifically in relation to water supply and drainage systems.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Drysdale House facade (refer also C73 McLaren's Hotel) Reference: C5
59-63 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Education and Training, Government
Feature Type:  Training College ) Architectural Style: Victorian/Inter-War
Integrity:  The facade of this building is the only Construction Date:  ¢1892

substantial original element of the
structure that survives. The facade has
been modified and reconstructed in
recent years.

Floors: 2 Roof: n/a Walls: Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape Drysdale House facade is part of a larger complex, which also encompasses the former McLaren's Hotel. Two

Contribution separate datasheets have been prepared for both sites even though they are part of the same property (refer C5
& C73. Drysdale House is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is an important historic element
within the largely nineteenti/early twentieth century streetscape.

History:  After an early land dispute, the allotment now occupied by Drysdale House was conveyed to John Jackson and
Hugh Addison in 1839. By this time there were two houses located on the site that had been constructed
berween 1831 and 1833. One of these houses functioned as a printing office by 1838 until the 1880s. In 1890
the Hobart Stock Exchange purchased the site, and later constructed a striking building which is thought to
have incorporated parts of the two 1830s houses. The architect for this project was Mr HD Minnis, and the
builder Mr W Duncan. The newly constructed facade was described at the time in The Mercury: "An elegant
tower has been erected on the centre of the building, and running out from either side is a handsome
ornamental balustrade ending in smaller towers at each end of the building. Over the facade are the words
'Hobart Stock Exchange'." The building was completed in 1892, however was later morgaged and sold to
George Adams (of Tattersall's) in 1902. The building was purchased by the Hobart Gas Company in c1910,
and additions and alterations were made o the premises during the 1920s and 1930s. In 1954 the property was
purchased by Mr Arthur Drysdale. Major alterations were completed by Drysdale between 1954 and 1960.
There was dramatic change made to the facade. The ornate cornice and its tower were removed, and the attics
replaced by a third floor, which provided room for a flat. The building became the centre for Drysdale's
Tasmanian Lotteries, however, was leased by the Tasmanian Government for use as offices from 1965 until
1973. In 1973, Mrs Nora Drysdale-Bates spent $350,000 renovating the building into a restaurant and function
centre. The business was later purchased as a going concern by the Tasmanian Government in 1975, to become
part of the School of Hospitality. The building was re-developed in the late 1970s and the early 1990s by the
State Government in an attempt to create a modern teaching facility.

Physical Drysdale House facade is of masonry construction with a stucco finish. It is symmetrically proportioned, with
Description:  nwo orderly rows of double-hung sash windows decorated with plaster cornices. The ornamentation to the
ground floor is more more intricate than that of the first floor.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer (o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

Drysdale House is of historic heritage significance because it
has the ability to demonstrate the early development of central
Hobart's settlement.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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streetscape.
{c)-Research Potential; (g)-Assaciation:
Drysdale House has the potential to yield important Drysdale House has an important association with the
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute Hobart Stock Exchange, Hobart Gas Company, and with
to a greater understanding of aspects of Hobart's history. Mr Arthur Drysdale, who made an important contribution

to Tasmania, employing hundreds of peaple across all his
business enterprises. His contribution to the hotel and
tourist trade is particularly noteworthy.

(d)-Representative of:

Despite alteration and reconstruction, Drysdale House facade
is of historic heritage significance because it is representative
of the ornate and exuberant late Victorian style.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  McLaren's Hotel facade - refer also C5 Drysdale House. Reference: C73
59-63 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Present Use: Education and training, Public
Commercial/Entertainment
Feature Type:  Hotel Facade : Architectural Style; Inrer-War
Integrity:  The hotel has been extensively Construction Date: 1924

reconstructed and added to. The
facade, however, is substantially intact,

Floors: 2 Roof: N/A Walls: Brick/Paint/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape McLaren's Hotel facade is part of a larger complex, which also encompasses the former Drysdale House. Two

Contribution separate datasheets have been prepared for both sites even though they are part of the same property.
McLaren's Hotel facade is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is an important historic element
within the largely ninereenth/early twentieth century streetscape.

History:  After a land dispute, the land now occupied by McLaren's Hotel was conveyed to William McLaren in 1839,
There was already a tavern (known as the Exchange Tavern) and a small cottage on the land by this time. This
building was largely unchanged up until the 1920s. William McLaren was the licensee from the 18405 to the
1860s. The hotel reamined part of McLaren's estate up until 1923, when it was purchased by Herbert Rowe and
his partners E. Reid and T. Mitchell. In 1924, the hotel was razed to the ground and replaced with a 'modern’
hotel designed by architect RW Koch. The hotel re-opened in June 1925 and according to one source, it was
‘one of Hobart's most modern hotels. The bars are a revelation, and undoubtedly the finest in Tasmania. The
old hotel has completely disappeared.” In 1934, Rowe sold the business to Learoyd and Ansell, and in 1936
Basil Murray was the licensee. It was later purchased by Arthur Drysdale in 1954. The hotel was later
purchased by the Cascade Brewery Company, and in 1985 the Tasmanian Government acquired the site to
become part of the Tasmanian College of Hospitality. The building was re-developed in the early 1990s by the
government in an attempt to create a modern teaching facility.

Physical McLaren's Hotel facade is of brick contruction in the Inter-War style. The original roof was concealed by a

Description:  prominent shoulder parapet. The centre piece of the parapet has a decorative cornice and Sfearure bricks
arranged in geometric patterns. There are two brick pilasters thar divide the first floor facade into three bays.
A round-arch window is located in the centre bay, and is flanked by angular casement windows. There is a
large rectangular window to the ground floor with stained-glass highlights. The centre highlight has the words
‘McLaren's Hotel' imprinted on it. These panels are likely to date from the 1920s. There are two side entrances
to the ground floor facade both have bracketed and moulded door heads.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded eriteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

McLaren's Hotel has an important association with William

McLaren and his family, who owned the property for nearly

one hundred years. The property is also associated with Mr

Arthur Drysdale, who made an important contribution to
PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Tasmania, employing hundreds of people across all his
business enterprises. His contribution to the hotel and
tourist trade is particularly noteworthy.

(d)-Representative of:

Despite some alterations, McLaren's Hotel facade is of
historic heritage significance because it is representative of the
Inter-War style, specifically in relation to commercial
buildings.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Coogan's Department Store Reference: C60

79
Original Use:
Feature Type:

Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

Collins Street Hobart HCC
Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Department Store Architectural Style: Victorian Free Classical (Inter-War Art
’ Deco facade) o

Externally predominanrly intact, the Construction Date:
shopfront is thought to date from the
1930s.

3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Render Attic: [] Basement [

The building is located on the northern side of Collins Streer, and is part of an intact historic streetscape
composed of medium to large size commercial premises dating from the nineteenth to the mid twentieth
centuries.

Coogan's store is located on land that was originally divided into three allotments. All three allotments were
approximately 13 perches in area. The first allotment was granted to J McConnell, the second went to J
Robertson, and the third was claimed by George Hopwood. These three allotments were formed and built upon
by the mid-1840s. By the early 1900s two buildings occupied the original three allotments. A three storey late
Victorian Free Classical commercial building and a two storey Victorian Georgian shop. These buildings were
occupied by GP Fitzgerald's department store from 1882. In 1900, Fitzgerald constructed a new department
store next door, and shifted his business to this new premises. In 1911, W. Coogan & Co., furniture-makers and
retailers, set up business in both these conjoined premises. The Collins Street property was used as a retail
premises, while the furniture company maintained a factory at what is now 247 Elizabeth Street (formerly
James' Tasmanian Pale Ale Brewery). In the early years Coogan's exported Tasmanian blackwood and oak
furniture to every State in Australia, and regularly exhibited at the Royal Hobart Agricultural Show, In 1934,
plans were submitted for a major addition to the rear of the premises. This addition designed by architect A
Lauriston Crisp was to be constructed at the rear of the three storey building. The facade of both the conjoined
buildings was also re-constructed, possibly during the early 1930s. In the 19505, further alterations to the store
were proposed. There are, however, no plans available in the HCC Plan Archives for these proposed works. It
is interesting to note, however, that A Lauriston Crisp was also the architect for this project. The Jirm still
occupies the Collins Streer site, but is now a retailer not a manufacturer.

It is a face brick and masonry rendered commercial complex that was originally Victorian in style, but was later
modernised with the reconstruction of the facade in the Inter-War Art Deco style. The Collins Street facade
consists of a stepped parapet that is emphasised by emphatic vertical piers. There are also down-pipes placed
evenly at either end of the facade that reinforce the vertical nature of the facade. Multi-paned casement
windows with round-arched heads are located on the second floor, while on the first floor the multi-paned
casement windows are more rectangular in shape with shallow-rounded heads. There is a cantilevered boxed-
awning sheltering the ground floor shopfront which appears to date from the 1950s. Stainless-steel framed shop
windows and ceramic tiling are a feature of this shopfront.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER ¢ Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded crileria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

PLEASE NOTE

(e)-Creative / Technical;

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(g)-Association:

79 Collins Street is of historic cultural heritage significance
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute because of it long association with the firm of W Coogan &
to a greater understanding of the early retail industry in Co, which has occupied this premises for more than 90
Hobart, especially because of its long association with the one  years.

firm.

(c)-Research Potential:
79 Collins Street has the potential to yield important

(d)-Representative of;

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department Store - refer ~ Reference: C48
also C61 and C81)

85-99 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Department Store : Architectural Style: Post-War International - .
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  ¢/955
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Paint Attic: [J Basement []
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is adjacent to Fitzgerald's c1911 department

Contribution store. This commercial building is one of three buildings that were once part of Fitzgerald's Department Store.
It is a valuable element within a streetscape predominantly composed of commercial buildings dating from the
nineteenth/early to mid rwentieth centuries.

History: The building is located on land that was originally part of rwo allotments. One allotment of 25 perches was
originally granted to Oliver Smith, while the other of 26 perches was claimed by Joseph Solomon. These
allotments were created and built upon by the mid 1840s. GP Fitzgerald opened his first store in Collins Street
on the site of Coogan's present furniture store in 1882. The business was wholesale initially, but later became
retail. In 1900, Fitzgerald built a new store next door to the original store. This new Federation French
Renaissance store was burnt down in c1911, and a completely new store was built. This c1911 building
survives today. Fitzgerald's Post-War Department Store is the subject of this data sheet. F ormerly referred to
as 99 Collins Street, this building was designed by D. Hartley Wilson in March 1955, and built soon after. It
was one of three buildings on this side of Collins Street that formed part of the Fitzgeralds Department Store.

Physical A three storey painted masonry Post-War International department store. It has an overall cubiform shape
Description:  which is emphasised by the hard-edged parapet that obscures the roof from view. There are large sheets of
glass to the facade and plain smooth wall surfaces. A curved masonry balcony is located on the third floor,
above which are a row of metal framed casement windows. The ground floor shopfront is symmetrical, there is
a central glazed entrance flanked by large metal-framed shop windows.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

The building is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the evolution and development of a long-
established Tasmanian retail business. The building is part of
a group of commercial buildings dating from the early to mid
twentieth century that reflect the properity, and resultant
expansion, of GP Fitzgerald's Department Store.

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
diverse and largely intact streetscape composed of
commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth/early to
mid twentieth centuries.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:
The building at 85-99 Collins Street is of historic heritage
PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey painted masonry Post-War
International department store.

PLEASE NOTE 4
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the pluce, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department Store - refer ~ Reference: C61
also C48 and C81)

85-99 Collins Street Hobart HCC

Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Department Store : Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical

The buildings are externally Construction Date: ¢1911
predominantly intact, with the exception
of modern shopfronts.

3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masoniry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

This building, which is part of the former Fitzgerald's department store, is located on the northern side of
Collins Street, and dominates the streetscape of the immediate area. It is an important element in this largely
intact commerical streetscape composed of building from the nineteenth to the mid twentieth century. The
building also provides a physical reminder of the evolution of a successful and historic Tasmanian business, as
it is one three building that once formed part of Fitzgerald's department store.

This building is located on land that was originally divided into two allotments. The larger of the two
allotments of 1 rood and 5 perches, was originally granted to George Dexter; while the other smaller allotment
of 25 perches was granted to Oliver Smith. Both these allotments were formed and built upon by the mid-1840s;
there being a particularly large building fronting onto Collins Street located on Dexter's allotment by this time.
GP Fitzgerald opened his first store in Collins Street on the site of Coogan's present furniture store in 1882.
The business was wholesale initially, but later became retail. In 1900, Fitzgerald built a new store next door to
the original store. This new Federation French Renaissance store was burnt down in c1911, and a completely
new store was built on the site (this building).

A three storey stuccoed masonry Federation Free Classical department store. The roof is concealed by a
parapet surmounted by a balustrade of classical styling. Pillars to this balusirade are decorated with plaster
wreaths. There is a prominent cornice with dentilations that runs below the balustrade. Four pilasters with
classical plaster decorations divide the facade into three distinctive bays above awning height. The two outer
bays contain a single casement window to both floors that are surrounded by moulded plaster architraves and
spandrels with intricately patterned panels. The centre bay consists of three round-head casement windows to
the first floor with elaborate fenestration, and a row of five narrow rectangular windows divided by a series of
plaster decorative columns. There is a wide plaster panel just above the awning line with the words: Fitzgeralds
Department Store formed with plaster lettering. There is a cantilevered boxed-awning which shelters a
shopfront that consists of large metal-framed shop windows with tiled surrounds and double glazed doors
located in the centre.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its immediate neighbours,
to a relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth
century commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

The 1911 building at 85-99 has the potential to yield This c1911 building is of historic heritage significance
important information, of an archaeological nature, that may because of its long-running association with Fitzgerald's

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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contribute to a greater understanding of the early retail Department Store, which spanned over 80 years.
industry of Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

The c1911 building at 85-99 Collins Street is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a three storey stuccoed masonry
Federation Free Classical department store.

PLEASE NOTE i
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Department Store Facade (formerly Fitzgerald's Department Store - refer ~ Reference: C81

C48 and C61)

85-99 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Department Store - Architectural Style: Inrer-War Art Deco

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact with the Construction Date: ¢1939
exception of a skywalk constructed in
1987, which intersects with the first

Sfloor facade.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement W]
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street and is one of three buildings that were purpose

Contribution built for Fitzgerald's Department Store. The building is an important element within a Streetscape that consists
of largely intact commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth/early to mid twentieth centuries.

History: This building is located on land that was originally divided into two allotments. The larger of the two
allotments of 1 rood and 5 perches, was originally granted to George Dexter; while the other smaller allotment
of 25 perches was granted to Oliver Smith. Both these allotments were formed and built upon by the mid-1840s;
there being a particularly large building fronting onto Collins Street located on Dexter's allotment by this time.
GP Fitzgerald opened his first store in Collins Street on the site of Coogan's present furniture store in 1882,
The business was wholesale initially, but later became retail. In 1900, Fitzgerald built a new store next door to
the original store. This new Federation French Renaissance store was burnt down in c1911, and a new store
was built on the site. The c1911 building survives today. As the business prospered new sections were
constructed along Collins Street. The building that is the subject of this datasheet was re-constructed in the
1930s. This building was originally a single storey structure known as Tasma House, and was part of the
Firzgerald's Department Store. Plans were submitted to the HCC in 1939 for proposed alterations to the
ground floor shopfront. Three months later plans were submirted for the construction of a first floor. The
architect behind these planned works was AT Johnston.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War Art Deco department store. The roof is concealed by a parapet that is

Description:  emphasised by two narrow stringcourses. The first floor facade is divided into several shallow bays. There are
a series of linear plaster mouldings flowing from the top of the first floor windows which are double-hung sashes
with multi-paned top-sashes and single-paned bottom sashes. There is a boxed-awning that is suspended by
tension wires embedded in the first floor. The shopfront is of modern construction, and consists of large metal-
framed shop windows and glazed doors. One end of a skywalk intersects with a section of the first Sfloor facade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

This building has the potential to yield important information,
of an archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early retail industry of central Hobart.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

This building is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two
storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War Art Deco department store.

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C'64
119 Collins Street Habart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Office/Shop Architectural Style: Vicrorian Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date; 1853 o
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is part of a largely intact nineteenth/early

Contribution twentieth century commercial streetscape. It is flanked by the T & G Building and the former Commercial
Travellers Association Club building.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to James Luckman. A Sflour mill was established on
part of this I rood 20 perch allotment from the 1830s. It was a good position for a mill given its close proximity
to the Hobart Rivulet which ran along the northern boundary. The mill, known as the New Waterloo Mill,
superceded the Waterloo Mill in Liverpool Street, which was established by Arnold Fisk in 1817. The New
Waterloo Mill was in operation until the 1870s. The commercial building that currently occupies the site, was
constructed in 1853. The building was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by April 1908. At
the time it was owned and occupied by Wm. Crosby and Co, Merchants. The company were general merchants,
shipping and insurance agents, importers and exporters; and were agents for several businesses including the
White Star Line, Lloyd's of London, and the Commercial Union F & M Ass. Co. The Hon. William Crosby,
MLC was also Consul to the Netherlands. In 1948, alterations and additions were carried on the property.
Some of these works involved building over a portion of the Rivulet that was leased to the company. In 1949,
some internal office partitioning was installed. William Crosby Pty Lid occupied the building ar least until the
mid 1960s.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  paraper surmounted by a classically styled balustrade and a centrally placed triangular pediment. In the centre
of the pediment is a coar of arms with the words 'Advance Tasmania'. There is a cornice positioned just beneath
the pediment that runs the length of the facade. The facade is divided into a series of bays by several pilasters,
which are shaped like classical temple columns. Windows to the first floor are double-hung single-paned sashes
outlined by simple moulding. There are large plate-glass windows to the ground floor positioned either side of a
round arched entrance. Above the entrance is a trangular pediment, at the centre of which is the date: 1853.
There is a smaller entrance at the eastern end of the facade, as well as a large vehicular entrance at the western

end,

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

119 Collins Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of central
Hobart, specifically in relation to early industrial and

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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commercial enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

119 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical
commercial building. :

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Centreway Arcade) Reference: (72

131
Original Use:
Feature Type:

Integrity:
Floors:
Streetscape

Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

Collins Street Hobart HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Shop/Offices Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical

The building appears to be externally Construction Date: ¢1916
predominantly intact, however there is
a first floor addition ro one section.

12 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Concrete/Rende  Attic: [ Basement [
r

The building is located on the northern side of Collins Streer at the corner of Victoria Street. It is one ofa
number of historic commercial buildings located in this section of the street dating from the nineteenth and
early twentieth centuries. This building makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area, and to the
general historic character of central Hobart.

The building is located on an allotment that was originally granted to Thomas Brown. This 1 rood 17 perch
land parcel was formed and built upon by the mid-1840s. It is not suprising that the allotment was built upon
from an early time, as the northern boundary ran along the edge of the Rivuler. Interestingly, the shape of this
allotment has not altered since the mid-1840s. The large building that now occupies the site was originally
constructed as a motor garage to accommodate the Hobart Motor Company. By March 1917, the premises was
connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system. The Hobart Motor Company occupied the premises at least
until the lare 1920s. By the early 1950s, Co-operative Motors had moved in. In 1952 an area of 6 squares was
added to the rear of the building, which was to function as a car service area. Two years later, a first floor
addition was made to part of the facade. This cement rendered addition, which was to house offices, was
designed by D Hartley Wilson, and submitted to the HCC on 28 June 1954, In 1964, plans were submirted for
the conversion of part of the building (the section nearest Victoria Street) into a new showroom and spare-parts
section. The design for these alterations were completed by architects Hartley Wilson and Bolt. The building
was acquired from Co-operative Motors by National Mutual Life in the late 1970s, and some demolition and re-
construction of the interior was proposed in plans submitted in the HCC in November 1977. The building was
converted to an arcade (known as the Centreway Arcade) in 1982, containing 10 shops on the ground floor, and
several offices on the first floor. Minor alterations were made to the facade, with new glazed doors to exisitng
entrances. The building no longer functions as an arcade, most of the ground floor area is occupied by
Chickenfeed.

A one and two storey masonry and cement rendered Federation Free Classical commercial building. The rwo
storey centre section has classical detail. There is a stepped parapet which partially conceals the roof line. The
facade in this section is defined by emphatic pilasters and cornices. Windows to the second floor are casements,
while the ground floor shopfront is comprised of a large central entrance with traditional style shop windows,
At each end of the building are single storey sections framed by classically styled cornices and pilasters that
appear as columns. A plaster wreath is centrally located, just below the cornice line. The original composition
of the building is mostly intact, except for a first floor addition made to one section. Common design elements,
such as prominent stringcourses, stretch across the entire facade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

PLEASE NOTE

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the commnunity because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century

‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

131 Collins Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early twentieth century
motor vehicle industry. 5

(d)-Representative of:

131 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
one and two storey brick and cement rendered
industrial/commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Former Agricultural Bank of Tasmania Reference: C2
38 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Financial. Present Use:  Nor known
Feature Type:  Warehouse Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢/937
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls: Face Brick ' Attic: [ Basement []
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Collins Street, and is positioned hard against the street edge. It

Contribution is part of a streetscape comprised of wiilitarian buildings with striking facades dating from the nineteenth/early
to mid twentieth centuries.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to Henry and Edwin Kearney. This allotment was
formed and built upon by the mid 1840s. The main frontage was to Collins Street (across the road Jfrom the
Hobart Rivulet), while there was a narrow access lane off Argyle Street that led to the rear of the allotment
where a large building had been constructed. By the early 1900s, a complex of buildings occupied the site.
According to the Assessment Rolls of this time, the site was an office and sawmill belonging to ET Crisp and L
Gunn. These buildings were later demolished, because by the 1930s, the property was described as a
warehouse. The building that currenily occupies was constructed in c1937 by John Bailey, McGregor Bros Pty
Ltd. This building was extended in ¢1942, with the addition of a brick and concrete store to the rear. The store
was designed by AT Johnston, a local architect whose office was at 130 Collins Street. The building was later
occupied by the Agricultural Bank of Tasmania.

Physical A two storey face brick Inter-War warehouse. The roof is concealed by a stepped parapet decorated with a

Description:  polychrome brick coping and parallel bands of polychrome bricks. The centre section of the parapet is topped
by a flag-pole beneath which is a rectangular moulding (presumably where the name of the bank was once
displayed). An elegantly styled cornice runs the length of the facade, and there are five pilasrers that divide the
facade into four bays. Windows are multi-paned casements that are arranged singlarly and in pairs. There isa
boxed awning to the central bay supported by tension wires embedded into the brick pilasters. A pressed-metal
soffit is an original feature of this awning. Several courses of rusticated granite blocks form a decorative base
to the street-front facade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/twentieth century
commercial/industrial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

58 Collins Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the settlement of central Hobart
due to the fact the site has been built upon since the mid
nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of*

58 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because of

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two
storey face brick Inter-War warehouse.

PLEASE NOTE

‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprchensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C6
82 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Office/Shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢1912 o
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco ’ Attic: [] Basement []
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Collins Street and is sandwiched between two later rwentieth

Contribution century office blocks. It is the sole remaining historic element within this section (and on this side) of Collins
Street and makes a valuable contribution to the Streetscape.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to Charles Swanston. It was constructed cl 912, and
work connecting the structure to the City's sewerage was commenced in Novermber 1911 and passed by the
HCCin June of 1912. The structure was originally owned by the Tasmanian Loan Guarantee and Finance
Company Lid. This company continued to occupy the building into the 1920s, however by the mid 1940s,
United Insurance Co. owned the property.

Physical It is a three storeyed masonry and stucco Federation Free Classical commercial building. The roof is obscured

Description:  from view by a shoulder parapet with a bracketed pediment, underneath which is a richly styled moulded panel
with the date: 1912. Four classically styled pilasters divide the facade into three bays. There is a Federation
Lyre-bird motif to the top of two pilasters, and other decorative moulding to the other two pilasters positioned at
the outer edge of the building. Windows are predominantly timber-framed casements, and there are
traditionally style multi-paned casements to the ground floor shopfront and a central entrance.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because

it is a valuable historic element within the streetscape of the
areq.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

82 Collins Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of nineteenth and early twentieth
century settlement of the Central Business District of Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

82 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because of
its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of three
storey masonry/stucco Federation Free Classical commercial
building.

PLEASE NOTE
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building

Reference: (C58

102 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Private Health Services, Surgery
Feature Type:  Commercial Building Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact with the Construction Date: 7905 ’
exception of the shopfront which is of
modern construction.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: [J Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Collins Street and is one of a pair of similarly styled conjoined
Contribution shops. 1t is also part of a largely intact historic streetscape, many of the buildings of which date from the

nineteenth/early to mid twentieth centuries.

History: This conjoined shop is located on land that was originally granted to David Lord. Lord's 18 perch allotment
was formed and built upon by the mid-1840s. The building that currently occupies the site was originally one of
three conjoined shops constructed in 1905. In 1906, the premises was occupied by Mr Norman Goodfellow,

who was a fishmonger.

Physical
Description:

A two storey painted brick Federation Free Classical conjoined shop. The roof is concealed by a parapet
surmounted by a classically-styled balustrade and underlined by an elegant cornice. There are two belted

pilasters to the above-awning facade, positioned on the outer edges. A Venetian-style window is located at the
centre of the first floor facade, and is adorned with moulded columns, brackets and moulded plaster scroll morif,
There are highlights with geometrically cut glass-panes just above awning-height, and a cantilevered boxed-
awning with pressed metal soffit positioned below these. The shopfront has recently been remodelled, and has
been designed to reflect the detailing on the first floor facade.

7/
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical;

{(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

(d)-Representative of:

102 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey painted brick Federation Free Classical conjoined

shop.

PLEASE NOTE :

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(D-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(g)-Association:

This data sheet is intended 10 provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The duta sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:
104
Original Use:

Commercial Building

Reference: C59
Hobart HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Collins Street

Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:

Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical

Construction Date: 1903

Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: [] Basement [
This conjoined shop is located on the southern side of Collins Street, and is one of a pair of conjoined shops tha
were built at the same time. The building is an important element within the historic commercial Streetscape

that is largely composed of buildings dating from the nineteenth/early-mid twentieth centuries.

This conjoined shop is locared on land that was originally granted to David Lord. Lord's 18 perch allotment
was formed and built upon by the mid 1840s. According to drainage plans, the building was one of three
conjoined shops constructed in 1905. By 1906, the premises was occupied by Macrow & Co Pty Ltd. Mr G
Hopkins, manager of Macrow & Co Pty Ltd occupied the first floor, probably as a residence. In 1925, plans
were submitted to the HCC for minor alterations to the ground and first floors of the premises, which was
owned by Mr I'S Beauchamp Esquire at the time. A set of stairs were installed to access a new room with
skylight roof on the first floor, and a WC installed on the ground floor. In 1941, J Dickson-Clarke submitted
plans to the HCC for remodelling the premises, which included the construction of a new shopfront and awning,
as well as alterations to the ground floor shop lay-out. Dickson-Clark ran an optometry business from rhe
building. The link to this industry continues today, as the shop is occupied by a firm of optometrists.

A two storey painted brick Federation Free Classical conjoined shop. The roof is concealed by a parapet

Feature Type:  Shop/office
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, with
the exception of the shopfronr which
dates from the Inter-War period.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron
Streetscape
Contribution
History:
Physical
Description:

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

{c)-Research Potential;

surmounted by a triangular pediment. Inside the pediment is an elaborate plaster cartouche upon which the
date: AD 1905 appears. The first floor facade is elegantly detailed. There are two belted pilasters along the
outer-edge (one is shared with 102) and berween these is a Venetian-style oriel emphasised by moulded
surrounds, plaster columns and brackers. Highlights with geometrically cut glass-panes are located just above
awning-height, and a cantilevered boxed-awning is positioned below these. A pressed metal soffit with Art Deco
pattern is a feature of the awning. The Inter-War period shopfront is lined with a layer of sandblasted black
glass. There is a centrally placed glazed door flanked by rwo small octagonal plate glass windows.

( Refer to Seetion 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

(g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

104 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey painted brick Federation Free Classical conjoined
shop.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C87
130 Collins Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop/Office Architectural Style: Federation/Inter-War Art Deco
Integrity: This Federation building was modified Construction Date: ¢/908

in c1938 into an Art Deco ediface. The
sandstone facade of the building was
rendered and several exterior Art Deco
motifs removed.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Render Attic: [ Basement W

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Collins Street, and is adjacent to the public open space known as
Contribution:  Collins Court. The rear of the building is bordered by Trafalgar Place. The building is part of a largely intact
nineteenth/early to mid rwentieth century commercial streescape.

History:  The building stands on land that was part of a larger allotment of 38.5 perches acquired by Mr Samuel Page.
This large allotment appears to have been partially built upon by the 1840s, however the site now occupied by
130 Collins Street was vacant at this time. The site appears to have remained free from development until 1908,
when a large structure was built; the owner at the time being Mr EJ Rogers. This 1908 structure survives today,
undergoing extensive internal and external modification. These works transformed the premises into an Inter-
War Art Deco ediface. In October 1938, building specifications were lodged with the HCC by the architectural
firm of Colin E Philp and D Hartley Wilson on behalf of the property owners Queensland Insurance Co. Ltd.
Modifications to the building (including the construction of a freestone facade of Art Deco soyling) occurred
berween late 1938 and early 1939. Substantial drainage works (the installation of several toilets) were
completed in January 1939. The freestone facade of the building was rendered in 1990, and several Art Deco
motifs removed. A new awning was constructed in ¢1991, sheltering the ground floor level.

Physical A two storey masonry rendered Federation office building with Inter-War Art Deco facade. The roof is

Description:  concealed by a parapet which is stepped at one end and adorned with a large metal flag pole. The windows to
the first and second floors are multi-paned and metal framed. There is a bull-nosed perspex and metal-framed
awning sheltering the ground floor facade which consists of a large shop window and a side entrance with
glazed door.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; {e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streefscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

130 Collins Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
three storey Inter-War Art Deco office building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Kent House Reference: C8§
39-41 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Offices Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity:  The first floor facade is externally Construction Date: ¢1913

predominantly intact, the ground floor
shopfronts are of a modern style and
configurarion.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Elizabeth Street, and is one of a group of intact commercial
Contribution buildings dating from the late nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. It is a valuable historic element which

contributes greatly to the historic character of the Elizabeth Street Mall.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to William Bunster. By the 1840s this land grant
was built upon. Three conjoined shops are known ro have occupied the site up until c1913, when they were
replaced by two conjoined shops (now Kent House). The two new shops were connected to the City's reticulated
sewerage system in July 1913. The owner of the property at this time was Mr George Watt of Elizabeth Streer,
presumably a relative of Mr R Watt, the previous owner of the property. By the 1930s, the property was owned
by Messrs EC Tregear and Co Pty Ltd, Palfreyman Pty Ltd in the 1940s, and by the mid 1950s Mr Casimaty was
the owner. In 1947, building plans were submitted for the construction of a kitchen on the first floor of the
building, which at that time was occupied by the Reno Café. The architect for this work was Eric H Round of 57
Collins Street, Hobart.

Physical A two storey masonry and stucco Federation commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet which
Description:  has a classically styled balustrade that supports a coping. At the centre-edge of the parapet is a triangular

pediment within which is plaster lettering that reads: Kent House. Below this is a series of four evenly spaced
pilasters between which are three oriels with multi-coloured stained-glass highlights and decorative mouldings
above each window. There is a boxed-awning suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor. A pressed
metal soffit is a feature of this awning. There are large glazedshop windows ro the ground floor with glazed
doors.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER

(a)-Historical;

39-41 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within the Central Business District during the
first half of the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

(d)-Representative of:
39-41 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance

PLEASE NOTE

{ Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(D-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact late nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

(g)-Association:

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey masonry/stucco Federation
commerical building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there muy be other heritage values of interest that are ot currently acknowledged.
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Kodak House
45 Elizabeth Street

Name:

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Shop/Office

Externally predominantly intact. The
shop front windows and front entry are
of recent construction.

Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors: 5§ Roof: Corrugated Iron

Streetscape
Contribution

Hobart

Present Use:

Construction Date:

Walls:

Reference: C9
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Architectural Style: Inter-War

c1924

Masonry/Stucco Atic: [] Basement [

Kodak House is located on the eastern side of Elizabeth Street, and is one of a group of intact commercial
buildings dating from the late nineteenth/early rwentieth centuries. It is the tallest building in the group, and as

such is a landmark structure. It is a valuable historic element which contributes greatly to the historic

character of the Elizabeth Street Mall.

History:

The building stands on land that was originally granted to John McDougall. There were buildings occupying

this allotment by the 1840s. By the early 1900s, there was a conjoined shop occupying the site. This shop was
one of two conjoined shops owned by Mr A Spencer Brownell, who was presumably connected with Brownell
Brothers Lid, a large department store located in Liverpool Street (now Myers). Brownell owned the property
until the early 1920s, when the shop was purchased by the Kodak Company, and replaced by Kodak House in
¢1924. The new building was connecred to the City's sewerage system in 1924. Two years later, plans were
submitted to the HCC for the addition of a fifth floor to the building. The architect for the project was G Stanley
Crisp of 137 Macquarie Street. The new fifth floor was planned to be used as a processing room. The facade
was transformed with the words 'Kodak House' being added in large lertering to the new top section with a
definitive castle-like form. Kodak (Australasia) Pty Ltd continwed to own and occupy the property up until
2002, when it was sold. Despite the sale, a Kodak shop still occupies the ground floor shop.

Physical
Description:

A five storey masonry/stucco Inter-War commercial building. This imposing structure has a parapet with
crenellations. On the centre edge of the parapet is a plaster tablet with Kodak crest. Beneath this tablet are the

words: Kodak House, written in stylised plaster lettering. There are two pilasters running along the outer edge
of the building facade, the tops of which form pillars that tower above the parapet. There are three oriel
windows to three floors of the building, a parapet with triangular pediment surmounts the oriel on the third
floor. Below the first floor window level is a boxed-awning with pressed metal soffit. On the ground floor there

is a modern glazed shopfront.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER

(a)-Historical:

45 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within the Central Business District during the
first half of the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

PLEASE NOTE

( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical;

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact late nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

(g)-Association:

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

45 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
five storey masonry/stucco Inter-War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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Name:  Comunercial Building

47 Elizabeth Street
Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Shop/Office

Externally predominantly intact. The
ground floor shopfront is of a modern

style.
Floors: 3

Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:

Roof: Corrugated Iron

Streetscape
Contribution

Reference: CI()
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Hobart
Present Use:

Architectural Style: Inter-War

Construction Date; c¢1926

Attic: [] Basement [

Walls:  Masonry/Stucco

This commercial building is located on the eastern side of Elizabeth Street, and is one of a group of intact
commercial buildings dating from the late nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. It is one of the tallest buildings

in the group, however is adjacent to Kodak House which is two storeys higher. It is a valuable historic element
which contributes greatly to the historic character of the Elizabeth Street Mall,

History:

The building is located on land that was originally granted to John MacDougall. By the 1840s, this 36 perch

allotment was heavily built upon. By 1900s a conjoined shop occupied the site, and there were stables at the
rear of the property. This shop was one of two conjoined shops owned by Mr A Spencer Brownell of Liverpool
Street, who was presumably connected with Brownell Brothers Ltd, a large department store located in
Liverpool Street (now Myers). Brownell owned the premises until the early 1920s. The present building was
constructed in c1926, the architect for the project was G Stanley Crisp of 137 Macquarie Street. Curiously, the
ground floor section was constructed prior to this time, perhaps a remnant of the old conjoined shop. Two
storeys were added to the building, and signage reading: Taylor and Sharp, was applied to the top floor. Mr JH
Sharp owned the property at least until the late 19405,

Physical
Description:

A three storey masonry and stucco Inter-War commercial building. The roof is obscured from view by a parapet
with prominent coping. Beneath the parapet are a series of curvilinear mouldings and dentilations. There is a

round-arch multi-paned casement window to the third floor and a multi-paned casement to the second floor.
These windows are surrounded by a prominent plaster moulding topped with a floral crest either side of which
are two additional moulded plaster floral morifs. There is a boxed-awning suspended by a tension wires
embedded into the first floor facade. A pressed metal soffit is a feature of this awning. The ground floor

shopfront is of modern construction.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER

(a)-Historical:

47 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
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( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within the Central Business District during the

first half of the twentieth century.
(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

(d)-Representative of:

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact late nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

(g)-Association:

47 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance because

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
three storey masonry and stucco Inter-War commercial
building.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: CJ1

Name:  Commerical Building

49-51 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:  ¢/907

ground floor shop fronts are of a
modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape This commercial building is located on the eastern side of Elizabeth Street, and is one of a group of intact
Contribution commercial buildings dating from the late nineteenth/early nwentieth centuries. It is a valuable historic element
which contributes greatly to the historic character of the Elizabeth Street Mall.

History: The building stands on land that was originally granted to John MacDougall. By the 1840s, the 36 perch
allotment was heavily built upon. The conjoined shops that currently occupy the site are thought to have been
constructed in c1907, because it is in this year that the building was connected to the City's reticulated
sewerage system. The property owner at this time was Mrs Ellen Morgan of Lords Road, New Town. Futher
drainage works were carried out to the first floor level of the building in 1912. The shops were then owned by
Mr H Thomlinson of Paragon Villa, Lords Road, New Town.

Physical It is a two storey masonry/stucco Federation commercial building comprising two conjoined shops. The roof is

Description:  concealed by a parapet of curvilinear design. The first floor facade is divided into three bays by a series of
strongly emphasised pilasters. There is an oriel casement with four-paned highlights positioned in each of the
three bays, and prominent plaster stringcourses thar run along the top and bottom edge of the windows. There
is a boxed-awning, with pressed metal soffit, supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. The
two shopfronts are of modern construction and configuration.

LGy
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

49-51 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within Hobart's central area during the first half
of the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, 1o a

relatively intact late nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

49-51 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey masonry/stucco Federation
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Banjo's Bakery (Formerly Cripps' Hygienic Bakery) Reference: C20
85-91 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Manufacturing and Processing, Food Present Use:  Manufacturing and Processing, Food Industry
Industry
Feature Type:  Bakery - Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity: There have been alterations to the Construction Date:  ¢1900

facade, including new windows, awning
and shopfront. The overall form and
detail of the first floor facade is intacr.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Render Attic: L] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Elizabeth Street and is positioned hard against the street-edge. It
Contribution is one of a group of intact historic commercial buildings in this section of Elizabeth Street dating from the
nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries.

History:  According to historic accounts, this building was constructed by Mr W Cripps as a bakery. At the time it was
described as a new up-to-date Hygienic Bakery. Cripps, who had been operating bakeries in Hobart since the
1880s, imported new ‘mixing and handling' machinery from England for his new bakery. The floor of the
bakery was made of concrete, and the fire bricks and tiles used in the building were imported Jrom England.

Physical A two storey rendered masonry Federation purpose-built bakery. The roof is concealed by a parapet. The

Description:  facade is divided into two bays by three pilasters emphasised with decorative horizontal mouldings and
cornices. The windows are large multi-paned louvres with mirrored panes, and there are Romanesque-style
spandrels beneath each window above the awning line. There is a modern cantilevered awning with glazed
panels. The ground floor shopfront is of recent construction, however has a traditionally-inspired configuration.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: g)-Association:
85-91 Elizabeth Street is a purpose-built bakery dating from 85-91 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance
the Federation period, it therefore has the potential to yield because of its long association with the Cripps family, major

important information, of an archaeological nature, that may Tasmanian bakers.
contribute to a greater understanding of the baking industry in
Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

85-91 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey rendered masonry Federation
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheel is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: CJ2

Name:  Commercial Building (facade only)

44-48 Elizabeth Street Hobart Hobart

Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Inter-War Functionalist

Integrity:  The first floor facade is predominantly Construction Date:  ¢/939
intact. The ground floor shopfronts are
of recent construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Masonry/Render Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape This building is located on the western side of Elizabeth Street, and is an important historic element within a
Contribution modern streetscape, some elements within which are not sympathetic to the predominantly historic built
character of Elizabeth Street Mall.

History: This building is partitally located on the site of the former Bank of Australasia. The building was constructed by
Woolworths (Tas) Ltd in 1939, and, according to the building plans, was to cover an area of 162 squares. The
builder for the project was Mr DR Tait of High Street, Sandy Bay The structure was connected to the City's
sewerage system in January 1940. Fitzgeralds Department Store later occupied the premises, however in the
lare 1990s, the structure was subdivded into three shops.

Physical A two storey masonry and render Inter-War Functionalist commercial building. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  shoulder paraper with a stepped centrepiece. Vertical and horzontal lines are emphasized in the first floor
facade, there are prominent vertical pilasters, as well as strongly emphasised horizontal design elements,
Windows are narrow and rectangular with horizontal glazing bars. The boxed-awning thar runs the length of
the facade is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor. The ground floor has been divided into
three shops, and all have modern shopfronts.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical: {e)-Creative / Technical:

44-48 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within Hobart's central area during the first half
of the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes to the general streetscape of Elizabeth Street

Mall, which has a predominantly late nineteenth/early
twentieth century built character.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

44-48 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey rendered masonry Inter-War
Functionalist commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Cane's Buildings Reference: C19
74 Elizabeth Street Hobart HCC
Origina] Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shops/Offices Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date; 1914 —

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco ' Attic: [| Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the western side of Elizabeth Street, and is an important historic structure within a
Contribution section of streetscape that is composed primarily of later twentieth century commercial buildings. The building

makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area.
History: The building is locared on land that was originally granted to John Swan. This allotment was vacant in the

1840s, however by the early 1900s a large imposing structure occupied the site which was the premises of TS
Cane and Co. This building was connected to the City's sewerage system in 1906, and at this time it took up
most of the Elizabeth Street frontage of the allotment, however there was a a wide driveway down one side.
There were also large outbuildings at the rear of the structure. In 1914, the original building was replaced by a
larger elegantly detailed three storey building, which survives todav. The Tasmanian Cyclopedia 1931
described TJ] Cane & Co Ltd as one of the oldest hardware establishments in Hobart and in the
Commonwealth, dating back to 1842. It was formed into a Limited Company in 1912. The company was
described as having the most up-to-date ironmongery buildings in the City. The business was divided into
several departments, and also manufactured a wide range of goods, such as tanks, Spouting, tinware and copper
goods, in their factory in Bathurst Street. TJ Cane and Co. occupied the building until ar least the early 1950s.

Physical A three storey masonry and stucco Federation Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  paraper with a curved pediment flanked by prominent pillars. There is a tablet on this pediment with the words:

b g
” —
/’ S5 g

Cane's Buildings in plaster lettering. The facade is divided into a series of bays by six finely detailed pilasters.
There are also horizontal moulded stringcourses decorated with dentilations and brackets. Windows are a
mixture of double-hung single-paned sashes, round-arched and large rectangular casements. There is a line of
plaster lettering ar the bottom edge of the facade, above the awning line. It reads: Ironmongers. Cane & Co.
Limited. Importers. A cantilevered boxed-awning shelters the ground floor shops all of which have modern
shopfronts.

Fid

Face | IMPORTERS.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

74 Elizabeth Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within the Hobart's central area during the early
twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity: ()-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it makes a valuable contribution to to the historic
commercial streetscape of Elizabeth Street,

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

74 Elizabeth Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other herituge values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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three storey masonry rendered Federation Free Classical
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C57

75
Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:
Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

I l!.l - paflly
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Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Conjoined Corner Shop Architectural Style: Federarion Free Classical

Externally predominanily intact. Construction Date: 1906

2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick/Stucco - Attic: [] Basement [

This conjoined corner shop is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street, at the corner with Collins Street.
It is a prominent structure with landmark qualities, and is one of a group of conjoined shops that are located in
Harrington and Collins Streets. Both individually, and as a group, this early twentieth century commercial
building is an extremely valuable elements within the largely intact ninereenth/early rwentieth century
commercial streetscape of the immediate area.

This corner shop is located on land that was originally granted to William Wilson. Wilson's 12 perch allotment
was formed by the 1840s. This corner shop was constructed in 1906, and was part of a larger group of seven
conjoined shops that were constructed in two stages. The first stage involved the construction of no. 75 (this
property), 83, 85 and 85A Harrington Street in 1906; while no. 77, 79, and 81 were constructed soon afrer
(before 1910). The buildings were owned by Mr Samuel H Johnson and Miss IF Johnson, who also owned
adjacent properties in Victoria and Collins Streets. In 1906, according to Postal Directories, the corner shop
was occupied by Ah Ham & Co, fruiterers, and the smaller shop (which is part of 75 Harrington Streer but is
located around the corner in Collins Street) was occupied Francis Barker, who was a bootmaker. By the 1920s,
TC Button was the owner of the buildings, his ownership extended into the late 1930s.

A rwo storey stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical corner shop. The building wraps around the corner of
Harrington and Collins Streets, and has a splayed edge positioned at the intersection of the two streets. The
roof is concealed by an elegantly detailed parapet topped by evenly-spaced sphere-shaped finials. There is an
open-crowned triangular pediment to the splayed corner section of the building, beneath this is a plaster
moulded circular-motif inside of which is the date: 1906. Windows to the first floor are double-hung single-
paned sashes with shallow rounded heads, which are emphasised by elaborate lintels with keystones. There is a
boxed-awning which shelters the ground floor shopfront. The awning has a pressed metal soffit with geometric
pattern, and it is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. Shop windows to the ground
floor are of traditional configurarion and style, they consist of large glazed panels topped by a line of small
highlights. The shop entrance is located in the splayed section of the building, and consists of a glazed timber-
framed door with toplight. There are also four small conjoined shops, which are part of 75 Harrington Streer,
that are located in Collins Street. The awning of the corner shop extends to one of these four conjoined shops,
while there is a bracketed cornice that runs along the facade of the other three shops. While the shopfronts of
these four conjoined shops are of rraditional configuration, some of the original multi-paned shop windows have
been replaced by large shop windows. Two of the four conjoined shops have traditional-looking shopfronts.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

75 Harrington Street of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
Stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical commercial complex
comprised of a cornershop and four smaller conjoined shops.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended (0 be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C56
77-81 Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity: This is the most intact of the conjoined Construction Date:  ¢1910 o

shops in the group, as the original
shopfront is intact and the original face
brick work of two sections of this
building remains unpainred,

Floors; 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Face Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape This conjoined shop is located on the eastern side of Harringron Street, just north of the intersection with

Contribution Collins Street. It is one of a group of conjoined shops that are located in Harrington and Collins Streets. Both
individually, and as a group, these early twentieth century commercial buildings are extremely valuable
elements within the largely intact nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape of the area.

History:  This conjoined shop is located on land that was originally granted to William Wilson. The original allotment,
which extended to the corner of Harrington Street, was formed by the mid-1840s. This conjoined shop was once
divided into three shops, and is part of a group of seven conjoined shops that were constructed in two stages.
The first stage involved the construction of no. 75, 83, 85 and 85A Harringron Street, while no. 77, 79, and 81
(this property) were constructed soon after (before 1910). The buildings were owned by Mr Samuel H Johnson
and Miss IF Johnson, who also owned adjacent properties in Victoria and Collins Streets. By the 1920s, TC
Burton was the owner of the buildings, his ownership extended into the late 1930s.

Physical A two storey face brick and stuccoed Federation Free Classical conjoined shop. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  elegant parapet topped with sphere-shaped finials. Below the parapet is a cornice which is positioned just
above the first floor windows. There are three pairs of double-hung sash windows with shallow rounded heads,
that are emphasised by elaborate lintels with keystones. Two sections of the three section Sacade are original
face brick, while the other section has been stuccoed. There is a bracketed cornice at ground floor awning
height, and below this are intact timber-framed shopfronts clad with pressed-metal panels. There are three
angular multi-paned windows with colowred-glazed highlights and three front entrances, which reflect the fact
that this complex once functioned as three conjoined shops.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early twentieth century commercial
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

77-81 Harringtton Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey face brick and stuccoed
Federation Free Classical conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C55
83 Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  ¢/906 o
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Stucco ‘ Attic: (] Basement [
Streetscape This conjoined shop is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street, just south of the intersection with

Contribution Victoria Street. It is one of a group of conjoined shops that are located in Harrington and Collins Streets. Both
individually, and as a group, these early twentieth century commercial buildings are extremely valuable
elements within the largely intact nineteenth/early rwentieth century commercial streetscape of the area.

History:  This conjoined shop is located on land that was once part of a 13 perch allorment granted to Alexander Stewarr.
This allorment was built upon by the mid-1840s. This c1840 building is thought to have been demolished and
replaced in c1906, when the present shop was constructed. This shop is part of a group of seven conjoined
shops that were constructed in two stages. The first stage involved the construcrion of no. 75, 83, 85 and 85A
Harrington Street, while no. 77, 79, and 81 were constructed soon afrer (before 1910). The buildings were
owned by Mr Samuel H Johnson and Miss IF Johnson, who also owned adjacent properties in Victoria and
Collins Streets. In 1906, according to Postal Directories, the shop was occupied by Budor Deen, a
confectioner. By the 1920s, TC Button was the owner of the buildings, his ownership extended into the late

1930s.

Physical A two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical conjoined shop. The roof is concealed by a elegant

Description:  parapert ropped with sphere-shaped finials. Below the parapet is a plaster cornice which is positioned just above
the first floor windows. There are two double-hung sash windows with shallow rounded heads, that are
emphasised by elaborate lintels with keystones. There is a bracketed cornice at ground floor awning height, and
below this a modern shopfront with large shop window and glazed front door positioned to one side.

i
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early twentieth century commercial
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

83 Harringtton Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free
Classical corner conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE #
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C54
85 Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominanily intact with the  Construction Date: /906 o

exception of the ground floor shopfront
which has been remodelled.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []

Streetscape This conjoined shop is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street, Jjust south of the intersection with

Contribution Victoria Street. It is one of a group of conjoined shops that are located in Harrington and Collins Streets. Both
individually, and as a group, these early twentieth century commercial buildings are extremely valuable
elements within the largely intact nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape of the area.

History: This conjoined shop is located on land that was once part of a 13 perch allorment granted to Alexander Stewart.
This allotment was built upon by the mid-1840s. This c1840 building is thought to have been demolished and
replaced in c 1906, when the present shop was constructed. This shop is part of a group of seven conjoined
shops that were constructed in two stages. The first stage involved the construction of no. 75, 83, 85 and 85A
Harrington Street, while no. 77, 79, and 81 were constructed soon after ( before 1910). The buildings were
owned by Mr Samuel H Johnson and Miss IF Johnson, who also owned adjacent properties in Victoria and
Collins Streets. In 1906, according to Postal Directories, the shop was occupied by Budor Deen, a
confectioner. By the 1920s, TC Buiton was the owner of the buildings, his ownership extended into the late
1930s.

Physical A two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical conjoined shop. The roof is concealed by a elegant

Description:  parapet topped with sphere-shaped finials. Below the parapet is a plaster cornice which is positioned just above
the first floor windows. There are two double-hung sash windows with shallow rounded heads, that are
emphasised by elaborate lintels with keystones. There is a bracketed cornice at ground floor awning height, and
below this a modern shop front with large shop window and glazed front door positioned to one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criterin.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early twentieth century commercial
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

85 Harringtton Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free
Classical corner conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C53
85A Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact Construction Date:  ¢/906 o
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco : Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape This prominent corner shop is located ar the intersection of Harrington and Victoria Streets, It is one of a

Contribution group of conjoined shops that are located in Harrington and Collins Streets. Both individually, and as a group,
these early twentieth century commercial buildings are extremely valuable elements within the largely intact
nineteenth/early rwentieth century commercial streetscape of the area.

History: This corner shop is located on land that was once part of a 13 perch allotment granted to Alexander Srewart.
This corner site was built upon by the mid-1840s. This c1840 building is thought ro have been demolished and
replaced in c1906, when the present corner shop was constructed. This shop is part of a group of seven
conjoined shops that were constructed in two stages. The first stage involved the construction of no. 73, 83, 85
and 85A Harrington Street, while no. 77, 79, and 81 were constructed soon after (before 1910). The conjoined
shops were owned by Mr Samuel H Johnson and Miss IF Johnson, who also owned adjacent properties in
Victoria and Collins Streets. In 1906, according to Postal Directories, the corner shop was occupied by Robert
Geary who was a bootmaker. By the 1920s, TC Button was the owner of the buildings, his ownership extended
into the late 1930s.
Physical A two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical corner shop. The building wraps around the corner of
Description:  Harrington and Victoria Streets, and has a splayed edge positioned at the intersection of the rwo streets. A

corbelled brick chimney is positioned at the rear of the building, and the roof is concealed by a parapet, one
section of which (facing Harrington Street) is elegantly detailed. There is an open-crowned triangular pediment
to the splayed corner section of the building, beneath this is a cornice that runs the length of the facade. There
are two first floor round-arched sash windows. One window occupies the Harrington Street frontage, while the
other window is located in the splayed section. There are two less-ornate sash windows to the Victoria Street
elevation, one occupies a first floor skillion roof section and the other is positioned directly underneath on rhe
ground floor. A bracketed cornice runs along the upper ground floor level. Shop windows to the ground floor
are of traditional configuration, occupying the space of the original shop windows. The shop entrance is
located in the splayed section of the building, and consists of a glazed timber-framed door with toplight.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact early twentieth century commercial
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

85A Harringtton Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed brick Federation Free

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that arc not currently acknowledged.
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Classical corner conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Wignall's Buildings Reference: (52
87-93 Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shops Architectural Style: Inter-War with Art Nouveau influences
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intaci with the Construction Date: ¢1923 o
exception of ground floor shopfronts.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [J
Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street between Liverpool and Victoria Streers. It is a
Contribution large commercial premises that is part of a largely intact commercial streetscape composed of buildings dating

from the late nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. This landmark structure makes a valuable contribution to the
streetscape of the areq.

History:  These conjoined shops are located on land that was originally granted to Lawrence Wallis. This 35 perch
allotment was built upon by the mid 1840s. This would have been a highly desirable piece of land as it had
access to the Rivulet, as well as frontages onto Melbourne Street (now Victoria Street) and Harrington Street.
Benjamin Wignall established his basket and wickerware business in 1877. His business was one of two rival
firms operating in Hobart, the other was Bridges Brothers located in Elizabeth Street. In 1879, Wignall
constructed a new shop and residence at 96 Harrington Street. In 1923 Wignall constructed a large shop
complex on the opposite side of Harrington Street. The building was designed by local architect G Stanley
Crisp, and contained five shops on the ground floor, and a large residence on the first floor. This building was
connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by June 1924. The complex is currently owned by Wignalls
Properties Pty Ltd, and so the Wignall's connection with this property continues.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet which is
Description:  stepped so that there is a lower section at the centre of the facade. There is an Art Nouveau motif to the centre

section of the parapet below which are stylised plaster letters reading: Wignall's Buildings. The facade is
divided into several bays by pilasters. There are oriels at either end of the first floor facade and sets of two and
three casement windows with multi-paned highlights. All windows to the first floor are topped by elegant
cornices. The cantilevered boxed-awning has a pressed metal soffit with floral motif. The ground floor
shopfronts are of modern construction. They are composed of large metal-framed shop windows and glazed
double doors positioned at the centre of each shopfront,

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact late nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association;

PLEASE NOTE

This place is of historic heritage significance because of its
long time association (more than 80 years) with Wignall
and Co, an early established and long-running Hobart
business originally specialising in the production of wicker
ware and baskets.

This data sheet is intended 10 provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

87-93 Harrington Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War
commercial building with Art Nouveau influences.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C51
113 Harrington Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Manufacturing and Processing Plant, Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Trades and crafts (eg blacksmithing,
wheelwrights)
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Vicrorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. There Construction Date: c/857 -

are large shop windows to the ground
floor, which are of modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Render/Paint Attic: Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Harrington Street, and is one of a small number of nineteenth
Contribution century buildings located within this section of streetscape. This historic building group is in dispersed among
later rwentieth century industrial and commercial structures.

History: This structure was constructed some time berween 1845 to 1857, It is not present on James Sprent's survey of
Hobart Town 1841-1845; however, it is listed on the Assessment Roll of 1857. Described as a 'house' in 1857, it
became a 'dwelling-house and shop used as a dwelling house' in 1867. The land on which it stands was
originally granted to Samuel Bate. It is located next door to 115 Harrington Street, which is a building that
dates from the 1840s. From 1880 to 1915 (and beyond), Keating’s Furniture Factory operated from this
premises. According to Scripps, James Keating was a, 'cabinet maker, carpenter, church furniture
manufacturer, school furniture manufacturer and upholsterer’. He sold his wares in the shop at the front of the
building and probably lived upstairs. The property was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system in
1906. Mrs Mary Keating was originally shown as the owner on the drainage sheet, however her name was
crossed out and replaced with that of Mrs Bowen. Mrs Bowen was still listed as the owner in | 930, when
further drainage works were carried out. In 1971, minor internal alterations were carried out. Planning
permission was granted to erect an awning over the front doorway in 1985 (since removed). Large shop
windows were also installed on the ground floor at some time.

Physical This two storey Victorian Georgian building is constructed of brick, and has a hipped roof of corrugated iron. A

Description:  parapet wall partially shields the roofline from the street, and there is a large dormer window of modern
framework located on the southern roof plane. The facade is stuccoed. Decorative mouldings surround three
double-hung windows that are evenly spaced across the JSacade; sandstone quoins are also a feature. On the
ground floor there is a central doorway with large shop windows at either side. A 12-paned double-hung
window is located at the NW side of the building.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 uf the HCH Act for the expanded criferia.)

(a)-Historical: {(e)-Creative / Technical:

113 Harrington Street is of historic heritage significance
because it contributes to our knowledge of the pattern of early
settlement within Hobart's central areq.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
streetscape that is composed of a mixture of historic
commercial/industrial buildings dating from the nineteenth
and early twentieth centuries,

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

113 Harrington Street has the potential to yield important It has a special association with the work of James Keating
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute who was a small scale Sfurniture manufacturer, who

to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart, remained in business at this premises for more than thirty
and may also contribute to our knowledge of small-scale years.

industry undertaken in the nineteenth and early twentieth

centuries. -

(d)-Representative of:

113 Harrington Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed brick Victorian
Georgian industrial/commercial building,

PLEASE NOTE )
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Menzies Centre (formerly Mather's Domain Store) Reference: C86
17 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Education/Scientific Research
Feature Type: Office Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity:  Internal and external alterations were Construction Date: ¢1922

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution:

History:

Physical
Description:

made to the Inter-War section in the
1960s and 1970s and early 1990s. A
large two storey brick addition is
thought to have been constructed in the
1970s.

2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick Attic: []  Basement [J

The building is located in Liverpool Street near the intersection with Campbell Street. It is one of two
commercial buildings (refer also 19-29 Liverpool Street) dating from the Inter-War period to Jframe the nothern
side of this prominent intersection, The building is an important historic element within a diversely composed
streetscape.

The building is located on land that was originally granted to Arthur Perry. The 31 perch allotment was built
upon by the 1840s. This 1840s building survived until the early nineteenth century, and was connected to the
Ciry's reticulated sewerage system in 1907. At the rime the then residence was owned by Mr Arthur Edward
Chancellor's Estate.  In c1908 Mr Arthur Mathers purchased the property, and established Mathers Domain
Store at the premises. It was a two storey brick Victorian Georgian building conjoined with several single
storey sheds, shops etc, positioned along the Liverpool Street frontage, which were all part of Mathers' shop and
warehouse complex. Interestingly, the residence next door to Mather's store in Campbell Street, also dated from
the 1840s, and appears to have been occupied by Mr Arthur Mathers by 1909. The old shop and warehouse
were replaced in c1922 with a new premises. This Inter-War shop was added to in the 1960s and 1970s, and in
the early 1990s Mathers Domain Store was purchased by the University of Tasmania. Minor changes were
made to the ground floor shopfront of the Inter-War building, as well as interior alterations to provide for the
change of the use of the premises to offices.

It is a two storey face brick Inter-War commercial building. The roof is concealed [from street view by an
elegantly proportioned parapet with rectangular pediment positioned at the centre-edge. There are three large
double-hung sash windows to the first floor that are topped by accented cornices. A boxed awning clad with
metal sheeting is supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor. Below the awning the shopfront has
been substantially built-in, with a large window to one end of the facade. There is a c1970 rwo storey face brick
addition to the building at the corner of Campbell and Liverpool Streets.

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

PLEASE NOTE

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

17 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the community
because it makes an important contribution to the
streetscape of the area, which is diverse, but composed of
several key historic buildings dating from the nineteenth
and early twentieth centuries.

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not curreitly acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Assaciation;

17 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart's early settlement
history because the site has been built upon and occupied since
the early nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of:

17 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics ofa
two storey face brick Inter-War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
'This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C49
19-29 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/offices Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: 1909
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Face Brick : Attic: [J Basement [J
Streetscape The commercial complex is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street at the corner with Campbell Street,

Contribution and is flanked on one side by the old Blundstone factory building located in Campbell Streer, which was built
around the same time. The structure is positioned at the street-edge, and effectively frames the NW corner of
this busy intersection. It is a valuable part of the historic streetscape of the area, and contributes 1o the general
historic character of the central area.

History: These conjoined buildings are located on land that was originally granted to Henry Hopkins, William Rout and
Alexander McNaughton. This 1 rood 22 perch parcel was built upon by the 1840s. A house was located on the
allotment at the corner of Liverpool and Campbell Streets, and is believed to have been originally constructed
in the 1830s. This brick residence was later demolished when the new buildings were constructed. The
buildings were constructed in 1909, when Henry Cane built his boor factory (Blundstones) in Campbell Street.
These conjoined buildings (formerly 19-21 Liverpool Street) consisted of two shops, offices and a residence
(located on the first floor of what was originally no. 21 Liverpool Street). The ground floor levels of both
premises have been used as shops continuously since their construction. A year gfter construction, no. 19 (the
corner shop) was occupied by Mrs Heather, a fruiterer, and Jason Fearnley ran a butchery from no. 21. From
the 1920s until the 19505, the corner shop was occupied by fruit and greengrocer businesses. Drapers,
dressmakers and milliners often occupied the first floor of no. 19. The first floor residential level of no. 21 was
often occupied by individuals associated with bootmaking. In the 1950s, ownership of the site was tranferred ro
Phillip Pavlides and Theo. Georgeson. By the late 1960s, the property appears to have been purchased by the
State Government, and by the early 1970s, the rear section of no. 21 was being used by probation officers, and
the front section was functioning as a shop. In 1987, the ground floor level of no. 21 had become the office of
the Cancer Support Service, while no. 19 was functioning as a shop, a use that continues today.

Physical Two storey face brick Federation mixed commercial building. The roof is concealed by a brick parapet

Description:  surmounted by evenly positioned capped pillars. There is a sandstone cornice positioned under the parapet,
which runs the length of both the Campbell and Liverpool Streets facades. A thicker strip of sandstone runs
below the cornice just above the first floor windowline. Windows to the first floor are single and pairs of timber-
framed casements with three-paned highlights. Further detail includes a narrow sandstone cornice that
intersects with the top half of the windows, and a thick sandstone cornice that runs below the first floor
windows. There is a splayed section at the corner of Campbell and Liverpool Streets, which consists of a single
casement window to the first floor and an entrance to the ground floor. The ground floor Jacade to Liverpool
Street is dominated by large shop windows with timber highlights. There is also a shop window to the Campbell
Street facade, this is flanked on one side by a pair of casements. The building has a sandstone plinth.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

19-29 Liverpool Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within the central Hobart during the first half of
the twentieth century.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: E (g)-Association:

19-29 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
informnation, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart's early settlement,
given that the site has been continually built upon since the
1830s.

(d)-Representative of;

19-29 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey face brick Federation
commercial complex.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended (o provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  City Police Station Reference: C45
31-41 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Police Services Present Use:  Police Services
Feature Type:  Police Office Architectural Style: Inrer-War Georgian Revival
Integrity: Two end sections of the facade were Construction Date: 1928 T

demolished in c1990 during the
construction of the Tasmania Police
Headguarters. The interior of the
building is reportedly largely intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Cement Render Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is one of a group of nineteenth/early twentieth

Contribution century buildings located on this side of Collins Street that are part of either the Police Headquarters or
Magistrates Court complexes. The building is an important historic element, and makes a valuable contribution
to the streetscape of the area.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to Samuel Augustus Tegg. This I rood 12 perch
allotment was formed and built upon by the mid-1840s. There were three building on the allotment by that time
which survived until the early 1900s. They were demolished and replaced with a new Police Office - the
building that currently occupies the site. This building, which was designed by the Government's Public Works
Department, was completed in 1928 and superceded the old Police Office which was located next door (now
the site of the Hobart Magistrate's Court complex). The old Police Office building was constructed in the early
1800s, and purchased by the Government in 1821 as a residence for the Colonial Surgeon and rwo Assistant
Surgeons. The building continued to be associated with the Colonial Hospital (located on present site of RHH)
until 1893. From 1896 it became a Police Office. The building was demolished in 1929 and the allotment
remained vacant until 1956, when construction of a new Magistrates Courts complex was commenced and
completed the following year.

Physical A two storey face brick and cement rendered Inter-War Georgian Revival Police Office. It has a hipped roof

Description:  clad with corrugated iron, which is partially obscured from view by a prominent stepped and curved paraper
located at the centre of the building. This central parapeted section is cement rendered to appear as stone, and
is the top part of a rendered central bay encompassing the ground and first floors. This central rendered bay is
fanked on either side by two face brick sections with rendered detailiing including quoins, lintels, sills and
stringcourses. Windows are timber-framed and double-hung with 6-paned top sashes. Ornamentation to this
building is restrained. There is a Coat-of-Arms and the date: AD1928 to the parapeted section, just above a
central first floor window. The words: Police Office are painted in gold on a spandrel between the central
ground floor entrance and central first floor window. The front entry is a classical composition reminicent of
the Victorian Georgian style. There is a rounded cornice above a multi-paned fanlight which sits above a large
panelled timber door.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (H)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
streetscape with a number of intact historic buildings dating
from the nineteenth/early twentieth century.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

The Police Office at 31-41 Liverpool Street has the potential to
Yyield important information, of an archaeological nature, that
may contribute to a greater understanding of the early
operations of the Tasmania Police force, particular in relation
to the City of Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

The building at 31-41 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey face brick and cement render
Inter-War Georgian Revival Police Office.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (refer also C 74) Reference: CI8

49-57 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC

Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Architectural Style: Vicrorian Georgian/Federation

Feature Type: Conjoined Shops

Integrity:  Externally predomiantly intact.” Construction Date: ¢854

Attic: [] Basement [

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco

These conjoined shops are located on the northern side of Liverpool Street. There is also a shop dating from
the Federation period that is part of this property, a separate datasheet has been prepared for that shop (refer
C74). These conjoined shops are part of an uninterrupted group of commercial buildings dating from the
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, which form a largely intact historic streetscape along this section of

Liverpool Streer.

Streetscape
Ceontribution

History: These conjoined shops stand on land originally granted to Richard and Jane Cooke. There are structures
present on this site on the Plan of the City of Hobart Town, 1854. According to photographic evidence and
early directories, the site was occupied by McCracken's Mear and Preserving Works as early as 1857 and as
late as 1867. These three conjoined shops first appear on the Assessment Roll of 1867, listed as a house, shop
and warehouse. George Wilson occupied the warehouse in that vear, and operated a jam factory from the site in
the 1870s. Physical and documentary evidence suggested that the structure was constructed in the mid
nineteenth century, but later re-built due to fire. According to The Critic, three shops located past the
Brunswick Hotel were burnt down in the 1900s, and these were replaced by "...stately buildings." In 1922, new
shopfronts were installed at 55 Liverpool Street for Mrs. E.B. Wilson; these are still intact. More recently, a
store room was built at the rear of 51 Liverpool Street. The site is currently owned by the Estate of William
Wilson, which means the property has been owned by the one family for more than 130 years.

Physical The rear section of these two storey Victorian Georgian brick shops is of early construction. It is built of small

Description:  handmade bricks, and there are Jour double-hung 12-paned windows with sandstone lintels and sills. The Sfront
portion of these shops (including the classically proportioned facade) dates from the later nineteenth/early
rwentieth century. The building has a gabled roof clad with corrugated iron and masonry partition walls
berween the three shops. The facade consists of a row of symmertrically arranged double-hung single-paned
sash windows with moulded cornices. There is a boxed-awning that is supported by tension wires embedded in
the first floor. The form and style of the shopfronts of all three shops indicate that they date from the early
twentieth century.

R—

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

49-57 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of Hobart's central area.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century

commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

The conjoined shops at 49-57 Liverpool Street have the
potential to yield important information of an archaeological

PLEASE NOTE

The conjoined shops at 49-57 Liverpool Street are of
heritage significance because of their long association with

‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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nature, that may contribute to a greater understanding of the  the Wilson Samily, who have been connected with the
early settlement of Hobart, specifically the commercial and property for the last 130 years,

industrial activities that were undertaken in the mid to late

nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of;

49-57 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey brick Victorian Georgian
commercial building.,

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (refer also CI18)

49-57 Liverpool Street

Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Hobart

Present Use;

Reference: (C74
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Architectural Style: Federation with Anglo-Dutch influences

c1907

Attic: [] Basement [

Feature Type:  Shop
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Face Brick
Streetscape This shop is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is part of a property including three Victorian
Contribution Georgian conjoined shops, a separate datasheer has been prepared for these shops (C18). This Federation
shop is part of an uninterrupted group of commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth
centuries that form a largely intact historic streetscape along this section of Liverpool Srreer.
History:  The shop is located on land that was originally granted to George Lowe. It was connected to the City sewerage
system in 1907, at the time it was owned by Mr William Wilson Junior.
Physical A two storey face brick Federation shop with Anglo-Dutch influences. The roof is concealed by a parapet
Description:  crowned by an elaborate pediment. There is a badly eroded scroll ornament directly beneath the centre

pediment that perhaps once showed the date of construction. Constrasting red and cream coloured bricks have
been used in the design. There are several stringcourses of cream bricks, and rows of alternatively coloured
cream and red bricks above the window lintels. Moulded-brick detailing is also a Sfeature. The first floor
windows are two pairs of double-hung single-paned sashes with round-arched highlights filled with green-
coloured glass. There is a boxed-awning which is supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor
facade. The shopfront is largely intact, with original window configuration. The glazed-central door is a
modern addition.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER
(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

(d)-Representative of:

This shop is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two
storey face brick Federation commercial building with Anglo-
Dutch influences.

PLEASE NOTE

( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

This shop has strong meaning for the community because it
contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

(g)-Association:

The shap is of heritage significance because of its long
association with the Wilson family, who have had some
association with the property for over 80 years.

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building

59-63
Original Use:

Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

Reference: CJ7

Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Conjoined shops Architectural Style: Federation Anglo-Dutch
Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date: ¢/906 o
three shopfronts have been modified. _
2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Paint Attic: [] Basement [

The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial
building located in this section of the street. It is part of a largely intact nineteenth/early rwentieth century
commercial streetscape.

These conjoined shops are located on land that was originally granted to David Lord. This 32 perch grant was
built upon by the mid 1840s. In 1906, however, the building was replaced with three conjoined shops owned by
the Amercian Sugar Boilers Company. This company owned the property until the late 1920s, when it was
purchased by the American Catering Company Ltd. By the late 1940s, the Industrial Acceptance Corporation
Led owned the buildings, however Palfreyman'’s Pty Lid was the owner by the early 1950s.

It is a two storey painted brick Federation Anglo-Dutch commercial building with Art Nouveau detailing.

There are two parapeted gables at each end of the facade with pediments. At the centre edge of the parapet is a
tablet with the words: AD 1906. The facade is divided into a series of bays by pilasters that are topped by
sphere-shaped finials. There are circular air vents surrounded by Art Nouveau inspired decorative mouldings tc
each parapeted gable. Windows to the first floor are a mixture of large round-segmental arches, and round-
arched double-hung single-paned sashes. The two chimneys that are visible from the street have highly stylised
chimney tops that complement the intricately modelled facade. There is a boxed-awning that is suspended by
tension wires embedded in the first floor, and a pressed metal soffit to this structure with a classical Greek
pattern. The three shopfronts are of modern style and configuration. An old painted sign concerning
confectionary is located on the exterior wall on a passage-way.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:;

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

59-63 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's
ceniral area.

(d)-Representative of;

59-63 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey brick Federation Anglo-Dutch
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE '
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,

ar
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Name: Brunswick Hotel Reference: CI16

67 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Horel Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian/Inter-War Free
Classical .
Integrity: The building has been remodelled Construction Date:  1831/1927

through the years, however some
original features remain intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Sandstone/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape The hotel is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of commercial buildings
Contribution constructed in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that together form a consistent historic streetscape.

History: The hotel was established in 1831, and was known as the Brunswick Wine Vaults. It is present on both the Plan
of Hobart Town 1839 by Frankland, and James Sprent's survey 1841-1845. It stands on land originally
granted to George Roberts. The original two storey structure is set back five metres from the street. In the
1840s, according to Robertson, the hotel was kept by Mrs. Mills whe ran coaches to New Norfolk. The stables
located at the rear of the hotel were a key feature. In 1910, the hotel was fire damaged (the attached livery
stables were destroyed in the blaze), and a new facade was built in 1927. In the 1930s, a one storey addition of
13 squares was made to the rear of the building. The interior was also extensively remodelled; walls were
removed, wooden floors were replaced with concrete floors, and new bar fittings and fire fronts were installed.
The back bar was converted into a lounge.

Physical This hotel is two storeys high and is predominantly of brick construction, however, sandstone has also been used

Description:  in some areas, such as the original facade. The street-front facade (built 1927) is in the Inter-War Free
Classical style. There is a paraper with centrally placed triangular pediment, and a series of pilasters that
divide the facade into several bays. There is also a line of double-hung sash windows to the upper floor set in
richly painted surrounds, while the ground storey has diachromatic ceramic tiling, Art Nouveau leadlighting,
and stained glass windows.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic cultural heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate and contribute to our
knowledge of the early settlement pattern of Hobart,
specifically the early distribution of public houses within the

city.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Brunswick Hotel has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart,
and specifically life surrounding the use and enjoyment of the
local public house.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufTicient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic heritage significance because of
its intact Inter-War facade, and its fabric dating from the
early nineteenth century.

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Tasmania House Reference: C42
93-93A Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, Construction Date:  ¢1860 o
modern fully-glazed ground floor
shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of number historic commercial

Contribution buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. The building is sandwiched between later rwentieth century
structures, and its form and elegantly detailed facade make a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the
area, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: The building is located on land that was granted to John Moses on 24th August 1857. It is thought that the
structure was built soon after. The original building facade, according to a photograph from the later
nineteenth century, was symmetrical, and composed of a brick parapet which concealed the roof, a cornice
below this, and two double-hung sash windows to the first floor. There were also guoins to the first floor, and
an elaborate multi-panelled shopfront. The premises was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by
August 1906. The owner at this time was Mr George H Wilson of Lord's Hill, New Town. Further drainage
works were carried out in 1927. Mr HE Button was the owner at this time.

Physical It is a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with a Federation facade that

Description:  includes Art Nouveau influences. The roof is concealed by a rendered parapet surmounted by three evenly
spaced pillars benween which are curvilinear cast iron panels. There is a cornice and below this a moulded
panel with the words: "Tasmania House' in plaster lettering. This panel is surrounded by raised plaster
moulding which is in geometric and curvilinear shapes. There are two large oriels to the first floor with stained
and leadlight highlights of Art Nouveau influence. There are moulded panels below both windows and a
cantilevered boxed awning that shelters the shopfront. The shopfront is of modern construction with large metal.
Sframed shop window and glazed entrance.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes to a diverse commercial streetscape composed
of nineteenth and twentieth century commercial buildings.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

93-93A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial activities in
Hobart's central areaq.

(d)-Representative of:

93-93A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian commercial

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprelicnsive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Brunswick Hotel Reference: CI16

67 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Horel Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian/Inter-War Free
Classical .
Integrity: The building has been remodelled Construction Date:  1831/1927

through the years, however some
original features remain intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Sandstone/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape The hotel is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of commercial buildings
Contribution constructed in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that together form a consistent historic streetscape.

History: The hotel was established in 1831, and was known as the Brunswick Wine Vaults. It is present on both the Plan
of Hobart Town 1839 by Frankland, and James Sprent's survey 1841-1845. It stands on land originally
granted to George Roberts. The original two storey structure is set back five metres from the street. In the
1840s, according to Robertson, the hotel was kept by Mrs. Mills whe ran coaches to New Norfolk. The stables
located at the rear of the hotel were a key feature. In 1910, the hotel was fire damaged (the attached livery
stables were destroyed in the blaze), and a new facade was built in 1927. In the 1930s, a one storey addition of
13 squares was made to the rear of the building. The interior was also extensively remodelled; walls were
removed, wooden floors were replaced with concrete floors, and new bar fittings and fire fronts were installed.
The back bar was converted into a lounge.

Physical This hotel is two storeys high and is predominantly of brick construction, however, sandstone has also been used

Description:  in some areas, such as the original facade. The street-front facade (built 1927) is in the Inter-War Free
Classical style. There is a paraper with centrally placed triangular pediment, and a series of pilasters that
divide the facade into several bays. There is also a line of double-hung sash windows to the upper floor set in
richly painted surrounds, while the ground storey has diachromatic ceramic tiling, Art Nouveau leadlighting,
and stained glass windows.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic cultural heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate and contribute to our
knowledge of the early settlement pattern of Hobart,
specifically the early distribution of public houses within the

city.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Brunswick Hotel has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart,
and specifically life surrounding the use and enjoyment of the
local public house.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufTicient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic heritage significance because of
its intact Inter-War facade, and its fabric dating from the
early nineteenth century.

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Tasmania House Reference: C42
93-93A Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, Construction Date:  ¢1860 o
modern fully-glazed ground floor
shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of number historic commercial

Contribution buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. The building is sandwiched between later rwentieth century
structures, and its form and elegantly detailed facade make a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the
area, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: The building is located on land that was granted to John Moses on 24th August 1857. It is thought that the
structure was built soon after. The original building facade, according to a photograph from the later
nineteenth century, was symmetrical, and composed of a brick parapet which concealed the roof, a cornice
below this, and two double-hung sash windows to the first floor. There were also guoins to the first floor, and
an elaborate multi-panelled shopfront. The premises was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by
August 1906. The owner at this time was Mr George H Wilson of Lord's Hill, New Town. Further drainage
works were carried out in 1927. Mr HE Button was the owner at this time.

Physical It is a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with a Federation facade that

Description:  includes Art Nouveau influences. The roof is concealed by a rendered parapet surmounted by three evenly
spaced pillars benween which are curvilinear cast iron panels. There is a cornice and below this a moulded
panel with the words: "Tasmania House' in plaster lettering. This panel is surrounded by raised plaster
moulding which is in geometric and curvilinear shapes. There are two large oriels to the first floor with stained
and leadlight highlights of Art Nouveau influence. There are moulded panels below both windows and a
cantilevered boxed awning that shelters the shopfront. The shopfront is of modern construction with large metal.
Sframed shop window and glazed entrance.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes to a diverse commercial streetscape composed
of nineteenth and twentieth century commercial buildings.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

93-93A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial activities in
Hobart's central areaq.

(d)-Representative of:

93-93A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian commercial

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprelicnsive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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building with Federation facade.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Brunswick Hotel Reference: CI16

67 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Horel Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian/Inter-War Free
Classical .
Integrity: The building has been remodelled Construction Date:  1831/1927

through the years, however some
original features remain intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Sandstone/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape The hotel is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of commercial buildings
Contribution constructed in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that together form a consistent historic streetscape.

History: The hotel was established in 1831, and was known as the Brunswick Wine Vaults. It is present on both the Plan
of Hobart Town 1839 by Frankland, and James Sprent's survey 1841-1845. It stands on land originally
granted to George Roberts. The original two storey structure is set back five metres from the street. In the
1840s, according to Robertson, the hotel was kept by Mrs. Mills whe ran coaches to New Norfolk. The stables
located at the rear of the hotel were a key feature. In 1910, the hotel was fire damaged (the attached livery
stables were destroyed in the blaze), and a new facade was built in 1927. In the 1930s, a one storey addition of
13 squares was made to the rear of the building. The interior was also extensively remodelled; walls were
removed, wooden floors were replaced with concrete floors, and new bar fittings and fire fronts were installed.
The back bar was converted into a lounge.

Physical This hotel is two storeys high and is predominantly of brick construction, however, sandstone has also been used

Description:  in some areas, such as the original facade. The street-front facade (built 1927) is in the Inter-War Free
Classical style. There is a paraper with centrally placed triangular pediment, and a series of pilasters that
divide the facade into several bays. There is also a line of double-hung sash windows to the upper floor set in
richly painted surrounds, while the ground storey has diachromatic ceramic tiling, Art Nouveau leadlighting,
and stained glass windows.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic cultural heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate and contribute to our
knowledge of the early settlement pattern of Hobart,
specifically the early distribution of public houses within the

city.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Brunswick Hotel has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart,
and specifically life surrounding the use and enjoyment of the
local public house.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufTicient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic heritage significance because of
its intact Inter-War facade, and its fabric dating from the
early nineteenth century.

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Tasmania House Reference: C42
93-93A Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, Construction Date:  ¢1860 o
modern fully-glazed ground floor
shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of number historic commercial

Contribution buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. The building is sandwiched between later rwentieth century
structures, and its form and elegantly detailed facade make a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the
area, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: The building is located on land that was granted to John Moses on 24th August 1857. It is thought that the
structure was built soon after. The original building facade, according to a photograph from the later
nineteenth century, was symmetrical, and composed of a brick parapet which concealed the roof, a cornice
below this, and two double-hung sash windows to the first floor. There were also guoins to the first floor, and
an elaborate multi-panelled shopfront. The premises was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by
August 1906. The owner at this time was Mr George H Wilson of Lord's Hill, New Town. Further drainage
works were carried out in 1927. Mr HE Button was the owner at this time.

Physical It is a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with a Federation facade that

Description:  includes Art Nouveau influences. The roof is concealed by a rendered parapet surmounted by three evenly
spaced pillars benween which are curvilinear cast iron panels. There is a cornice and below this a moulded
panel with the words: "Tasmania House' in plaster lettering. This panel is surrounded by raised plaster
moulding which is in geometric and curvilinear shapes. There are two large oriels to the first floor with stained
and leadlight highlights of Art Nouveau influence. There are moulded panels below both windows and a
cantilevered boxed awning that shelters the shopfront. The shopfront is of modern construction with large metal.
Sframed shop window and glazed entrance.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes to a diverse commercial streetscape composed
of nineteenth and twentieth century commercial buildings.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

93-93A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial activities in
Hobart's central areaq.

(d)-Representative of:

93-93A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian commercial

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprelicnsive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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building with Federation facade.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name: Commercial Building (former Sapphire Ballroom) Reference: (41
105-107  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Commercial/Recreation
Feature Type: Shop and Office complex - Architectural Style: Inter-War Art Deco - -
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date: 1936

shopfronts to the ground floor are of
modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick Attic: [] Basement ¥

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is part of a broader streetcape composed of

Contribution commercial buildings mostly dating from the nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. The building is one of the
most intact commercial premises located in this section of Liverpool Street. It makes a valuable contribution to
the streetscape of the area, and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History: By the mid 1840s, the allotment now occupied by 105-107 Liverpool Street was occupied by several structures
that were probably shops. By the early 1900s, according to Postal Directories, these shops were occupied by
drapers and dressmakers. The office and shop complex that now occupies the site was constructed in 1936; A
Lauriston Crisp was the architect. The building was connected to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system in the
same year. The owner of the complex was a company named Barlington Pry Ltd. This company owned the
property until at least the early 1940s. The basement of this building funcrioned as a dance hall for many
vears. It was known as The Royale in the 1950s when it was occupied by Charles Browne's School of Dancing.
This was followed by Sim Johnstone's School in 1957. From 1960, the Evelyn Goodrich School of Dance
occupied the space for 25 years, at which point the name was changed to the Sapphire Ballroom. The basement
was used as a dance hall until 1990.

Physical A two storey terracotta-coloured face brick Inter-War Art Deco office and shop complex. The roof is concealed

Description: by a stepped parapet which is outlined by a single course of dark brown bricks. The facade is divided into three
distinctive bays. The bays at either end of the facade are shallow projecting sections accented by vertical brick
ornamentation on their upper sections. There are large metal-framed and multi-paned casement windows to
these end sections. The central bay is decorated with evenly spaced brown brick stringcourses to the upper
section, and three metal-framed casements with multi-paned highlights to the lower section. All windows are
outlined by a row of brown bricks. Other features include two down-pipes located at either end of the facade,
that are stylized and contribute to the vertical ornamentation applied 1o the facade. There is an original
cantilevered boxed-awning with horizontal Art Deco motifs to the corner street-edges, and a pressed metal soffit
with Art Deco pattern. The are two ground floor shopfronts, both are of modern construction. The first floor
interior of the building is largely intact. Features include: staircase, sky-light, joinery and plasterwork.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

105-107 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance This place has strong meaning for the community because
due to the intactness of its finely detailed Art Deco interior. it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a

relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape. The building is also throught to possess social
significance specifically related to the long terin use of the
basement level as a dance hall.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association;

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

105-107 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonsirate the principal
characteristics of a two storey (with basement) face brick Inter-
War Art Deco shop and office complex.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Devon House Reference: €40
117 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Federation

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact with the Construction Date: 1900
exception of the shopfront

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and its eastern edge runs along Mather's Lane,

Contribution which has existed since the mid-1840s. The building is part of a broader Streetscape composed of
predominantly nineteenth/early rwentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution 1o the
immediate streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally granted to Rev'd William Bedford. This 39.5 perch land
parcel was subdivided by the 18405, and the allotment now occupied by Devon House was formed and partially
built upon. Devon House is thought to have been constructed in the early 1900s. The premises was connected
to the City reticulated sewerage system by March 1907, the owner at the time was Mr Joseph Francis Mather.
At this rime, according to Postal Directories, the building was occupied by JB Mather and Son, merchant
tailors, and the Friends' High School Office, the Chairman of which was Mr JF Mather. By the 19205, the
building was owned by Mr Wilson I Bailey, ten years later it was part of Mr Wilson Bailey's estate. By the
1950s, Mr N Vakis was the owner.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Federation commercial building. The roof is concealed by a stepped parapet,

Description:  either end of which are emphatic pillars. There is a dentilated cornice beneath the parapet below which are the
words: Devon House written in plaster lettering. Two large round-arch multi-paned casement windows are
positioned just below the name of the building. These windows are highlighted with brick lintels that
incorporate keystones. There is a boxed-awning that is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor
with a vaulted pressed metal soffit of Art Nouveau patterning. The shopfront is of modern construction. There
are large metal-framed shop windows and a glazed front door positioned to one side. There are several other
small shops at the eastern side of the building, that have frontages onto Mather's Lane. These also have modern.
style shopfronts.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Scetion 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; {e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial sireetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

117 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Federation
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended 10 provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: €39
119 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:
ground floor shopfront was re-
constructed c1991.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of two long narrow conjoined shops

Contribution dating from the same period. The shop is also part of a broader streetscape composed of predominantly
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution to the immediate
streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally part of a larger parcel of 39.5 perches granted to Rev'd
William Bedford. This allotment was subdivided by the 1840s, including the land now occupied by 119 and 121
Liverpool Street. By the 1850s, this section of Liverpool Street was substantially built-up, and a structure
appears to have occupied the allotment by this time. This shop {and the shop at 121) is thought to date from the
late nineteenth century. Heathorn's Bakery occupied the premises from the 1870s to the 1890s. Heathorn was a
pastry cook and biscuit maker. The business was continued by a Mrs Golding for a few years. The premises was
connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by September 1906, Permission was earlier granted by the
Metropolitan Drainage Board for there to be combined drains between 119 and 121 Liverpool Street, as the
buildings had the one owner, Mrs Eva Farrer, who resided in Murray Street. The shop was occupied by W
King, who is described by the Postal Directory of the time as being a jeweller. Further additions to the
drainage of the place were made in 1915. In c1991 the shopfront was re-modelled as part of the conversion of
the shop into a café.

Physical A rwo storey stuccoed masonry Victoria Georgian conjoined shop. It is single fronted, long and narrow in plan.

Description:  The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron, and there is a masonry partition wall, as well as centrally placed
corbelled chimney which is shared with the shop next door at 121 Liverpool Street. The main feature of the
facade above the awningline is a double-hung single-paned sash window outlined with a moulded plaster
cornice. There is a cantilevered boxed-awning, with pressed metal soffit in an Art Nouveau pattern, The
shopfront is of modern construction but traditionally styled. The whole front is timber framed, there are three
glazed highlights, and two shop windows either side of a large glazed door.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section [6 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

119 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart’s early history,
specifically in relation to early commercialfindustrial
enterprises.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheel is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

119 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C38
121 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:
shopfront is aof modern construction.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of two long narrow conjoined shops

Contribution daring from the same period. The shop is also part of a broader Streetscape composed of predominantly
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution to the immediate
streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History: The building is located on land thar was originally part of a larger parcel of 39.5 perches granted to Rev'd
William Bedford. This allotment was subdivided by the 1840s, including the allotment now occupied by 119 and
121 Liverpool Street. By the 1850s, this section of Liverpool Street was substanrially built-up, and a structure
appears to have occupied the allotment by this time. The shop (and the shop at 119) is thought to date from the
late nineteenth century. The premises was connected to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by September
1906. Permission was earlier granted by the Metropolitan Drainage Board for there to be combined drains
between 119 and 121 Liverpool Street, as the buildings had the one owner, Mrs Eva Farrer, who resided in
Murray Street. The shop was occupied by RJ Owens, who is described in the Postal Directory of the time as
being a 'manufacturing furrier'. Further additions to the drainage of the place were made in 1915,

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It is single fronted, long and narrow in

Description:  plan. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron, and there is a masonry partition wall, as well as a centrally-
placed corbelled chimney which is shared with the shop next door at 119 Liverpool Street. The main feature of
the facade above the awning line is a double-hung single-paned sash window outlined by a moulded plaster
cornice. There is a cantilevered boxed-awning, with pressed metal soffit in an Art Nouveau pattern. The
shopfront is of modern construction. There is a large angular metal-framed shop window, and a glazed door
with toplight positioned to one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: {(g)-Association:

121 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart's early history,
specifically in relation to early commercial/industrial
enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

121 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowiedged.
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Name: Comimercial Building (formerly part of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also  Reference: C84
C35 - 67-69 Murray Street & C36 - 135 Liverpool Street)
131-133  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC

Original Use:

Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape

Contribution;

History:

Physical

Description:

Trade and Exchange, Contmercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian

There is a rendered masonry addition to Construction Date:  ¢/845

the first floor facade, and a modern

glazed shopfront.

2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Masonry/Render Attic: []  Basement []

The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial
buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. It is an important historic element within the
streetscape of the area, and makes a valuable contribution to the overall historic character of Hobart's central

ared.

This building appears to have been half completed when James Sprent conducted his survey of Hobart Town
1841-1845. For, according to Sprent’s survey, a structure was located at the corner of Liverpool Street on land
granted to John Walford Simons. Interestingly, the Duke of Clarence Inn was first licensed in 1844, its publican
was one Bernard Walford. The inn was used as a polling booth on election days, and had excellent stabling at
the rear. Robertson claims that an inn existed on the site as early as 1832. This may have been the King
George, that, according to Bryce, operated on this site from 1825 to 1843, According to the Assessment Rolls,
John Trowbridge operated the tavern (located at the corner of Liverpool and Murray Streets) from 1857 to
1867. John Davidson was the owner from 1872 to 1901. By the early twentieth century the two conjoined shops
107 & 109 Liverpool Street (now 131-133 Liverpool Street) were occupied by Mrs MA Livingstone, dressmaker
(107) and Lester Brothers, grocers, tea dealers and provision merchants (109). Berween 1924 and 1925, a
facade was erected and parapet wall built over the western end of the building between. The original first floor
double hung 12-paned windows with sandstone lintels and sills were replaced with casement windows. In the
early 1980s, a modern facade was erected over 131-133 Liverpool Street, and internal modifications were made,
including the installation of a staircase.

A two storey brick Victorian Georgian commercial building that wraps around the corner of Liverpool and
Murray Streets. The structure falls into three sections. One section, named Union House, runs parallel to
Murray Street, and fronts onto both Murray and Liverpool Streets. The second section fuces Liverpool Street,
and an intact facade (135 Liverpool Street), while the third section in Liverpool Street (131-133 Liverpool Street
has a modern facade of masonry construction. This section has a hipped roof clad with corrugated iron, and
two brick rendered original chimneys.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act fur the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

Despite alteration to the street-front facade, this place has a
strong meaning for the community because it contributes,
in conjunction with its neighbours, to a relatively intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

131-133 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended (o be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the commercial activities carried
out within early central Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

Despite its modification, 131-133 Liverpool Street is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly part of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also  Reference: C36
C35 - 67-69 Murray Street & C84 - 131-133 Liverpool Street)

135 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop 7 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian .
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date; ¢/845
Modern shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: L] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial

Contribution:  buildings dating from the nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries. It is an important historic element withn the
streetscape of the area, and makes a valuable contribution to the overall historic character within Hobart's
central area.

History: This building was once part of the Duke of Clarence Hotel, which was a large building that appears to have
been half completed when James Sprent conducted his survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845. The building is
located on land that was originally granted 1o John Walford Simons. The Duke of Clarence Inn was first
licensed in 1844, its publican was one Bernard Walford. The inn was used as a polling booth on election days,
and had excellent stabling at the rear. Robertson claims that an inn existed on the site as early as 1832. This
may have been the King George, that, according to Bryce, operated on this site from 1825 ro 1843. According
to the Assessment Rolls, John Trowbridge operated the 'tavern’ from 1857 to 1867. John Davidson was the
owner from 1872 to 1901. There were two shops located within this complex. The shop ar what is now 135
Liverpool Street was occupied by J. Okines from 1867 to 1880. He later expanded his business into the other
shop (now 131-133 Liverpool Street) in 1889. By 1901, these two shops were owned by A.S. Brownell; and by
1910 Brownell had acquired the entire building. In c1924, the building was renamed Union House, and was
modified both inside and out. A fucade was erected and paraper wall builr over the western end of the building,
however the facade of the section at 135 Liverpool Street was untouched. The section was connected to the
City's reticulated sewerage system by March 1906.

Physical A nwo storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It has a hipped roof clad with corrugated iron

Description:  and a centrally-placed chimney, presumably once shared by the shop located next door, There are two double-
hung single-paned sash windows to the first floor with painted sandstone lintels and sills, and a stringcourse tha
runs along the bottom windowline. A strip of what appears to be ripple iron is located above a cantilevered
boxed-awning. The ground floor shopfront is of modern construction. It comprises large shop windows and a
glazed door positioned to one side. A clock is positioned on the first floor between the two windows.

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

135 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

PLEASE NOTE
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

135 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
lo a greater understanding of the settlement history of central
Hobart, and more specifically early commercial enterprises.

(d)-Representative of*

135 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a twe storey painted brick Victorian
Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Wellington Buildings - refer also C33 - 143 Reference: C34

Liverpool Street)
141 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Conjoined Shop 7 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian o
Integrity:  Externally predominanrly intact. Two Construction Date:  ¢/850

12-paned awning-style windows to first
floor (with mirrored panes), and
modern shopfront.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: []  Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of nineteenth/early
Contribution:  rwentieth century commercial buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. It is an important historic
element within the streetscape, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The land on which this conjoined shop stands was originally granted to Thomas James Crouch and John
Hiddlestone. 141 Liverpool Street was part of a building known as Wellington House, which was comprised of
two conjoined shops (now 141 and 143 Liverpool Street). These shops are listed in the Valuation Rolls as early
as 1851. They appear on the Plan of the City of Hobart Town, 1854, and according to the Assessment Roll of
1857, they were occupied by William Murray, a grocer. According to Robertson, 'Murray's Grocery was in
1845 carried on in premises (since rebuilt) now W. Murdoch and Co." Murray was the owner and occupier of
these shops up to the 1880s. He also operated a large soap and candle works in Glenorchy, and sold these
goods at his store.  The shop underwent some alterations and additions during the twentieth century, In recent
times, two modern 12-paned awning windows were installed on the first floor. On the ground floor, modern
shop windows have also been fitted. The original brickwork (exposed in an 1870s photograph) has been painted

Physical A two storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron,

Description:  and there are two 12-paned awning style windows to the first floor with sandstone lintels and sills. There is a
boxed-awning supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor. Shop windows of modern construction
occupy the ground floor, and there is a glazed door at one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

141 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
141 Liverpool Street has sirong meaning for the comumunity
because it contribules, in conjunction with its neighbours,

to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial sireetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

141 Liverpool Street has the potential, despite its modification,
to yield important information, of an archaeological nature,
that may contribute to a greater understanding of the
settlement of Hobart, and mare specifically the early

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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comumercial enterprises undertaken within the central area.

(d)-Representative of:

141 Liverpool Street, despite its modification, is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two storey pamted brick Victorian

Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheel is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Wellington House - refer also C34 - 141 Reference: C33

Liverpool Street)

143 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop ’ Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. There Construction Date: ¢/850
is @ modern ground floor shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of nineteenth/early

Contribution:  rwentieth century commercial buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. It is an important historic
element within the streetscape, and contributes to the general historic character of the central area.

History: The land on which this conjoined shop stands was originally granted to Thomas James Crouch and John
Hiddlestone. 143 Liverpool Street was part of a building known as Wellington House, which was comprised of
two conjoined shops (now 141-143 Liverpool Street). These shops are listed in the Valuation Rolls as early as
1851. They appear on the Plan of the City of Hobart Town, 1854, and according to the Assessment Roll of
1857, they were occupied by William Murray, a grocer. According to Robertson, 'Murray's Grocery was in
1845 carried on in premises (since rebuilt) now W. Murdoch and Co." Murray was the owner and occupier of
these shops up to the 1880s. He also operared a large soap and candle works in Glenorchy, and sold these
goods at his store. The shop underwent some alterations and additions during the rwentieth century. In 1949, a
new glass front door, display windows and shop fittings were installed in preparation for ‘Delphine’ dress
shop. In 1960, the first storey was converted into a penthouse, and internal alterations were made to the ground
floor. A major addition was constructed at the back of the shop in 1964. The existing backyard was covered-in
as a result of this extension. In 1979, the shop was fitted-out to operate as a delicatessen and take away food
store. A metal fascia was subsequently erected over the first floor facade, however this has been since removed.

Physical A two storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron,

Description:  and there is an eye-lid dormer window. There are three windows to the first floor, two are double-hung single-
paned sashes, while one is louvered. All three windows are capped by sandstone lintels with inclined ends.
There is a boxed-awning supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. Large angular metal-
framed shop windows dominate the ground floor, and there is a central glazed door.

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

143 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement

pattern of Hobart,

(b)-Rarity: (N)-Community:
143 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the community
because it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours,
to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

143 Liverpool Street has the potential, despite its modification, This conjoined shop has a special association with the life
to yield important information, of an archaeological nature, and work of William Murray who was an important figure

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not cusrently acknowledged.
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that may contribute to a greater understanding of the early in Hobart's early commercial and industrial enterprises.
settlement of Hobart, and more specifically early commercial
enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

143 Liverpool Street, despite its modification, is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two starey painted brick Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Brunswick Hotel Reference: CI16

67 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Horel Architectural Style: Old Colonial Georgian/Inter-War Free
Classical .
Integrity: The building has been remodelled Construction Date:  1831/1927

through the years, however some
original features remain intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Sandstone/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape The hotel is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of commercial buildings
Contribution constructed in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that together form a consistent historic streetscape.

History: The hotel was established in 1831, and was known as the Brunswick Wine Vaults. It is present on both the Plan
of Hobart Town 1839 by Frankland, and James Sprent's survey 1841-1845. It stands on land originally
granted to George Roberts. The original two storey structure is set back five metres from the street. In the
1840s, according to Robertson, the hotel was kept by Mrs. Mills whe ran coaches to New Norfolk. The stables
located at the rear of the hotel were a key feature. In 1910, the hotel was fire damaged (the attached livery
stables were destroyed in the blaze), and a new facade was built in 1927. In the 1930s, a one storey addition of
13 squares was made to the rear of the building. The interior was also extensively remodelled; walls were
removed, wooden floors were replaced with concrete floors, and new bar fittings and fire fronts were installed.
The back bar was converted into a lounge.

Physical This hotel is two storeys high and is predominantly of brick construction, however, sandstone has also been used

Description:  in some areas, such as the original facade. The street-front facade (built 1927) is in the Inter-War Free
Classical style. There is a paraper with centrally placed triangular pediment, and a series of pilasters that
divide the facade into several bays. There is also a line of double-hung sash windows to the upper floor set in
richly painted surrounds, while the ground storey has diachromatic ceramic tiling, Art Nouveau leadlighting,
and stained glass windows.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic cultural heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate and contribute to our
knowledge of the early settlement pattern of Hobart,
specifically the early distribution of public houses within the

city.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Brunswick Hotel has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart,
and specifically life surrounding the use and enjoyment of the
local public house.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufTicient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

Brunswick Hotel is of historic heritage significance because of
its intact Inter-War facade, and its fabric dating from the
early nineteenth century.

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Tasmania House Reference: C42
93-93A Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, Construction Date:  ¢1860 o
modern fully-glazed ground floor
shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of number historic commercial

Contribution buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. The building is sandwiched between later rwentieth century
structures, and its form and elegantly detailed facade make a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the
area, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: The building is located on land that was granted to John Moses on 24th August 1857. It is thought that the
structure was built soon after. The original building facade, according to a photograph from the later
nineteenth century, was symmetrical, and composed of a brick parapet which concealed the roof, a cornice
below this, and two double-hung sash windows to the first floor. There were also guoins to the first floor, and
an elaborate multi-panelled shopfront. The premises was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by
August 1906. The owner at this time was Mr George H Wilson of Lord's Hill, New Town. Further drainage
works were carried out in 1927. Mr HE Button was the owner at this time.

Physical It is a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with a Federation facade that

Description:  includes Art Nouveau influences. The roof is concealed by a rendered parapet surmounted by three evenly
spaced pillars benween which are curvilinear cast iron panels. There is a cornice and below this a moulded
panel with the words: "Tasmania House' in plaster lettering. This panel is surrounded by raised plaster
moulding which is in geometric and curvilinear shapes. There are two large oriels to the first floor with stained
and leadlight highlights of Art Nouveau influence. There are moulded panels below both windows and a
cantilevered boxed awning that shelters the shopfront. The shopfront is of modern construction with large metal.
Sframed shop window and glazed entrance.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes to a diverse commercial streetscape composed
of nineteenth and twentieth century commercial buildings.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

93-93A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial activities in
Hobart's central areaq.

(d)-Representative of:

93-93A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian commercial

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprelicnsive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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building with Federation facade.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building (former Sapphire Ballroom) Reference: (41
105-107  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Commercial/Recreation
Feature Type: Shop and Office complex - Architectural Style: Inter-War Art Deco - -
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date: 1936

shopfronts to the ground floor are of
modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick Attic: [] Basement ¥

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is part of a broader streetcape composed of

Contribution commercial buildings mostly dating from the nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. The building is one of the
most intact commercial premises located in this section of Liverpool Street. It makes a valuable contribution to
the streetscape of the area, and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History: By the mid 1840s, the allotment now occupied by 105-107 Liverpool Street was occupied by several structures
that were probably shops. By the early 1900s, according to Postal Directories, these shops were occupied by
drapers and dressmakers. The office and shop complex that now occupies the site was constructed in 1936; A
Lauriston Crisp was the architect. The building was connected to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system in the
same year. The owner of the complex was a company named Barlington Pry Ltd. This company owned the
property until at least the early 1940s. The basement of this building funcrioned as a dance hall for many
vears. It was known as The Royale in the 1950s when it was occupied by Charles Browne's School of Dancing.
This was followed by Sim Johnstone's School in 1957. From 1960, the Evelyn Goodrich School of Dance
occupied the space for 25 years, at which point the name was changed to the Sapphire Ballroom. The basement
was used as a dance hall until 1990.

Physical A two storey terracotta-coloured face brick Inter-War Art Deco office and shop complex. The roof is concealed

Description: by a stepped parapet which is outlined by a single course of dark brown bricks. The facade is divided into three
distinctive bays. The bays at either end of the facade are shallow projecting sections accented by vertical brick
ornamentation on their upper sections. There are large metal-framed and multi-paned casement windows to
these end sections. The central bay is decorated with evenly spaced brown brick stringcourses to the upper
section, and three metal-framed casements with multi-paned highlights to the lower section. All windows are
outlined by a row of brown bricks. Other features include two down-pipes located at either end of the facade,
that are stylized and contribute to the vertical ornamentation applied 1o the facade. There is an original
cantilevered boxed-awning with horizontal Art Deco motifs to the corner street-edges, and a pressed metal soffit
with Art Deco pattern. The are two ground floor shopfronts, both are of modern construction. The first floor
interior of the building is largely intact. Features include: staircase, sky-light, joinery and plasterwork.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

105-107 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance This place has strong meaning for the community because
due to the intactness of its finely detailed Art Deco interior. it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a

relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape. The building is also throught to possess social
significance specifically related to the long terin use of the
basement level as a dance hall.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association;

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

105-107 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonsirate the principal
characteristics of a two storey (with basement) face brick Inter-
War Art Deco shop and office complex.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Devon House Reference: €40
117 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Federation

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact with the Construction Date: 1900
exception of the shopfront

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and its eastern edge runs along Mather's Lane,

Contribution which has existed since the mid-1840s. The building is part of a broader Streetscape composed of
predominantly nineteenth/early rwentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution 1o the
immediate streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally granted to Rev'd William Bedford. This 39.5 perch land
parcel was subdivided by the 18405, and the allotment now occupied by Devon House was formed and partially
built upon. Devon House is thought to have been constructed in the early 1900s. The premises was connected
to the City reticulated sewerage system by March 1907, the owner at the time was Mr Joseph Francis Mather.
At this rime, according to Postal Directories, the building was occupied by JB Mather and Son, merchant
tailors, and the Friends' High School Office, the Chairman of which was Mr JF Mather. By the 19205, the
building was owned by Mr Wilson I Bailey, ten years later it was part of Mr Wilson Bailey's estate. By the
1950s, Mr N Vakis was the owner.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Federation commercial building. The roof is concealed by a stepped parapet,

Description:  either end of which are emphatic pillars. There is a dentilated cornice beneath the parapet below which are the
words: Devon House written in plaster lettering. Two large round-arch multi-paned casement windows are
positioned just below the name of the building. These windows are highlighted with brick lintels that
incorporate keystones. There is a boxed-awning that is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor
with a vaulted pressed metal soffit of Art Nouveau patterning. The shopfront is of modern construction. There
are large metal-framed shop windows and a glazed front door positioned to one side. There are several other
small shops at the eastern side of the building, that have frontages onto Mather's Lane. These also have modern.
style shopfronts.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Scetion 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; {e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial sireetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

117 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Federation
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended 10 provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: €39
119 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:
ground floor shopfront was re-
constructed c1991.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of two long narrow conjoined shops

Contribution dating from the same period. The shop is also part of a broader streetscape composed of predominantly
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution to the immediate
streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally part of a larger parcel of 39.5 perches granted to Rev'd
William Bedford. This allotment was subdivided by the 1840s, including the land now occupied by 119 and 121
Liverpool Street. By the 1850s, this section of Liverpool Street was substantially built-up, and a structure
appears to have occupied the allotment by this time. This shop {and the shop at 121) is thought to date from the
late nineteenth century. Heathorn's Bakery occupied the premises from the 1870s to the 1890s. Heathorn was a
pastry cook and biscuit maker. The business was continued by a Mrs Golding for a few years. The premises was
connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by September 1906, Permission was earlier granted by the
Metropolitan Drainage Board for there to be combined drains between 119 and 121 Liverpool Street, as the
buildings had the one owner, Mrs Eva Farrer, who resided in Murray Street. The shop was occupied by W
King, who is described by the Postal Directory of the time as being a jeweller. Further additions to the
drainage of the place were made in 1915. In c1991 the shopfront was re-modelled as part of the conversion of
the shop into a café.

Physical A rwo storey stuccoed masonry Victoria Georgian conjoined shop. It is single fronted, long and narrow in plan.

Description:  The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron, and there is a masonry partition wall, as well as centrally placed
corbelled chimney which is shared with the shop next door at 121 Liverpool Street. The main feature of the
facade above the awningline is a double-hung single-paned sash window outlined with a moulded plaster
cornice. There is a cantilevered boxed-awning, with pressed metal soffit in an Art Nouveau pattern, The
shopfront is of modern construction but traditionally styled. The whole front is timber framed, there are three
glazed highlights, and two shop windows either side of a large glazed door.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section [6 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

119 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart’s early history,
specifically in relation to early commercialfindustrial
enterprises.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheel is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

119 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C38
121 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Conjoined Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:
shopfront is aof modern construction.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street and is one of two long narrow conjoined shops

Contribution daring from the same period. The shop is also part of a broader Streetscape composed of predominantly
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings. It makes a valuable contribution to the immediate
streetscape of the area and to the general historic character of central Hobart.

History: The building is located on land thar was originally part of a larger parcel of 39.5 perches granted to Rev'd
William Bedford. This allotment was subdivided by the 1840s, including the allotment now occupied by 119 and
121 Liverpool Street. By the 1850s, this section of Liverpool Street was substanrially built-up, and a structure
appears to have occupied the allotment by this time. The shop (and the shop at 119) is thought to date from the
late nineteenth century. The premises was connected to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by September
1906. Permission was earlier granted by the Metropolitan Drainage Board for there to be combined drains
between 119 and 121 Liverpool Street, as the buildings had the one owner, Mrs Eva Farrer, who resided in
Murray Street. The shop was occupied by RJ Owens, who is described in the Postal Directory of the time as
being a 'manufacturing furrier'. Further additions to the drainage of the place were made in 1915,

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It is single fronted, long and narrow in

Description:  plan. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron, and there is a masonry partition wall, as well as a centrally-
placed corbelled chimney which is shared with the shop next door at 119 Liverpool Street. The main feature of
the facade above the awning line is a double-hung single-paned sash window outlined by a moulded plaster
cornice. There is a cantilevered boxed-awning, with pressed metal soffit in an Art Nouveau pattern. The
shopfront is of modern construction. There is a large angular metal-framed shop window, and a glazed door
with toplight positioned to one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: {(g)-Association:

121 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of central Hobart's early history,
specifically in relation to early commercial/industrial
enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

121 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowiedged.
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Name: Comimercial Building (formerly part of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also  Reference: C84
C35 - 67-69 Murray Street & C36 - 135 Liverpool Street)
131-133  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC

Original Use:

Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape

Contribution;

History:

Physical

Description:

Trade and Exchange, Contmercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian

There is a rendered masonry addition to Construction Date:  ¢/845

the first floor facade, and a modern

glazed shopfront.

2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Masonry/Render Attic: []  Basement []

The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial
buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. It is an important historic element within the
streetscape of the area, and makes a valuable contribution to the overall historic character of Hobart's central

ared.

This building appears to have been half completed when James Sprent conducted his survey of Hobart Town
1841-1845. For, according to Sprent’s survey, a structure was located at the corner of Liverpool Street on land
granted to John Walford Simons. Interestingly, the Duke of Clarence Inn was first licensed in 1844, its publican
was one Bernard Walford. The inn was used as a polling booth on election days, and had excellent stabling at
the rear. Robertson claims that an inn existed on the site as early as 1832. This may have been the King
George, that, according to Bryce, operated on this site from 1825 to 1843, According to the Assessment Rolls,
John Trowbridge operated the tavern (located at the corner of Liverpool and Murray Streets) from 1857 to
1867. John Davidson was the owner from 1872 to 1901. By the early twentieth century the two conjoined shops
107 & 109 Liverpool Street (now 131-133 Liverpool Street) were occupied by Mrs MA Livingstone, dressmaker
(107) and Lester Brothers, grocers, tea dealers and provision merchants (109). Berween 1924 and 1925, a
facade was erected and parapet wall built over the western end of the building between. The original first floor
double hung 12-paned windows with sandstone lintels and sills were replaced with casement windows. In the
early 1980s, a modern facade was erected over 131-133 Liverpool Street, and internal modifications were made,
including the installation of a staircase.

A two storey brick Victorian Georgian commercial building that wraps around the corner of Liverpool and
Murray Streets. The structure falls into three sections. One section, named Union House, runs parallel to
Murray Street, and fronts onto both Murray and Liverpool Streets. The second section fuces Liverpool Street,
and an intact facade (135 Liverpool Street), while the third section in Liverpool Street (131-133 Liverpool Street
has a modern facade of masonry construction. This section has a hipped roof clad with corrugated iron, and
two brick rendered original chimneys.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act fur the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(£)-Community:

Despite alteration to the street-front facade, this place has a
strong meaning for the community because it contributes,
in conjunction with its neighbours, to a relatively intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

131-133 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended (o be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the commercial activities carried
out within early central Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

Despite its modification, 131-133 Liverpool Street is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two storey Victorian Georgian
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly part of Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also  Reference: C36
C35 - 67-69 Murray Street & C84 - 131-133 Liverpool Street)

135 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop 7 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian .
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date; ¢/845
Modern shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: L] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial

Contribution:  buildings dating from the nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries. It is an important historic element withn the
streetscape of the area, and makes a valuable contribution to the overall historic character within Hobart's
central area.

History: This building was once part of the Duke of Clarence Hotel, which was a large building that appears to have
been half completed when James Sprent conducted his survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845. The building is
located on land that was originally granted 1o John Walford Simons. The Duke of Clarence Inn was first
licensed in 1844, its publican was one Bernard Walford. The inn was used as a polling booth on election days,
and had excellent stabling at the rear. Robertson claims that an inn existed on the site as early as 1832. This
may have been the King George, that, according to Bryce, operated on this site from 1825 ro 1843. According
to the Assessment Rolls, John Trowbridge operated the 'tavern’ from 1857 to 1867. John Davidson was the
owner from 1872 to 1901. There were two shops located within this complex. The shop ar what is now 135
Liverpool Street was occupied by J. Okines from 1867 to 1880. He later expanded his business into the other
shop (now 131-133 Liverpool Street) in 1889. By 1901, these two shops were owned by A.S. Brownell; and by
1910 Brownell had acquired the entire building. In c1924, the building was renamed Union House, and was
modified both inside and out. A fucade was erected and paraper wall builr over the western end of the building,
however the facade of the section at 135 Liverpool Street was untouched. The section was connected to the
City's reticulated sewerage system by March 1906.

Physical A nwo storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It has a hipped roof clad with corrugated iron

Description:  and a centrally-placed chimney, presumably once shared by the shop located next door, There are two double-
hung single-paned sash windows to the first floor with painted sandstone lintels and sills, and a stringcourse tha
runs along the bottom windowline. A strip of what appears to be ripple iron is located above a cantilevered
boxed-awning. The ground floor shopfront is of modern construction. It comprises large shop windows and a
glazed door positioned to one side. A clock is positioned on the first floor between the two windows.

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

135 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape,

PLEASE NOTE
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

135 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
lo a greater understanding of the settlement history of central
Hobart, and more specifically early commercial enterprises.

(d)-Representative of*

135 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a twe storey painted brick Victorian
Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Wellington Buildings - refer also C33 - 143 Reference: C34

Liverpool Street)
141 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Conjoined Shop 7 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian o
Integrity:  Externally predominanrly intact. Two Construction Date:  ¢/850

12-paned awning-style windows to first
floor (with mirrored panes), and
modern shopfront.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: []  Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of nineteenth/early
Contribution:  rwentieth century commercial buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. It is an important historic
element within the streetscape, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The land on which this conjoined shop stands was originally granted to Thomas James Crouch and John
Hiddlestone. 141 Liverpool Street was part of a building known as Wellington House, which was comprised of
two conjoined shops (now 141 and 143 Liverpool Street). These shops are listed in the Valuation Rolls as early
as 1851. They appear on the Plan of the City of Hobart Town, 1854, and according to the Assessment Roll of
1857, they were occupied by William Murray, a grocer. According to Robertson, 'Murray's Grocery was in
1845 carried on in premises (since rebuilt) now W. Murdoch and Co." Murray was the owner and occupier of
these shops up to the 1880s. He also operated a large soap and candle works in Glenorchy, and sold these
goods at his store.  The shop underwent some alterations and additions during the twentieth century, In recent
times, two modern 12-paned awning windows were installed on the first floor. On the ground floor, modern
shop windows have also been fitted. The original brickwork (exposed in an 1870s photograph) has been painted

Physical A two storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron,

Description:  and there are two 12-paned awning style windows to the first floor with sandstone lintels and sills. There is a
boxed-awning supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor. Shop windows of modern construction
occupy the ground floor, and there is a glazed door at one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

141 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
141 Liverpool Street has sirong meaning for the comumunity
because it contribules, in conjunction with its neighbours,

to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial sireetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

141 Liverpool Street has the potential, despite its modification,
to yield important information, of an archaeological nature,
that may contribute to a greater understanding of the
settlement of Hobart, and mare specifically the early

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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comumercial enterprises undertaken within the central area.

(d)-Representative of:

141 Liverpool Street, despite its modification, is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two storey pamted brick Victorian

Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheel is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Wellington House - refer also C34 - 141 Reference: C33

Liverpool Street)

143 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shop ’ Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. There Construction Date: ¢/850
is @ modern ground floor shopfront.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of nineteenth/early

Contribution:  rwentieth century commercial buildings located in this section of Liverpool Street. It is an important historic
element within the streetscape, and contributes to the general historic character of the central area.

History: The land on which this conjoined shop stands was originally granted to Thomas James Crouch and John
Hiddlestone. 143 Liverpool Street was part of a building known as Wellington House, which was comprised of
two conjoined shops (now 141-143 Liverpool Street). These shops are listed in the Valuation Rolls as early as
1851. They appear on the Plan of the City of Hobart Town, 1854, and according to the Assessment Roll of
1857, they were occupied by William Murray, a grocer. According to Robertson, 'Murray's Grocery was in
1845 carried on in premises (since rebuilt) now W. Murdoch and Co." Murray was the owner and occupier of
these shops up to the 1880s. He also operared a large soap and candle works in Glenorchy, and sold these
goods at his store. The shop underwent some alterations and additions during the rwentieth century. In 1949, a
new glass front door, display windows and shop fittings were installed in preparation for ‘Delphine’ dress
shop. In 1960, the first storey was converted into a penthouse, and internal alterations were made to the ground
floor. A major addition was constructed at the back of the shop in 1964. The existing backyard was covered-in
as a result of this extension. In 1979, the shop was fitted-out to operate as a delicatessen and take away food
store. A metal fascia was subsequently erected over the first floor facade, however this has been since removed.

Physical A two storey painted brick Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. The hipped roof is clad with corrugated iron,

Description:  and there is an eye-lid dormer window. There are three windows to the first floor, two are double-hung single-
paned sashes, while one is louvered. All three windows are capped by sandstone lintels with inclined ends.
There is a boxed-awning supported by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. Large angular metal-
framed shop windows dominate the ground floor, and there is a central glazed door.

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

143 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement

pattern of Hobart,

(b)-Rarity: (N)-Community:
143 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the community
because it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours,
to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

143 Liverpool Street has the potential, despite its modification, This conjoined shop has a special association with the life
to yield important information, of an archaeological nature, and work of William Murray who was an important figure

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not cusrently acknowledged.
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that may contribute to a greater understanding of the early in Hobart's early commercial and industrial enterprises.
settlement of Hobart, and more specifically early commercial
enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

143 Liverpool Street, despite its modification, is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a two starey painted brick Victorian
Georgian conjoined shop.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: (32

Name:  Central Buildings

159-161  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shops Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: /929
Floors: Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls: Face Brick/Concrete Attic: (]  Basement [
Streetscape This block of conjoined shops is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street. It is part of a streetscape

Contribution comprised mostly of nineteenth and early twentieth commercial buildings.

History: The land now occupied by the Central Buildings was granted to John Reeve. By the early 19005 there were four
conjoined buildings on the allotment, and a large collection of outbuildings at the rear of the property. The
buildings were connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by October 1906. The owner was Mr
Johnson Sharp, who resided at Main Road, New Town. A solid face brick facade was constructed in 1929. It is
unclear as to how much reconstruction took place at this time. Although most of the structure appears to date
from the Inter-War period, some early nineteenth century fabric is stil evident along the eastern elevation. The
property remained part of Mr Johnson Sharp's estate at least until the 1930s.

Physical A single storey face brick and concrete Inter-War commercial building wirh remnants of earlier ninereenth

Description:  century fabric. The roof is concealed by a stepped parapet, with raised end sections defined by emphatic cement
pilasters. The facade is divided into three face brick bays, there is a cement tablet in the first bay with the
words; A.D. written in cement lettering; the words: Central Buildings are located in the central bay, and the
date:1929 appears in the third bay. There are a row of highlights above the awning-line, and a cantilevered
boxed-awning with pressed metal soffit. The shopfronts appear to date from the 1920s. There are metal-framed
plate glass shop windows with stained glass and leadlight highlights. Shop entrances consist of timber-framed
glazed doors that also appear to be original.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

159-161 Liverpool Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within Hobart's central area during the first half
of the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
159-161 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the

community because it contributes to a relatively intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streeiscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

159-161 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of nineteenth and early twentieth
century commercial and industrial activities.

(d)-Representative of:

159-161 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a single storey face brick and concrete Inter-

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Christian City Church (formerly The Strand Theatre/Odeon) Reference: C71
163-167  Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Entertainment Present Use:  Place of worship
Feature Type:  Theatre Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity: The interior of the theatre was Construction Date: 1916

extensively modified during the 1950s;
minor internal and external alterations
were carried our in 2001-2002. The

overall form of the theatre is intact.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Attic: [ ] Basement []
Brick/Masonry/Render

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, at the intersection with Watchorn Streer. It is

Contribution also positioned diagonally opposite the former His Majesty's Theatre, which dates from the same period. The
building has certain landmark qualities, and is a valuable historic element within the predominantly
nineteenth/early twentieth century streetscape.

History: This building stands on land that was originally granted to William Watchorn. This I rood 10 perch allotment
was built upon by the 1840s, Watchorn having built himself a two storey brick house on the site in the 1830s
and a shop ('Waitchorn Emporium’) soon after. He ran a drapery business, which was the first to employ female
assistants. Watchorn's shop was demolished to allow for the construction of The Strand Theatre in 1916. The
architect for this work was Mr G Stanley Crisp, who modelled the theatre's facade on its famous namesake in
New York. Work was commenced on connecting the theatre to the City's reticulated sewerage system in
December 1915, however this work was not passed by the City's Inspector until February 1917. The owner of
the property at that time was Mr Edmund J Miller. Mr Miller continued as the owner at least until the late
1920s, however by the 1950s Greater Union Theatres Pty Lid owned the property. In 1956, the theatre was
modernised and renamed the 'Odeon’. Plans were submitted and approved by the HCC for alterations, the
estimated cost of which was £67 792. The architects for this major project were Guy Crick and Associates,
Svdney. The theatre appears to have been converted into a full-time picture theatre ar this time. A large movie
screen was installed in front of the existing proscenium arch, new toilet facilities were constructed, and various
other rooms for staff etc; alterations were made to the facade, the foyer was remodelled, the stalls floor level
was raised, a new roof was constructed and alterations were made to the balcony area, as well as the
construction of various windows and doors in the exterior walls of the building to facilitate the internal
changes. The theatre was taken over by the Australian Broadcasting Commission in 1972 for use as a concert
theatre and recording studio. It was in this building that the Tasmanian Symphony Orchestra gained its
reputation for its high quality performances. The theatre was sold in 2001, and purchased by the Christian City
Church. Modifications to the facade were undertake in 2002, new glazed doors, panels were installed, and a
shopfront was constructed.

Physical A two storey brick Inter-War theatre. The roof is clad with corrugated iron, however is concealed from view by

Description:  the facade which has a paraper wall. Most of the exterior walls are face brick, however the facade is
constructed of rendered masonry. The facade has been added to over the years, and given a modern hard-edged
appearance. Despite these modificarions, original elements exist, including a centrally-placed round arch
window, and original window openings once occupied by casements. The glazing to the ground floor facade is
of recent construction, and is linked with the conversion of the theatre into a place of worship.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

163-167 Liverpool Street is of cultural heritage significance
because it demonstrates the growth of
PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

recreation/entertainment industry within Hobart, reflecting the
increased standard of living experienced in the early twentieth

century.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This structure makes an important contribution to the
streetscape of the area despite alterations to the facade, and
therefore is important 1o the community's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association: -

163-167 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature through its built
fabric and possible subsurface deposits, which may contribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early settlement, as well
as the City's early twentieth century entertainment industry,
more specifically the development of theatres/cinemas.

(d)-Representative of:

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: C44

Name: Commercial Building

179 Liverpool Street Hobart HcCC

Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Feature Type: Shop Architectural Style: Victorian

Integrity: Externally predominanty intact, with the Construction Date: ¢1845/1866
exception of the ground floor shopfront. '

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group commercial buildings
Contribution dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
historic streetscape, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was once part of a large one acre grant to Samuel Bate. The allotment that
the building occupies was formed and built upon by the 1840s. It is thought thar the building which currently
oceupies the site dates from the 1840s; having its facade reconstructed in 1866. The building was connected to
the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by 1906, Mr John Latham was the owner at this time.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet with

Description:  rriangular open-bed pediment within which is plaster lettering: 'Established 1866'. Flowing from the open-bed
pediment are two stylised pilasters that connect with classically styled triangular pediments positioned above
each of the nvo windows located on the first floor These windows are single-paned double-hung sashes, that
have moulded plaster cornices, and are underlined by a stuccoed masonry stringcourse. There is a boxed-
awning suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor. The awning has a pressed metal soffit with Art
Deco parterning. The shopfront consists of metal-framed shop windows, a glazed double-door, and ceramic

wall tiles.

R R |
:*_d_t‘iltl‘( NEW FASHIONS & DECOR

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: {g)-Association;

179 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
infermation, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's
central area.

(d)-Representative of:

179 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet s intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: C43
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Residential.

Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Inter-War

Attic: ] Basement [J

Name:  Commercial/Residential Building
181-181A Liverpool Street Hobart
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:
Feature Type:  Shop and Flat
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: c1845/c1916
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group commercial buildings
Contribution:  dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
historic streetscape, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was once part of a large one acre grant to Samuel Bate. The allotment that
the building occupies was formed and built upon by the 1840s. Drainage plans indicate thar there were
originally rwo conjoined buildings on the site with narrow frontages. These buildings were connected to the
City's reticulated sewerage system by 1906, and were owned by Mr Richard G Rogers at the time. In 1916,
toilets were installed to the ground floor and a sink was installed on the first floor. These drainage works may
be indicative of a program of larger works, including the construction of a new Inter-War facade. At this time
Mr JE Cortier was the owner. By the 1930s, the plan of drainage depicts the building in its present plan form -
a single entity. The ownership of the building had passed to Mr G Richardson by this time.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War commercial/residential building with Victorian Georgian remnants at
Description:  its rear. The roof is concealed by a parapet which rises in the centre to a triangle. The angular shape of the

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

parapet is emphasised by plaster moulding that runs along the inside edge. There is a simple cornice that runs
along the bottom edge of the parapet, and beneath this is the first floor facade that is divided into three bays by
Jour narrow pilasters. The centre bay consists of a set of three double-hung windows with multi-paned top
sashes. This section is flanked by two narrow bays each containing a single window the same style as those in
the central bay. There is a boxed-awning, which shelters the ground floor, that is suspended by tension wires
embedded in the facade. A pressed metal soffit with Art Deco pattern is a feature of the awning. The ground
floor shopfront is of modern construction. It consists of a three-paned shop window, and a glazed entrance
positioned at one side.

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

{g)-Association:

181-181A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of central
Hobart, given that the site was built upon from the 1840s, and
there are remnants of building fabric from this period,

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

181-181A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War
commercial/residential building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C89
185 Liverpool Sireet Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office : Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: A chimney has been removed, modern Construction Date: c/845

shopfront constructed, and original first
floor facade demolished and replaced
with brick and clad with cement panels.
The original corrugated iron sheeting to
the roof has been replaced with tiles.

Floors: 2 Roof: Tiles Walls: Brick/Masonry/Cement Attic: [ Basement [
Sheer
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic shops thar date

Contribution:  from the nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries. The building is one of three conjoined (formerly identical)
commercial premises. It makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area both
individually and as part of a group, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: This shop is present on James Sprent’s survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845, and stands on land originally
granted to Samuel Bate. In the 1860s, according to The Critic, this was the butcher shop of Mr. Adcock, who
displayed meat from a verandah that once sheltered the premises. According to the Assessment Rolls, George
Adcock owned the building from 1867 until his death in the 1880s, when it was then controlled by his trustees.
The building was sold by the trustees in the early years of the twentieth century to a former tenant, Mr Thomas
Amott. It remained the property of the Amort family up until the 1940s. Throughout the 1970s, the structure
was extensively modified. In 1973, modern shop windows and glass doors were installed on the ground floor. A
year later, the first floor facade was covered with brown Hardy's asbestos cement shingles. The original
sandstone facade is believed to have been replaced by a brick wall (depicted in the building plans of 1974).
Office space was built onto the rear of the premises in 1979, and the roof was clad with brown tiles.

Physical A two storey brick/masonry Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It has a gabled roof clad with tiles. There are
Description:  three double-hung single-paned sash windows evenly spaced across the Sfirst floor facade which has been clad
with cement sheeting. The ground floor facade is comprised of large shopfront windows and rwo glass doors.

Ry e

e TRE
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: {(H)-Community:

Despite alteration, 185 Liverpool Street has strong meaning
for the community because of its ability to contribute, in
conjunction with its neighbours, to a relatively intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

185 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial enterprises
that operated within central Hobart in the nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other herilage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of;

Despite alteration, 185 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because it is still identifiable as a Victorian
Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: C44

Name: Commercial Building

179 Liverpool Street Hobart HcCC

Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial

Feature Type: Shop Architectural Style: Victorian

Integrity: Externally predominanty intact, with the Construction Date: ¢1845/1866
exception of the ground floor shopfront. '

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group commercial buildings
Contribution dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
historic streetscape, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was once part of a large one acre grant to Samuel Bate. The allotment that
the building occupies was formed and built upon by the 1840s. It is thought thar the building which currently
oceupies the site dates from the 1840s; having its facade reconstructed in 1866. The building was connected to
the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by 1906, Mr John Latham was the owner at this time.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet with

Description:  rriangular open-bed pediment within which is plaster lettering: 'Established 1866'. Flowing from the open-bed
pediment are two stylised pilasters that connect with classically styled triangular pediments positioned above
each of the nvo windows located on the first floor These windows are single-paned double-hung sashes, that
have moulded plaster cornices, and are underlined by a stuccoed masonry stringcourse. There is a boxed-
awning suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor. The awning has a pressed metal soffit with Art
Deco parterning. The shopfront consists of metal-framed shop windows, a glazed double-door, and ceramic

wall tiles.

R R |
:*_d_t‘iltl‘( NEW FASHIONS & DECOR

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer 1o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: {g)-Association;

179 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
infermation, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's
central area.

(d)-Representative of:

179 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet s intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Reference: C43
HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Residential.

Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Inter-War

Attic: ] Basement [J

Name:  Commercial/Residential Building
181-181A Liverpool Street Hobart
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:
Feature Type:  Shop and Flat
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: c1845/c1916
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group commercial buildings
Contribution:  dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
historic streetscape, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was once part of a large one acre grant to Samuel Bate. The allotment that
the building occupies was formed and built upon by the 1840s. Drainage plans indicate thar there were
originally rwo conjoined buildings on the site with narrow frontages. These buildings were connected to the
City's reticulated sewerage system by 1906, and were owned by Mr Richard G Rogers at the time. In 1916,
toilets were installed to the ground floor and a sink was installed on the first floor. These drainage works may
be indicative of a program of larger works, including the construction of a new Inter-War facade. At this time
Mr JE Cortier was the owner. By the 1930s, the plan of drainage depicts the building in its present plan form -
a single entity. The ownership of the building had passed to Mr G Richardson by this time.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War commercial/residential building with Victorian Georgian remnants at
Description:  its rear. The roof is concealed by a parapet which rises in the centre to a triangle. The angular shape of the

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

parapet is emphasised by plaster moulding that runs along the inside edge. There is a simple cornice that runs
along the bottom edge of the parapet, and beneath this is the first floor facade that is divided into three bays by
Jour narrow pilasters. The centre bay consists of a set of three double-hung windows with multi-paned top
sashes. This section is flanked by two narrow bays each containing a single window the same style as those in
the central bay. There is a boxed-awning, which shelters the ground floor, that is suspended by tension wires
embedded in the facade. A pressed metal soffit with Art Deco pattern is a feature of the awning. The ground
floor shopfront is of modern construction. It consists of a three-paned shop window, and a glazed entrance
positioned at one side.

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

{g)-Association:

181-181A Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of central
Hobart, given that the site was built upon from the 1840s, and
there are remnants of building fabric from this period,

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

181-181A Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War
commercial/residential building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name: Commercial Building Reference: C89
185 Liverpool Sireet Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office : Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: A chimney has been removed, modern Construction Date: c/845

shopfront constructed, and original first
floor facade demolished and replaced
with brick and clad with cement panels.
The original corrugated iron sheeting to
the roof has been replaced with tiles.

Floors: 2 Roof: Tiles Walls: Brick/Masonry/Cement Attic: [ Basement [
Sheer
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic shops thar date

Contribution:  from the nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries. The building is one of three conjoined (formerly identical)
commercial premises. It makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area both
individually and as part of a group, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: This shop is present on James Sprent’s survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845, and stands on land originally
granted to Samuel Bate. In the 1860s, according to The Critic, this was the butcher shop of Mr. Adcock, who
displayed meat from a verandah that once sheltered the premises. According to the Assessment Rolls, George
Adcock owned the building from 1867 until his death in the 1880s, when it was then controlled by his trustees.
The building was sold by the trustees in the early years of the twentieth century to a former tenant, Mr Thomas
Amott. It remained the property of the Amort family up until the 1940s. Throughout the 1970s, the structure
was extensively modified. In 1973, modern shop windows and glass doors were installed on the ground floor. A
year later, the first floor facade was covered with brown Hardy's asbestos cement shingles. The original
sandstone facade is believed to have been replaced by a brick wall (depicted in the building plans of 1974).
Office space was built onto the rear of the premises in 1979, and the roof was clad with brown tiles.

Physical A two storey brick/masonry Victorian Georgian conjoined shop. It has a gabled roof clad with tiles. There are
Description:  three double-hung single-paned sash windows evenly spaced across the Sfirst floor facade which has been clad
with cement sheeting. The ground floor facade is comprised of large shopfront windows and rwo glass doors.

Ry e

e TRE
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: {(H)-Community:

Despite alteration, 185 Liverpool Street has strong meaning
for the community because of its ability to contribute, in
conjunction with its neighbours, to a relatively intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

185 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early commercial enterprises
that operated within central Hobart in the nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other herilage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of;

Despite alteration, 185 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because it is still identifiable as a Victorian
Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C31
187 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intacr, Construction Date:  ¢1845
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco ' Attic: []  Basement []
Streetscape The buiding is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic shops that date

Contribution:  from the nineteen and early rwentieth centuries. The building is the only one of three (formerly identical) shops
to have retained its original facade. It makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area
both individually and as part of a group, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central
area.

History: This building appears to be present on James Sprent’s survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845. The land on which it
stands was first granted to Samuel Bate. The property, according to Assessment Rolls, was owned by the Regan
family from 1847 to 1872. The Coverdale family owned the property in the 1880s and 1890s, and John Latham
occupied the premises from the 1870s to the 1890s. He was a ‘seedsman, florist, wholesale and retail fruiterer
and jam manufacturer’ and had nursery grounds in Harrington Street. The building was connected to the Cty's
reticulated sewerage system in April 1906, and was owned by Mr William Batt at this time who resided in Sandy
Bay. Mr Batt continued ro own the property until the 1940s. By 1950, the shop was owned by Mr J Harris. In
this years the ground floor facade was modernised. Plate glass windows and a glass door were installed, and
walls below the shop windows were tiled. A window and doorway at the rear of the building were also
constructed. Soon after these 'improvements’ were made, the shop was purchased by Mr G Haros. In 1996,
plans were submitted to the HCC for internal alterations to the premises, associated with it being used as a
restaurant.

Physical This two storey Victorian Georgian shop is constructed of brick. It has a gabled roof covered by corrugated

Description:  iron and a single face brick chimney. The original first floor ashlar sandstone facade is intact. Three double-
hung 12-paned sash windows are placed evenly across the first floor, and an ornate stone pediment is located
over the central window.

LRI

Muiichies

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

187 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of early Hobart. This ability is heightened by the fact
that it is one of a group of three shaps dating from the mid
nineteenth century.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

187 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The dala sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C31
187 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intacr, Construction Date:  ¢1845
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco ' Attic: []  Basement []
Streetscape The buiding is located on the northern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic shops that date

Contribution:  from the nineteen and early rwentieth centuries. The building is the only one of three (formerly identical) shops
to have retained its original facade. It makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area
both individually and as part of a group, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central
area.

History: This building appears to be present on James Sprent’s survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845. The land on which it
stands was first granted to Samuel Bate. The property, according to Assessment Rolls, was owned by the Regan
family from 1847 to 1872. The Coverdale family owned the property in the 1880s and 1890s, and John Latham
occupied the premises from the 1870s to the 1890s. He was a ‘seedsman, florist, wholesale and retail fruiterer
and jam manufacturer’ and had nursery grounds in Harrington Street. The building was connected to the Cty's
reticulated sewerage system in April 1906, and was owned by Mr William Batt at this time who resided in Sandy
Bay. Mr Batt continued ro own the property until the 1940s. By 1950, the shop was owned by Mr J Harris. In
this years the ground floor facade was modernised. Plate glass windows and a glass door were installed, and
walls below the shop windows were tiled. A window and doorway at the rear of the building were also
constructed. Soon after these 'improvements’ were made, the shop was purchased by Mr G Haros. In 1996,
plans were submitted to the HCC for internal alterations to the premises, associated with it being used as a
restaurant.

Physical This two storey Victorian Georgian shop is constructed of brick. It has a gabled roof covered by corrugated

Description:  iron and a single face brick chimney. The original first floor ashlar sandstone facade is intact. Three double-
hung 12-paned sash windows are placed evenly across the first floor, and an ornate stone pediment is located
over the central window.

LRI

Muiichies

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

187 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of early Hobart. This ability is heightened by the fact
that it is one of a group of three shaps dating from the mid
nineteenth century.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

187 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The dala sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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to a greater understanding of the early settlement of central
Hobart, specifically in relation to early commercial activities.

(d)-Representative of:

187 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian commercial premises.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Rainbow Inn/Tavern) Reference: C85
189 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: The building's street-front facade has Construction Date: cI845

been modified. The original first floor
facade has been demolished and
replaced with one clad with metal
sheeting. The ground floor shopfront is
also of modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Metal Cladding  Attic: ] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Liverpool Streer, and is one of a group of historic shops that date

Contribution:  from the nineteen and early twentieth centuries. The building is the only one of three (formerly identical)
commercial premises. It makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the immediate area both
individually and as part of a group, and contributes to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: This building is present on James Sprent's survey of Hobart Town 1841-1845. It stands on land originally
granted to Samuel Bate. From the 1840s to the 1880s it was known as the Rainbow Inn. Throughout this period
it was owned by George Latham, who was publican from 1847 to 1848. The premises remained the property of
the Latham family until at least the 1950s. In the 1880s, it was signed the Rainbow Public House, with Charles
Beck as publican. In 1885 it was de-licensed, only to be licensed again by 1915 and renamed the Rainbow
Tavern. In 1926, alterations were carried out by Mr. F.H. Latham associated with a change of use from a public
house to shop. Shop windows were installed, and tiles were cemented onto the ground floor facade. In 1972,
metal panelling was attached above the ground floor windows and doors. The rear entry was also
reconstructed after the original entry was found to be constructed of a conglomeration of irregular size timber,
old sheets of masonite, together with pieces of flat corrugated galvanised iron. The walls had been used by rats
and mice as a residence and the spaces were filled with paper, cloth, old bones etc. According 1o building plans,
the original stone facade, presumably marching that of its neighbour, was demolished and replaced with an
aluminium front in the early 1970s.

Physical This building is two storeys high and is of brick construction. The gabled roof is covered with corrugared iron,

Description:  and a large metal sheer covers the facade. On the ground floor, there is a central doorway with large shop
windows on either side. An additional doorway (probably giving access to the first floor) is located at the far
western end of the facade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

189 Liverpool Street is of heritage significance because it has
the ability to illustrate the evolutionary pattern and
development of public houses within central Hobart. This
ability stems from the fact that the building was used as a
public house for over sixty years from the early nineteenth
century.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:

Despite alteration, 189 Liverpool Street has strong meaning
for the community because of its ability to contribute, in
conjunction with its neighbours, to a relatively intact

PLEASE NOTE .

‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial streetscape,

(c)-Research Potential: g2)-Association:

189 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early public houses of central
Hobart and Hobart's early society. 7

(d)-Representative of:

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended (o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Bank Arcade Reference: CI5
64-68 Liverpaool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Arcade Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Inter-War
Integrity: The 1845 building has been modified, Construction Date:  cI845/c1955 o

including the remodelled facade (1923),
however the basic form of the original
structure is intact. The 1953 arcade is
also predominantly intact.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement WV

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial
Contribution structures that date from the nineteenth/early twentieth century. The structure makes a valuable contribution to
the historic streetscape of the area,

History:  The Bank Aracade is located on land that was originally granted to James Brown. This 36 perch parcel was
built upon by the mid 1840s. The building was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system in 1905, At
the time it was owned by Mr T Whitesides who ran Whitesides and Son Furniture Warehouse from the premises.
The area now occupied by the arcade was occupied by several large outbuildings at the time, some of which
were incorporated into the arcade development. Whitesides and Son operated from this site from 1890 until
1922. Further drainage works were carried out on the complex throughout the 1920s, during which the
property was owned by Mr John Storr. Mr Storr was responsible for extensively renovating the building,
including the re-construcrion of the facade. The plans for re-construction of the facade were designed by Salier
Glaskin Architects, and the work was completed in 1923. The new face brick and concrete facade was elegantly
proportioned, and had the words: Storr's Building AD 1923 in cement lettering along the parapet. Mr AJ
Palfreyman was the property owner from the early 1930s until the early 1940s. By the late 1950s, part of the
complex was converted into an arcade containing approximately 14 small shops. Mr Hector McGown was the
owner at the time. Construction of the arcade appears to have occurred in two stages, the ground floor of the
original building was converted into four shops in c1955, and preparations were made for the construction of
an additional ten smaller shops positioned at the rear of the property, which were built. The arcade had its
official opening in 1958,

Physical A three storey masonry and stucco Victorian Georgian commercial complex with Inter-War facade and Posi-

Description:  War arcade. The street-front facade has classical proportions. There is a parapet that conceals the roof, and
four pilasters that divide the facade into three bays. Windows are double-hung single-paned sashes that are
positioned in sets of three. There are three shops that occupy the street-front ground floor; these all have
modern shopfronts. The entrance to the Bank Arcade is splayed and is positioned close to the centre of the
building. There is a boxed-awning along the entire length of the facade supported by tension wires embedded in
the first floor. The original configuration of the arcade is intact, as are most of the shopfronts that are
characterised by large metal-framed shop windows with ribbed hightights, and timber-framed glazed front doors
with toplights.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

64-68 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the pattern of early land
settlement of Hobart's central area,

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The duta sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

64-68 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance as a  This place has strong meaning for the community because

rare example of a predominantly intact Post-War shopping it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a

arcade. relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streestscape.

(c)-Research Potential: ’ (g)-Association:

64-68 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
te an understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's central
ared, and more specifically early industrial enterprises.

(d)-Representative of:

Bank Arcade is of historic heritage significance because of its
largely intact Victorian Georgian formn and detailing, and
because it has the ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a Post-War shopping arcade.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: CI4
70 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Warehouse Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Late Victorian

Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact with the Construction Date: c/845
exception of the ground floor shopfront
which is of modern construction.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco Attic: (] Basement []

Streetscape 70 Liverpool is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street and is one of a group of historic commercial
Contribution buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.

History: The building is located of land that was originally granted to RV Hood, who arrived in Hobart in the 1830s with
his family. Historic accounts suggest that Hood built a picture and lithographic warehouse on his grant, and
subsequently held some of the first exhibitions in Australia at the premises. The building that presently occupies
the site is believed to date from the 1840s. In the late nineteenth century an ornate facade was constructed. In
1906, the premises was connected to the City's sewerage system. At the time it was owned by Mr John Bailey of
John Bailey and Co. This company continued to occupy the premises at least until the late 1930s. Alterations
and additions were made to the premises in 1937. A new shopfront (complete with boxed-awning) was
constructed on the Liverpool Street frontage, as well as at the rear of the building. An internal staircase was
also installed to the ground and first floor levels and other minor additions made. The architect for the project
was AT Johnston of 130 Collins Street, Hobart.

Physical A three storey brick and stucco Victorian commercial building with a single red brick chimney protruding from

Description:  the eastern side of the building. The roof is concealed by a parapet which has a classically styled balustrade that
supports a coping. At the centre edge of the parapet is a shallow-arch pediment. There are four pilasters that
divide the above-awning facade into three bays. All windows are round-arch single-paned sashes with
classically styled moulded surrounds including keystone accents. There is a second shallow-arch pediment
positioned just above the awning line. The boxed-awning is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first
floor facade. The modern ground floor shopfront consists of large glazed windows and a centrally positioned
glazed door.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the contmunity because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape,

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

70 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's
central area.

(d)-Representative of:

70 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
three storey brick and stucco Victorian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Alabama Hotel Reference: C13
72 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Hotel ) Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Inter-War Art Deco
Integrity: The building has been remodelled Construction Date:  ¢1845/¢1940

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

N

through the years, however some
original features remain intact from the
nineteenth and rwentieth century.

3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Alabama Horel is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street and is one of a group of historic commercial
buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The Inter-War Art Deco facade is an
important historic element within the streetscape of the area.

The hotel is located on land that was originally granted to John Colley. By the 1840s, several structures appear
on the allotment. The building at the rear of the property (probably stables) was accessed by a right-of-way that
ran along the eastern side of the hotel. This passage also provided direct access to the Hobart Rivulet. One of
the first licensees of the Alabama Hotel was Samuel Thomas Peck, who occupied the premises in the 1850s and
again in the 1870s and 1880s. The public house originally had the appearance of a wine and spirit warehouse
rather than a hotel. The hotel was connected to the City's sewerage system in 1906; at the time the property was
owned by Mr Walter L Sansom of Murray Street. A new facade was constructed c1928 by the owner at the time
Mr JC Hibbard. The architects for the project were Glaskin and Ricards. There seems to have been some
indecision about the style of the new facade as rwo plans were produced showing rwo proposed styles; one of
classical style and the other plain and hard-edged. It appears that the classically styled facade was adopted,
because in 1940, plans were submitted thar show minor alterations to the facade. A huge 87 square area was
also planned to be added to the hotel at the time encompassing three floors. Eric H Round was the architect for
this substantial project. It is thought that the current Art Deco facade was constructed at this time, even though
this is not depicted in the plans submitted. The hotel has recently undergone further alterations, however the Art
Deco facade has remained largely unaltered.

A two storey brick and rendered hotel dating from the mid-nineteenth century with an Inter-War Art Deco
facade. The roof is concealed by a parapet which has a triangular centre edge. A flagpole protrudes from this
centre section. There are five pilasters emphasised by vertical motifs. These pilasters effectively divide the
facade into five bays. Each bay fearures a double-hung single-paned window to the first and second floors. Two
of the windows to the first floor have been converted to French doors. There is a wide cantilevered boxed-
awning, which has provision for outdoor seating. The ground floor facade is of modern configuration and style
and there are several glazed doors and large windows to this section of the facade.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

{e)-Creative / Technical:

(f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it coniributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streelscape.

(c)-Research Potential; o)-Association:

72 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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to a greater understanding of early seitlement within Hobart's
central area.

(d)-Representative of:

72 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its prominent Inter-War Art Deco facade.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended Lo provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C21
90 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop/Office ) Architectural Style: Vicrorian Georgian/Inter-War Art Deco
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, the Construction Date:  ¢/845/c1920
shopfront is of modern construction. -
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Render Attic: [ Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the sourhern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of largely intact historic

Contribution commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth and early nwentieth centuries. It is a valuable element within a
section of historic streetscape with outstanding character.

History: The shop is located on land that was part of an original grant to Sarah Thomas and Edmund Stillwell. This
allotment was built upon by c1845, and it is believed thar ar least part of the current building thar occupies the
site dates from that time The building is located close to the site of the Waterloo Mill, which was constructed at
great expense by Mr Arnold Fisk in 1817. This mill was superceded in 1823, when a new mill was constructed
in Collins Street. By the 1880s, the conjoined shop was part of Honey Dew House (now 90 & 92 Liverpool
Street), which was a classically styled Victorian Georgian building comprised of two shops. Mr W Valentine,
who ran commercial haircutting rooms, occupied the premises ar this time. The shop was connected to the
Ciry's sewerage system in c1907, and was owned by Mrs SM Mooney of 'Sunbury' Tea Tree. Mrs Mooney
owned the property until at least the early 1930s. The facade, according to photographic evidence, was re-
modelled in the 1920s; and in 1930 a bathroom was added at the rear of the premises, the plumbing work being
passed by HCC officials in April 1931.

Physical A three storey Victorian Georgian conjoined shop with Inter-War Art Deco facade. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  parapet, the outer-edge of which is curvilinear. There is a geometric pattern which frames the second floor
window line. Additional details include moulded and rippled spandrels berween the first and second floor
windows. The first and second floor windows are double-hung single-paned sashes. There is a boxed-awning,
with pressed metal soffit, that is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. The shopfront is
of madern construction. There is a large shop window and glazed door positioned to one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Scction 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded eriteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

90 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement pattern of

central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

90 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, due to its early date
of construction, which may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's central area.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

(d)-Representative of:

The facade of 90 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of the Inter-War Art Deco style applied to a
Victorian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended (o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: (22
92 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office . Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/ Inter-War Arr Deco
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, the Construction Date: ¢I1845/c1920
shopfront is of modern construction. -

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Render Attic: L] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of largely intact historic

Contribution commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. It is a valuable element within a
section of historic streetscape with outstanding character.

History: The shop is located on land that was part of an original grant to Sarah Thomas and Edmund Stillwell. This
allotment was built upon by c1845, and it is believed that at least part of the current building thar occupies the
site dates from that time. The building is located on the site of the Waterloo Mill, which was constructed at
great expense by Mr Arnold Fisk in 1817. This mill was superceded in 1823, when a new mill was constructed
in Collins Street. By the 1880s, the conjoined shop was part of Honey Dew House, which was a classically
styled Victorian Georgian building comprised of two shops (now 90 & 92 Liverpool Street). The shop was
occupied by Miles' Boot Factory at the time. Between 1887-1895, George Smith ran a hattery from the
premises known as The Red Hat. In 1906, the building was connected 1o the City's sewerage system, and Mr
George Smith is shown as the owner. The property continued in the ownership of the Smith family at least until
the 1930s, but by 1955, Mr Ellison Hawker was the owner. Ellison Hawker still occupies the ground floor of the
building. The facade, according to photographic evidence, was re-modelled in the 19205 in a distinctive Art
Deco style.

Physical A three storey Victorian Georgian conjoined shop with Inter-War Art Deco facade. The facade is richly

Description:  decorated with glazed terra cotta blocks (now painted), verticle line and chevron motifs. There is a
concentration of ornamentation on the upper part of the building, and rwo prominent pilasters that emphasize
the facade’s vertical ornamentation. Windows to the first and second floor are sets of three double-hung sashes.
There is a metal awning to the second floor window, and a boxed-awning sheltering the ground floor that is
suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. A pressed metal soffit is a feature of this awning.
The ground floor shop front is of modern construction.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: {e)-Creative / Technical:

92 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement pattern of

central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: ()-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjuncition with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

{c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

92 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, due to its early date
of construction, which may contribute to a greater

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of inlerest that are not currently acknowledued.
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understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's central area.

(d)-Representative of:

The facade of 92 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of the Inter-War Art Deco style applied to a
Victorian Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C23
94 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office ) Architectural Style: Vicrorian Georgian/[nre:j.-War Art Deco
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, the Construction Date: ¢I845/c1935
shop front is of modern construction.
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Render Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial

Contribution buildings that create a largely intact nineteenth/early twentieth century streetscape. 94 Liverpool Street is one
of a small group of nineteenth century buildings with Inter-War facades located in this section of Liverpool
Street. This group adds to the historical diversity of the streetscape.

History: The building is located on land that was once part of a one (approx.) acre grant to George Carr Clark and
George Edwin John Clark. This allotment was built upon by ¢1845, and it is believed that at least part of the
building that currently occupies the site dates from thar time. This structure is also close to the site of the
Waterloo Mill, which was constructed at great expense by Mr Arnold Fisk in 1817. Historical records suggest
that this building was once known as 'Federal House', and from the 1880s to c1905 it was occupied by a
drapery run by Mr WM Williams. Williams advertised rweed costumes and supplied all of Tasmania, including
country districts, Launceston and the NW Coast. The building was connected to the City's sewerage system in
1918. At that time it was owned by the Estate of Mr WF Brownell. Further drainage works were passed by the
City Inspector a year later. From the early 1930s, Ezywalkin Pty Ltd occupied the premises. This business
remained at the site until at least the early 1990s. The Art Deco facade is thought to have been constructed
during the mid to late 19305, however, unfortunately, there are no buildings plans that document its
construction.

Physical A three storey rendered masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with Inter-War Art Deco facade. The

Description:  roof is concealed by a paraper with a stepped section to one end. There are four classically styled pilasters that
divide the facade into three bays. Vertical line motifs are also a feature, and are concentrated in the section
topped by the stepped parapet. Windows are a mixture of single-paned double-hung sashes, and rectangular-
shaped casements. There are a row of painted-over highlights just above the awning line, and a cantilevered
boxed-awning. The ground floor shopfront is of modern construction, and is dominated by large angular shop
windows, and a centrally placed glazed front entrance. There is a pressed metal soffit with Art Deco pattern to
the awning.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded critcria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

94 Liverpool Sireet is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement pattern of

central Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (2)-Association:

94 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended (o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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information, of an archaeological nature, due to its early date
of construction, which may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's central area.

(d)-Representative of;

The facade of 94 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage
significance because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of the Inter-War Art Deco style applied to a
Victorian Georgian commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for Iisting the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C24
96 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly irzracr.f Construction Date:  ¢1860 N
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco . Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of commercial building

Contribution dating from the nineteentl/early twentieth centuries. It is a valuable element within the historic streetscape of
the area, and makes an important contribution to the general historic character of Hobart's central business

district.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. Their land parcel of nearly one acre was subdivided and partially built upon by the mid-1840s. Prior to
this time, however, a flour mill had been established close to this site by Mr Arnold Fisk in 1817. In 1823, the
mill was superceeded by a new flour mill that was constructed in Collins Street. It is thought that there may be
subsurface remains of early structures on this site. It is known that several fires swept through this section of
Liverpool Street in the 18505, so it is likely that most or all of this building was constructed just after the 1858
fire. This structure was once part of a larger commercial building containing eight bays. Six bays had the same
facade design as the adjacent building (formerly 98 Liverpool Street); while two bays, which were position at
either end of the complex (one of which was this building) had slightly different facade details. 96 Liverpool
Street is the only one of these two end sections to survive. Part of this large building complex (all except 96
Liverpool Street) was incorporated into Brownell's Department Store, when the business expanded along
Liverpool Street during the early 1900s.

Physical A three storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical commercial building. There is a parapet surmounted

Description: by a classically styled balustrade, and the facade is single-fronted, with a single pilaster in the shape of a
classical column runs down the western edge of the facade. There is a simple cornice beneath the parapet, and
below this is a double-hung single-paned sash window framed by simple plaster moulding. The is a
concentration of decoration to the first floor window, as it is surmounted by a trangular-shaped pediment, and
framed by two columns. There is a boxed-awning suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor level,
which also has a pressed metal soffit with Art Nouveau pattern. The narrow shopfront is of modern
construction, and comprises large metal-framed windows with a glazed entrance positioned to one side.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

96 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the nature and type of early
settlement within the central area, specifically early industrial
and commercial enterprises.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprelensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

96 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
three storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical
commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Myer Department Store (Liverpool Street Facades - refer also C75, C76, C77 Reference: C25

and C88)
55-59 Murray Sireet Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Retail Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Retail
Feature Type:  Department Store Architectural Style: Victorian Free Classical
Integrity:  The above-awning facade is externally Construction Date: ¢/860

predominantly intact. The ground floor
shopfront is of modern construction.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: []  Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of the Liverpool Street, and is part of the Myer Department store,

Contribution: ~ which consists of an impressive collection of nineteenth and early twentieth century commercial buildings with
intact facades above awning level. The building is also part of a larger group of historic commercial buildings
located in this section of Liverpool Street that individually and collectively imake an impressive contribution to
the streetscape and general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. Their land parcel of nearly one acre was subdivided and partially built upon by the mid-1840s. Prior to
this time, however, a flour mill had been established close to this site by Mr Arnold Fisk in 1817. In 1823, the
mill was superceeded by a new flour mill that was constructed in Collins Street. It is thought thar there may be
subsurface remains of early structures on this site. It is known that several fires swept through this section of
Liverpool Street in the 1850s, so it is likely that most or all of this building was constructed just after the 1858
fire. This structure was once part of a larger commercial building containing eight bays. Six bays had the same
facade design as this building (formerly 98 Liverpool Street); while two bays, which were position at either end
of the complex had slightly different fucade derails. 96 Liverpool Street is the only one of these two end sections
to survive. 98 Liverpool Street was incorporated into Brownell's Department Store during the early 1900s,
when the business expanded along Liverpool Street. The remaining section of the building was demolished in
the 1920s to allow for the construction of a new section with striking Inter-War Art Deco facade. Brownell's
continued to occupy the building until the late 1950s, when the company was taken over by Myers, at which
stage Myers Emporium occupied the premises.

Physical A three storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical commercial building. There is a parapet surmounted

Description: by a classically styled balustrade, and the facade is divided into two bays by two pilasters in the shape of
classical columns. There is a richly decorated cornice directly below the parapet, and spandrels with
Romanesque motifs around the first and second floor windows. First floor windows are rectangular double-
hung sashes, while the second floor windows are double-hung sashes with round-arched top-sashes. There are
also intricately moulded spandrels. The boxed-awning stretches across the entire Liverpool Street frontage of
Myer. The section to 98 Liverpool Street is suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor facade. The
ground floor shop front is also continuous, the section to this building comprises large brass-framed shop
windows.
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(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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commercial sireetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association;

This section of the Liverpool Street Myer facade has the
potential to yield important infermation, of an archaeological
nature, that may contribute to a greater understanding of the
nature and type of early settlement within the central area,
specifically in relation to early industry and commerce.

(d)-Representative of:

This section of the Liverpool Street Myer facade is of histeric
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a three storey stuccoed masonry
Victorian Free Classical commercial building,

PLEASE NOTE
‘This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Myer Department Store (Liverpool Street Facades - refer also C25, C76, C77 Reference: C75

and C88)
55-59 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Department Store Architectural Style: Inter-War Functionalist
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢1920 -
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is locared on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a group of historic commercial

Contribution:  buildings that are part of the Myer Department Store. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
streetscape of the area and re-inforces the historic character of Hobart's central area.

History:  The building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. This one acre parcel was subdivided and substantially built upon by the mid-1840s. In 1836, David
Moses established the London Mart, which was a drapery and general store located in Liverpool Street. The
business was then taken over by White and Brownells, and in 1888 became Brownell Brothers. This business
developed into a department store, and by the early 1900s extended along Liverpool Street. A two storey
Victorian Free Classical commercial building once occupied the site . This building was part of Brownell's at
least from the early 1900s. It is unclear whether this building was simply reconstructed and an additional
storey added, or whether it was demolished and replaced with a completely new building in the 1920s, as there
are no plans for this development the HCC's Plan Archive. A section of the original building is still present, ana
is adjacent to the Inter-War section. The whole of the Brownell's Liverpool Street complex was connected to the
Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by May 1909. By the 1950s, Brownell's had become the largest department
store in Tasmania. In 1950, the ground floor shopfront of the store was re-modelled. Plate glass windows with
terrazzo bases were installed as well as rimless plate-glass doors with side and toplights. Mertal letters backlit
to create silhouettes reading 'Brownells Ltd." were also secured to a metal fascia. Brownell's was taken over by
Myers in the late 1930s, by this time the department store occupied a frontage on Liverpool Street of 140 feer.

Physical A three storey stuccoed brick Inter-War Functionalist commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet,

Description:  which has stepped sections at each end of the facade. These sections are emphasised by vertical piers. Windows
to the first and second floor are simple multi-paned casements. There is a boxed-awning which stretches across
the whole of the Myer frontage, which incorporated three buildings. This is suspended by tension wires
embedded in the first floor. The shopfront is continual, and consists of large plate glass metal-framed windows,
and glazed double-door entrances.

_d 5 -] [T SRR WY
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:
(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

This Liverpool Street section of Myer's Department Store has
the potential to yield important information, of an
archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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understanding of the early retail industry established in
Hobart from the late nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of;

This section of Myer's Liverpool Street facade is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a three storey stuccoed brick Inter-

War Functionalist department store,

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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Name:  Myer Department Store (Liverpool Street Facades - refer also C25, C75, C77 Refetence: C76
and C88)

55-59

Original Use:
Feature Type:

Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape

Contribution:

History:

Physical

Description:

Murray Street Hobart HCC

Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Department Store Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical

The facade above awning level is Construction Date: ¢1908
predominantly intact. The shopfront is
thought to date from 1930,

3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: []  Basement []

The building is one of a group of historic buildings located in Liverpool and Murray Streets that are part of the
Myer Department Store. The facades of most of these buildings are intact, and make a valuable contribution to
the historic physical character of Hobart's central area.

The building is located on land that was originally granited to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. This one acre parcel was subdivided and substantially built upon by the mid-1840s. In 1836, David
Moses established the London Mart, which was a drapery and general store located in Liverpool Street. The
business was then taken over by White and Brownells, and in 1888 became Brownell Brothers. This business
developed into a department store, and by the early 1900s extended along Liverpool Street. The facade of this
building was remodelled in c1908, in the 'modern Renaissance style'. According to The Mercury in 1908, the
facade had decorative plasterwork and silverised ornamentations. As part of this ‘remodelling’, electric lifts
were also installed. The whole of the Brownell's Liverpool Street complex was connected to the City's
reticulated sewerage system by May 1909. By the 1950s, Brownell's had become the largest department store in
Tasmania. In 1950, the ground floor shopfront of the store was re-modelled. Plate glass windows with
terrazzo bases were installed as well as rimless plate-glass doors with side and toplights. Metal lerrers backiit
to create silhouettes reading 'Brownells Lid.' were also secured to a metal fascia. Brownell's was taken over by
Myers in the late 1950s, by this time the department store occupied a frontage on Liverpool Street of 140 feet.

A three storey stuccoed masonry Federation Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by an
elaborately detailed paraper with triangular pediments at either end, a cornice with dentilations, and pillars
topped by sphere-shaped finials located either side of o gable-roofed projecting bays located ar either end of
the facade. There are three panels positioned at the centre of the parapet wall which read: BROWNELLS ESTD
1836 LIMITED. The second floor windows are segmental-arch casements. There are oriels to both the first
and second floors of the two gabled bays. There are simple multi-paned casements to the first floor that are
separated by brick pilasters. The whole facade is divided into five bays by six painted brick pilasters thar are
richly decorated with elaborate mouldings concentrated along the second floor window line. There is a boxed-
awning to the ground floor that is supported by tension wired embedded in the first floor. The ground floor
shopfront dates from 1950s. There are large plate-glass shop windows and doors that are metal framed.

(a)-Historical;

(b)-Rarity:

PLEASE NOTE

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(H)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

This Liverpool Street section of Myer's Department Store has
the potential to yield important information, of an
archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early retail industry (specifically
department stores) established in Hobart from the late
nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of:

This section of Myer's Liverpool Street facade is of historic
heritage significance because of its ability to demonstrate the
principal characteristics of a three storey stuccoed masonry
Federation Free Classical departinent store.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building Reference: C26
110 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Manufacturing and Processing, Food. Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Retail
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Inter-War Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  1854/1924 N
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugared Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint/Stucco Attic: [] Basement W
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is one of a continuous and intact group of

Contribution historic commercial premises dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. This building is
positioned hard against the street-edge, and its richly detailed facade makes a valuable contribution to the
streetscape of the central area.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. Their original allotment of approximately one acre was heavily built upon by the mid 1840s, probably
because of its close proximity 1o the Hobart Rivulet, which ran through the grant. A bakery was established at
this site in 1854 by Mr George Arnold. His son, Mr Newman Arnold, expanded the business at the site, and
constructed a steam operated biscuit factory in 1877. The factory used steam power to drive specialised
machinery that was imported from London. It employed 25 people, and produced a wide variety of cakes and
biscuits. A new frontage onto Liverpool Street, which functioned as Arnold's retail store, was constructed in
1924. The old factory buildings, which were located at the rear of 110 Liverpool Street and along Murray
Street, now form part of the Myer Department store. The whole complex was connected ro the City's reticulated
sewerage system by September 1907. Further drainage works were undertaken in 1923, which appear to be
connected with additions to the building.

Physical A three storey stuccoes and painted brick building with basement in the Inter-War Free Classical style. It has a

Description:  brick parapet with a triangular section positioned at the centre-edge. There are four ornately decorated brick
pilasters that run the length of the facade, these divide the facade into three bays. There are double-hung
windows with six-paned top sashes. The windows to the first floor have round-arched sashes and have lintels of
polychrome bricks, there is also an oriel at the centre of the facade on this level. The sash windows to the first
floor have bracketed hoods, and there are intricate decorations executed in brick and plaster above the top-floor
windowline and between window levels. A boxed-awning suspended by tension wires embedded in the Sirst floor
facade shelters the ground floor shopfront, which is of modern construction. There is an Inter-War period
plaster ceiling to the shop interior.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

110 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the pattern of central
Hobart’s early settlement.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

110 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the community
because it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to
a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

110 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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to a greater understanding of the settlement of early Hobart,
specifically the development and operation of the early baking
industry.

(d)-Representative of:

110 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey (with basement) brick (stucco
and painted) Inter-War Free Classical commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventary

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C27
120 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Retail
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact, The Construction Date: ¢/845 .

awning and ground floor shopfront are
of modern construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is part of an intact group of commercial
Contribution premises dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. This historic structure makes a valuable
contribution to the streetscape of the area, and to the general historic character of Hobart's central area.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. Their original allotment of approximately one acre was heavily built upon by the mid 1840s, probably
because of its close proximity ro the Hobart Rivulet, which ran through the grans. This building is believed to be
the surviving section of a seven shop complex constructed in Liverpool Street at the corner with Murray Street
in the 1840s. The rear of these premises abut a service lane , later called Arnold's Lane, refering to Newman
Arnold who ran a large biscuit/cake-making factory at what is now 110 Liverpool Street. In 1867, a more
ornate and classically inspired facade was constructed over the original and plain Victorian Georgian facade of
120 Liverpool Street. The premises was occupied by George Kerr during the early 1900s. Kerr ran a drapery
business referred to as J Kerr and Sons in a 1906 Postal Directory. By November 1906, the premises was
connected to the reticulated sewerage system. It is interesing to note that Kerr also owned the adjacent shop,
which was occupied by another drapery listed in the directories as Henry and Ferguson Drapers.

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  parapet surmounted by a classically-styled balustrate with coping and triangular pediment located at the centre
edge of the parapet. There is an intricate moulded panel within the traingular section of the pediment with the
dare: 1867 written in plaster. There is a cornice that runs just beneath the parapet and elaborate plaster
mouldings to each of the three window heads. Windows are double-hung single-paned sashes that are
separated by a series of three classicially-styled pilasters. The building incorporated two shops at ground floor
level, these have modern shop-fronts with large windows and glazed entrances. The shops are sheltered bva
boxed-awning supported by suspension wires embedded in the first floor.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria,)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

120 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the early settlement
pattern of Hobart's central area.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

120 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheel is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is nol intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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to a greater understanding of the early settlement of Hobart's
central area, specifically the type amd form of early commerce
and industry.

(d)-Representative of;

120 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey masonry and stucco Victorian
Free Classical commercial premises.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest thal are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C28
134 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: ~ Manufacturing and Processing Plant, Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Trades and crafts (eg blacksmithing,
wheelwrights)
Feature Type: Shop/Office 7 Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity:  Externally predominanily intact. Construction Date:  ¢1845
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []
Streetscape This three storeyed building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and is a prominent element

Contribution within a streetscape composed of primarily two storey buildings. The height, form and intactness of this
historic building make it a landmark element within the streetscape of the immediate area.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to EN Hugo. This 15 perch allotment was built upon
by the 1840s. Bolt's assessment of this site was that part of the structure that currently occupies the site dates
from the 1840s. The premises was subsequently remodelled by Mr FJ Pike in 1880. The shop had been
Jormerly occupied by Mr Webb, who was a butcher, but Pike transformed it into a Boot Factory, adding a new
Jfacade with plate glass windows and a new workshop at the rear. The builder for this project was Mr CC
Giles. Pike moved into the premises in 1880 and continued there until around 1915. He had showrooms on the
ground and first floors, and a boot uppers department on the second floor. The workshops at the rear of the
premises held bootmaking machinery on the ground floor, and the first floor was big enough to accommodate
100 workmen. The building was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by October 1906, Mr Pike
is shown as the owner at this time. Further drainage works were completed in 1927, by which stage Mr AJ Beck

owned the property.

Physical It is a two storey stuccoed masonry Vicrorian Georgian commercial building. The roof which is clad with

Description:  corrugated iron is obscured from view by a simple parapet to the Street-front facade. There is a simple cornice
beneath the parapet, and two double-hung single-paned windows to the first and second floors that are
surrounded by elegantly styled mouldings. All these windows have painted sandstone sills, and there is a
stringcourse between the two levels. A boxed-awning, suspended by tension wires embedded in the first floor
facade, shelters the ground floor shopfront. The shopfront is of tradition styling and configuration. There are
angular shop windows, and a central entrance with glazed door and toplight.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

134 Liverpool Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the early settlement pattern of central

Hobart.

(b)-Rarity: (F)-Community:
134 Liverpool Street has strong meaning for the community
because it contributes to the historic streetscape of the area,
composed of predominantly nineteenth and early twentieth
century commercial buildings.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

134 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early settlement, more

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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specifically early commercial and industrial activities carried
out in the central area.

(d)-Representative of:

134 Liverpool Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey stuccoed masonry Victorian
Georgian industrial/commercial building,

PLEASE NOTE :
‘This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C29
138 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. The Construction Date:  ¢/860
ground floor shopfront is of recent
construction.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paint Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, in a section of Streetscape that is a mixture of
Contribution nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings and later twentieth century structures. The building

makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area.

History: The building stands on land that was originally granted ro TW Rowlands. The allotment of 10 perches is clearly
defined on Sprent's survey of Hobart, however appears 1o be vacant at this time. Bolt believes the building was
constructed in c1860. The premises was connected to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system in 1906, and was
owned ar this time by Mrs Francis Moore, fruiterer. By the late 1930s Casimaty Brothers were the property
owners.

Physical A rwo storey painted brick Victorian Georgian commercial building. It has a hipped roof clad with corrugared
Description:  iron. There are two evenly spaced single-paned double-hing sash windows to the first floor, and a cantilevered

boxed-awning sheltering the ground floor shopfront, with a pressed metal soffit. The shopfront was re-
constructed in 1994 when the premises was occupied by West End Dry Cleaners.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER
(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

(c)-Research Potential:

138 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early settlement of central
Hobari.

(d)-Representative of:

138 Liverool Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey painted brick Victorian Georgian commercial
building.

PLEASE NOTE

( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical;

(F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because

it contributes to the streetscape of the area, which is
comprised of a mixture of nineteenth/early twentieth
century commercial buildings as well as more contemporary
commercial buildings.

(g)-Association:

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly His Majesty's Theatre) Reference: C30
168 Liverpool Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Recreation Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Retail
Feature Type:  Theatre/Shop Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  The interior and exterior of this Construction Date: 1910 o

building were altered during the early
1970s. Metal sheeting was clad over
the first floor facade, and to the
shopfronts on both Liverpool and
Victoria Streets, and there was partial
demolition of some interior features.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Paini/Meral Attic: [J Basement [
Cladding
Streetscape The building is located on the southern side of Liverpool Street, and has frontages on both Liverpool and

Contribution Victoria Streets. It is diagonally opposite the former Odeon Theatre, which was built around the same time.
Although the Liverpool Street facade has been altered, the building still makes a valuable contribution to the
streetscape of the area through its general form and by the fact that its can still be identified as an historic
element. The three-storey building also has landmark qualities because it surrounded by mainly two storey
structures.

History: The building is located on land that was originally granted to Thomas Mason. Mason's one perch and 30 rood
allotment was subdivided by the mid 1840s and built upon. In fact there were several buildings on this site from
the early 1830s, one of which was the office of the Hobart Town Gazette. His Majesty's Theatre was built on
this site in 1910. The theatre officially opened on 23 January 1911, and was one of the largest theatres ever
built in Hobart ar thar time. Its stage was the widest in town, with a curtain drop of 15 metres. It could
accommodate the largest stage scenery then in use in the Commonwealth, and could seat up to 1400 people.

The dress circle spanned the entire auditorium without the use of pillars. The Liverpool Street facade was rich
detailed, and consisted of an elegant arrangement of classical design elements. The building was connected to
the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by April 1911, being owned by His Majesty's Theatre Company at the
time. Over the years the theatre gradually became a full-time picture theatre, but closed down in 1960, and
was converted to a clothing store in the early 1970s. Major internal and external alterations were undertaken
during the early 1970s. Two building applications were submitted to the HCC in 1972 and 1979 respectively.
The metal cladding to the Liverpool Street facade is believed 1o have been installed in 1972. Metal cladding
was applied to the Victoria Street frontage in 1979. Partial demolition of the original interior was undertaken
during this period,

Physical It is a three storey brick Federation Free Classical former theatre. The roof, which is clad with corrugated iron,

Description: s concealed from view by a brick parapet to the Liverpool Street facade. The facade has been clad with metal
sheeting, however the profile of the original parapet is visible from the eastern elevation. There is a
cantilevered awning sheltering a modern shopfront, also clad with metal sheeting. This metal sheeting has also
been applied to the ground and first floors of the Victoria Street frontage. The interior still contains the long
span of the theatre balcony, however the faded sign 'His Majesty's Theatre' located on the rear exterior wall of
the building (Victoria Street frontage) has been recently overpainted.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded eriteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

168 Liverpool Street is of cultural heritage significance

because it demonstrates the growth of

recreation/entertainment industry within Hobart, reflecting the

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficicnt information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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increased standard of living experienced in the early twentieth

century.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This structure makes an important contribution to the
streetscape of the area despite alterations to the facade, and
therefore is important to the community's sense of place.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

168 Liverpool Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature through its built
Jabric and possible subsurface deposits, which may contribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early settlement, as well
as early the entertainment industry, more specifically the
development of theatres/cinemas.

(d)-Representative of:

PLEASE NOTE -
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: The Mercury Building Reference: C68
91-93 Macquarie Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Media Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial/Media
Feature Type:  Newspaper Office Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical/Inter-War Art
) Deco ..
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  1902/1939
Floors: 4 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Render Attic: [1 Basement VI

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is a landmark structure in the streetscape, the

Contribution impact of which is balanced by Hobart Town Hall locared directly across the street.

History:  The Mercury Building is located on land that was originally granted to John Ingle. Ingle was granted a large
parcel of I acre and 10 perches, and constructed a brick house at the corner of Macquarie and Argyle Streets in
1814. The Mercury Newpaper was established by Mr John Davies in 1854, and the office was located in the
same part of Macquarie Street that the present office occupies. In 1902, a new printery and office building was
constructed for The Mercury. This large complex was essentially composed of two connected three-storey
buildings. The building fronting onto Macquarie Street housed the offices, part of the bookbinding department
and the photographic studio. The building behind was occupied by the machine and lithographic departments
on the ground floor, the composing, job printing and linotype departments on the first floor, and a warehouse,
stereotype department and part of the bindery on the third floor. At the completion of the new office there were
over 200 people working for the newspaper. In 1924, a three storey sawtooth-roofed brick and concrete Paper
Store was added to the office. Architects for this project were Walker and Johnston at 130 Collins Street. In
1938, plans were again submitted for the construction of a brick and concrete building. There were no plans
submitted for this addition, it is therefore unclear whether the project was undertaken. In 1939, The Mercury
Office building was substantially remodelled. The Art Deco facade was re-built over the original Mercury office
building and a pair of adjacent conjoined buildings also occupied by the newspaper. Major internal alterations
were undertaken also executed in the Art Deco sryle. The architect for this major project was AT Johnston, from
the same architectural firm that had designed the previous alterations and additions. As the newspaper
prospered, the building continued to be added to. In later years, the building of the former Ford City Motors
garage at 22-24 Argyle Street became part of The Mercury Offices. This Inter-War Art Deco building was
designed by Philp and Wilson Architects in 1938, and was re-modelled in 1992, with new printing presses
installed in 1993.

Physical A four storey masonry rendered Inter-War Art Deco office building. The building has a prominent stepped

Description:  paraper at the centre of which is a flagpole. Strong horizontal and vertical elements are distinctive Sfeatures of
the Art Deco facade. The window shape and placement accentuates the strong verticality of the facade. There
is a centrally placed front entrance to the ground floor sheliered by an awning of Art Deco styling, and a
prominent plinth constructed from blocks of polished granite.
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CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

91-93 Macquarie Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early newspaper industry in
Hobart.

(d)-Representative of:

91-93 Macquarie Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a four storey rendered masonry Inter-War
Art Deco office building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledsed.
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Reference: (67

Name:  Marengo

153 Macquarie Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Business/Residential Present Use:  Business/Residential
Feature Type:  House and Office Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, there Construction Date: ¢/925

is a first floor addition, which protrudes
Just above the parapet.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick Atic: [J Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the corner of Victoria and Macquarie Streets, and is part of a cluster of buildings

Contribution located near this intersection that date from the Inter-War period. All of these buildings are distinctive elements
within the streetscape of the area due to their face brick work with polychromatic details, This particular
building effectively frames the entrance to Victoria Street, and is a valuable element in the streetscape of the

ared.

History: By the early 1830s, the land that Marengo now occupies was part of the immediate land curtilage of the Hotel
Macquarie which was constructed in 1816. The hotel was ser amongst gardens that encompassed a substantial
area of land bounded by Collins and Harrington Streets. By the mid 1840s, the land had been subdivided into a
2 rood 28 perch parcel granted to George Frederick Read. Victoria Street was also pushed through to
Macquarie Street by this time, which resulted in Macquarie Hotel framing the newly formed intersection. As
development intensified in the central area during the early twentieth century, old building currilages were
increasingly subdivided. Land around the Macquarie Hotel was subdivided at this time, which then allowed for
the construction of 'Marengo', Dr EA Roger's residence and consulting rooms. An Inter-War facade was also
added to Macquarie Hotel around this time. Marengo was constructed in c1925, the architectural firm
responsible for the project was Walker and Johnston. The property was connected to the City's reticulated
sewerage system by April 1926. In 1949, internal alterations were made to the ground and first floors. A
penthouse for office accommodation was constructed in 1961 for Dr EA Rogers. Hartley Wilson and Bolr were

the architects.

Physical A two storey face brick Inter-War building, which now functions as offices. There is a brick parapet that

Description:  encircles the building, the line of which is interrupted by triangular and curvilinear pediments. Clinker bricks
are set in diamond shapes beneath these pediments, and there is a plaster tablet to the Macguarie Street facade
with the name: Marengo. There are pilasters located at the facade edge, and at the centre sections of both the
Macquarie and Victoria Streets facades. Moulded plaster work is located above both Macquarie and Victoria
Streets entrances, and there are oriels to both frontages and double-hung windows with multi-paned top-sashes
and rounded heads to the ground floor. There is a flat-roofed brick addition which Sforms a third floor. This
addition is dominated by rows of metal-framed windows with mirrored frames.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

153 Macquarie Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute

PLEASE NOTE =
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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to a greater understanding of Hobart early settlement due to
the fact that it stands on land that was once part of the Hotel
Macquarie estate and is adjacent to that structure.

(d)-Representative of:

153 Maguarie Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey face brick Inter War commercial
building,

PLEASE NOTE )
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Astor Private Hotel Reference: C66
157 Macquarie Street Hobart HCC
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Hotel/Guesthouse Architectural Style: Inter-War
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢1921
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Face Brick ' Attic: [] Basement ¥
Streetscape The Astor Private Hotel is located on the northern side of Macquarie Street, at the intersection with Victoria

Contribution Street. It is one of a cluster of buildings locared either side of this intersection that are constructed of face
brick. This building has a relarively narrow frontage onto Macquarie Street, and a long eastern elevation, that
runs along Victoria Street. It frames the intersection and is a valuable historic element within a largely intact
streetscape composed primarily of early nineteenth and early twentieth cetury buildings.

History: The building is located on land that was once the garden of Macquarie House owned by William Birch. The
garden was subdivided in 1839, and the 18 perch allotment now occupied by Astor Hotel was granted to David |
Dunkley. This land was built upon by the 1850s, occupied by two conjoined houses built for Thomas Johnston,
a wine merchant. These buildings remained intact until their replacement with the Astor Horel in ¢1921, which
derived its name from Astoria, a c1850 sandstone residence located next door at 159 Macquarie Streer. The
Astor was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system by December 1921.

Physical A three storey face brick Inter-War commercial building. There is a brick open screen parapet to the Macquarie

Description:  and Victoria Streets frontage, and the same open screen pattern is a feature of spandrels on the Macquarie |
Street facade. Windows to the Macquarie Street facade are a mixture of casements with coloured highlights and ;
oriels that have stuccoed spandrels; while pairs of double-hung single-paned sash windows are a feature of the [
Victoria Street elevation. The Macquarie Street facade has a centrally placed entrance which also gives access
to the basement, and which is sheltered by a neatly styled original awning suspended by tension wires embedded
in the first floor. Another entry to the Macquarie Street facade provides access to a restaurant. The building
has a prominent ashlar sandstone plinth.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity:; (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
streetscape.

{(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

157 Macquarie Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may coniribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early settlement, due
mainly to the fact that this allotment has been built upon since
the 1850s.

(d)-Representative of;

157 Macquarie Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three strorey face brick Inter-War

PLEASE NOTE ’
This data sheet is intended 10 provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheel is not intended 10 be a comprehensive invemtory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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hotel/guesthouse.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: (63
31-31B Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Conjoined Shops Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly fmact; There Construction Date: c¢{911

is @ modern two storey brick building
adjoining the rear of the structure.

Floors: 2 Roof: Cerrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco Attic: [ Basement [

Streetscape This elegant building is located on the eastern side of Murray Street, just south of the intersection with Collins
Contribution Street. The building makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area, which is primarily composed
of late nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial and ecclesiastical buildings.

History: The land that 31-31B Murray Street occupies was originally granted to William Gee. The seven perch land
parcel was formed and built upon by the early 1830s. There was also a passage created at the southern side of
the allotment by the 1840s, which still exists today. The buiilding that currently occupies the site replaced an
earlier structure, which by the early 1900s housed a boot maker and an estate agent. In c1911, the current
commercial building, which contained three shops, was constructed. It was connected to the City's reticulated
sewerage system by November 1911; at the time the property owner was Mr A S Brownell, who was probably
connected to Brownell Brothers Department Store which was located in Liverpool Street (now Myers). The
building remained part of Mr A S Brownell's estate at least until the 1930s.

Physical A two storey brick and stucco Federation commercial building. The roof is concealed by an elaborate shoulder

Description:  parapet. There is a prominent cornice with dentils that runs beneath the parapet. The cornice curves about an
oriel, which is decorated with plaster wreaths and is the centrepiece of the facade. The oriel is flanked by pairs
of narrow rectangular casement windows with hightlights. The windows to the first floor are contained berween
mwo stringcourses. The three shopfronts to the ground floor have a traditional appearance. They have metal-
framed plate-glass shop windows with glazed highlights and simple timber framed doors set to one side.

|, NAGE 2

HERRY'S

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer t Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

31-31B Murray Street is of heritage significance because it
provides evidence of the distinctive pattern of urban renewal
that occurred within Hobart's central area during the first half
af the twentieth century.

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

31-31B Murray Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of Hobart's early settlement,
specifically in relation to early commercial enterprises.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide suificient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

31-31B Murray Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a two storey stuccoed brick Federation
commnercial building which contains three shops.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged,
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Name:  Club Chambers (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C70, C78, C79, C80) Reference: C62

49-51 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use;  Recreation Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office : Architectural Style: Vicrorian Free Classical .
Integrity:  The first floor of the building is Construction Date; ¢1845

externally predominantly intact,
however the ground floor has been
modified to accommodate the
construction of the arcade.

Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [

Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is one of a group of largely intact commercial
Contribution:  premises dating from the nineteenth/early twentieth centuries. The building is unique, as it is one of a small
number of commercial buildings daring from the 1840s located in this area.

History:  Club Chambers was once part of a much larger office complex that had Broadlands House at its centre.
Broadlands House was originally a residence, but was later used for legal offices, and was demolished in c1972
to allow for the construction of the Hobart Savings Bank. By the early 1900s, the Hobart Club occupied
Broadlands House, and many different legal/financial enterprises occupied Club Chambers, examples of which
include: the North Queensland Insurance Co. Ltd. (fire and marine), Kennedy and Hodgman barristers and
solicitors, and Ernest C Wright, accountant. Club Chambers was owned by the Estate of George Adams (of
Tattersall’s fame) when it was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system in 1907. Futher drainage
works were completed in 1917, during which time the building was owned by the Temperance and General
Insurance Company. The building was subsequently renamed T & G Chambers, and was occupied by the
insurance company until c1938 when a new premises was built for the company at the corner of Collins and
Murray Streets (the T & G Building). Club Chambers had changed ownership by 1938, Mr N Campbell was the
owner. By the early 1940s however, Club Chambers had become part of Charles Davis Pty Ltd's expanding
empire which owned many properties within the central block of the CBD. Although not originally incorporated
into the Cat and Fiddle Arcade, the building was subsequently incorporated into the development; the ground
floor was remodelled to provide an entrance into the arcade from Collins Street.

Physical A two storey stuccoed brick Victorian Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by an

Description:  elegantly detailed parapet surmounted by evenly spaced urn-shaped finials. At the centre-edge of the parapet is
a triangular pediment within which is plaster letrering that reads: Club Chambers. Below this is a cornice that
runs above five evenly spaced double-hung single-paned sash windows that are separated by a series of six
pilasters shaped as classical columns. Above each window is a moulded plaster wreath, and running below the
first floor window is another cornice. Remnants of the original ground floor facade are still visible above the
awning line. Plaster architectraves from ground floor windows/doors are still evident. There is a cantilevered
awning that shelters the ground floor. There are two shops to the ground floor with angular glass shopfronts.
At the centre of the ground floor is an entrance to the Food Court and Cat and Fiddle Arcade. This entrance is
covered by electric-sliding glazed doors.

(=] I
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(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, o a
relatively intact nineteenth/early to mid twentieth century

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive

inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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commnercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

Club Chambers in Collins Street (part of 49-51 Murray Street)
has the potential to yield important information, of an
archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater
understanding of early commercial enterprises established in
Hobart's central area from the mid-nineteenth century.

(d)-Representative of"

Club Chambers (part of 49-51 Murray Street), despite its
alteration, is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two
storey stuccoed brick Victorian Free Classical commercial
building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Cat and Fiddle Square (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C62, C78, C79, Reference: C70
C80)

49-51

Original Use:
Feature Type:
Integrity:

Floors:

Streetscape
Contribution

History:

Physical
Description:

PLEASE NOTE

Murray Street Hobart HCC
Recreation Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Recreation Square 7 Architectural Style: Modernist .
The square remained in intact for Construction Date: 1962

nearly 30 years. In 1987, a roof was
constructed over the square, and
refurbishment was undertaken in 1994
which led to the removal of the
fountain, conncentric paving, seating
and plantings.

n/a Roof: Timber/glass Walls:  Various Attic: [] Basement [J

Cat and Fiddle Square is located ar the centre of Cat and Fiddle Arcade, and is surrounded by three major
commercial frontages: Fitzgeralds, Myers and Target. It is a designed urban space of the Modernist era that
has become an important focal point for Hobart and its citizens since its construction.

During the nineteenth century the area now covered by the Cat and Fiddle Arcade was the focus for a wide
range of industrial, commercial and social activities. The Hobart Rivulet ran through this area, which was
densely occupied by several inns and taverns, shipbuilders, timber and flour mills. The name ‘Car and Fiddle'
is derived from the Cat and Fiddle Inn, which was established in 1818 and operated until 1823. The Inn stood
on the banks of the rivulet, on a site close to the present Car and Fiddle Square.

The idea for an arcade was first conceived in 1900 by Charles Davis, when he purchased Cleburne House
located in Murray Street. Davis envisaged a shopping arcade extending from Cleburne House to his other
property located on the corner of Elizabeth Street and Elizabeth Lane (otherwise known as Cart and Fiddle
Alley), which his business had occupied since 1862. Cat and Fiddle Square was designed to be the focal point of
an expansive pedestrian arcade that linked every big store located within the city’s main commercial block
bounded by Elizabeth, Collins, Murray and Liverpool Streets. In 1962, when the arcade was officially opened,
the major stores that were linked included: Charles Davis Lid, Edments, Coles, Myers, Fitzgeralds and
Medhursts. In addition, there were 60 small shops located within the arcade. The square was designed by the
Hobart office of Philp, Lighton, Floyd and Beartie. It was originally open-air, and had a curved masonry wall
at the first floor level ar the southern end. This wall was constructed of split grey concrete bricks, intended to
provide a night-sky background to the animated figures that brought the nursery rhyme ‘Hi Diddle Diddle’ to
life on the hour. There was also a clock located on this feature wall, and metal lettering reading ‘Cat and
Fiddle Arcade’. At the time, it was the only animated mural of its kind in Australia, and one of only a few in the
world.

The square was originally planned as a "quiet haven in the centre of a bustling city" and as "a resting and
meeting place for visitors and shoppers” . An essential feature was a large shallow (but wide) circular
fountain. The fountain was located under the feature wall, and was of concrete construction, lined with glass
mosaic tiles. There were eight sets of three sprays in the outer rim of the fountain bowl, and a centre group of
sprays that formed a cone of water up to approximately 3.5 metres high, depending on the water pressure. The
fountain (as well as the animated mural) was illuminated at night. Twelve lights were arranged 10 give a
sequence of shades in the same colours as a rainbow.

The circular motif of the fountain was carried through to other elements, including the concentric circular
patterns in the paving surrounding the fountain, and the circular arrangement of the heavily polished timber
seats and planters. A garden was also locared within the square, several large trees grew in the space, as well
as various shrubs that were replaced in Spring with blooming flowers. Cat and Fiddle Square was popular with
locals and tourists from an early time. It was used by people of all ages. By the late 1960s the square was
proclaimed a success by The Mercury, which boldly exclaimed that "Cat and Fiddle Square without its clock
would be like London without Big Ben". The clock had become one of the best known and best loved landmarks
in Hobart. It was estimated that thousands of tourists crowded the tiny square to watch the animated nursery
rhyme.

The square had also become widely used by many community groups for displays, art exhibitions, and
Christmas celebrations.

The square has been recently refurbished. Original fabric that survives includes the evenly spaced concrete
columns that line the perimeter of the space, the exterior linings of shop frontages, including that of Fitzgeralds
and Myers (formerly Charles Davis Pty Ltd), the feature wall (now painted grey) with animated figures and
clock, and the metal lettering reading ‘Car and Fiddle Arcade’ has been retained. There is also a plague

This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other herituge values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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located on one column that commemorates the official opening of the square by Mayor of Hobart, Alderman
Osborne.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Cat and Fiddle Square is of heritage significance because it The animated mural, which is a focal point of Cat and
has the ability to illustrate the evolution of the retail industry  Fiddle Square, is of heritage significance because of its
in Hobart; from the establishment of small-scale retail outlets unique and complex design and construction, the

to the subsequent development of large-scale, expansive controlling element of which is a complicated electro-
shopping arcades, complete with designed urban space to mechanical system controlled by a master clock.
provide entertainment, and relaxation for the shopping public.

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

Cat and Fiddle Square is of heritage significance because itis  Cat and Fiddle Square is of heritage significance because it

a rare example of its type. It is one of only a few urban spaces has strong meaning for the local community, who have used

dating from the Modernist period to retain a largely intact the space as a meeting place, as well as a place of

animated mural. relaxation and entertainment for over forty years.
Successive generations of children and adults alike have
been particularly drawn to, and derived great enjoyment out
of, the animated mural that is the focus of the square.

{c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

Cat and Fiddle Square is of heritage significance because it
has the potential to yield important information, of an
archaeological nature, which may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early settlement of Hobart, more
specifically the nature of early settlement in close proximity to
the Hobart Rivulet.

(d)-Representative of:

Cat and Fiddle Square is of heritage significance because it is
a representative example (despite recent alterations) of a
designed Modernist urban space, which was created by way of
an agreement between private enterprise and local government.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place, The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commerical Building (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C62, C70, C79, Reference: C78

C80)
49-51 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commgn_cial
Feature Type:  Shop Architectural Style: Inrer-War
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: '
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: []  Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the northern side of Collins Street, and is one of a largely intact group of commercial

Contribution:  buildings dating from the nineteenth/early to mid rwentieth centuries. The building is an important element
within the historic streeiscape.

History:  This building is located on land that was once part of a 3 rood and 16 perch allotment originally granted to
Robert Pitcairn and Thomas Yardley Lowes. This allotment was subdivided and heavily built upon by the mid-
1840s, which is not suprising as it would have been prime real estate at the time, with frontages onto Collins
and Murray Streets, as well as providing a wide access to the Rivuler. In the 1940s, this property and Club
Chambers were acquired by Charles Davis Pty Ltd, a company which owned many of the buildings within the
block by this time. After the completion of Cat and Fiddle Arcade in 1962, the property was incorporated into
this development, and became parr of 49-51 Murray Street.

Physical A three storey stuccoed masonry Inter-War commercial building. It has a simply styled parapet that conceals

Description:  the roof. There is a semi-circular motif positoned at the centre of the parapet. Below this moulding is a cornice
with dentilations that has a very distinctive profile. There are rows of narrow rectangular casement windows to
the first and second floors. Some casements to the second floor have louvered panes. A boxed-awning shelters
the ground floor shopfront, which is of modern construction. It consists of large shop windows with tiled
surrounds and a central entrance with a glazed door.

DICKEYSMITH
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenthi/early to mid twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

This building in Collins Street (part of 49-51 Murray Street) is
of historic heritage significance because of its ability to
demonstrate the principal characteristics of a three storey
stuccoed masonry Inter-War commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.




Central Area Heritage Review Hobart City Council GPO Box 503 Hobart 7001

Name:  Commerical Building (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C62, C70, C78, Reference: (79

C80)
49-51 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Shop ’ Architectural Style: Federation Anglo-Dutch
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. This Construction Date: ¢/916

building was incorporared into the Cat
and Fiddle Arcade in 1962, and
underwent major internal alterations
during this development.

Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement []

Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Collins Street, and is one of a largely intact group of commercial

Contribution buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. It is also one of a pair of buildings located
in Murray Street that are part of the Cat and Fiddle Arcade. Despite its alteration, the building is a valuable
element within the streetscape.

History: Cleburne House is located on land that was once part of a 3 rood and 16 perch allotment originally granted to
Robert Pitcairn and Thomas Yardley Lowes. This allotment was subdivided and heavily built upon by the mid-
1840s, which is not suprising as it would have been prime real estate at the time, with frontages onto Collins
and Murray Street, as well as providing a wide access to the Rivulet. The building that is adjacent to Cleburne
House (formerly 49 Murray Street) is thought to have been constructed by Charles Davis Lid in ¢1916. The
building does not appear on the Metropolitan Drainage Board Plans 1905-1910, but, according o the HCC
House Connection Files, was connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system in 1916, at the time being
owned by Charles Davis Ltd. In the early 1960s, the building was incorporated into the Cat and Fiddle Arcade
development, which was offically opened in 1962. It underwent major internal alterations during its
incorporation into the arcade.

Physical A three storey stuccoed masonry Federation Anglo-Dutch commercial building. It has an intricately modelled

Description:  facade. The roof is concealed by a curvilinear parapet which is flanked on either side by pilasters topped by
decorative scroll motifs, and Art Nouveau inspired panels. There is an oriel to the first and second floors that
are also decorated with narrow cornices and vertical moulded plaster strips. The oriel windows and the
windows located either side are timber framed narrow rectangular casements. The ground floor contains both a
shop, with metal-framed shop windows, tiled surrounds and a side entrance, as well as access to both levels of
the arcade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)
(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

49-51 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey stuccoed masonry Federation
Anglo-Dutch commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Cleburne House (Cat and Fiddle Arcade - refer also C62, C70, C78, C79) Reference: C80

49-51 Murray Street Hobart
Original Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/Federation Free
Classical
Integrity: The ground floor of the building now Construction Date:  [840/c1913
Sorms the entrance to Car and Fiddle
Arcade, the second and first floor
facade was re-constructed c1910.
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [J
Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Collins Street, and is one of a largely intact group of commercial

Contribution buildings dating from the nineteenth and early rwentieth centuries. Despite its alteration, the building is a
valuable element within the streetscape, and is somewhat of a focus of the street given that it provides the major
access to Cat and Fiddle Arcade.

History: Cleburne House is located on land that was once part of a 3 rood and 16 perch allotment originally granted ro
Robert Pitcairn and Thomas Yardley Lowes. This allotment was subdivided and heavily built upon by the mid-
1840s, which is not suprising as it would have been prime real estate ar the time, with frontages onto Collins
and Murray Streets, as well as providing a wide access to the Rivulet. Cleburne House was constructed in 1840
for Richard Cleburne. This large three storey store and (presumably) residence was a finely detailed building
constructed of ashlar sandstone. In 1900, Charles Davis, whose properous business extended from Elizabeth
Street to Murray Street by this time, purchased Cleburne House. The building was damaged by fire shortly
before the start of the First World War, and it was subsequently remodelled. During this remodelling a 6 foot
wide arcade was incorporated into the re-development of the property, with eventual plans to push the arcade
through to Elizabeth Street. Charles Davis envisaged a shopping arcade extending from Cleburne House to his
other property located on the corner of Elizabeth Street and Elizabeth Lane (otherwise known as Cat and Fiddle
Alley), which his business had occupied since 1862. In 1962, the Car and Fiddle Arcade was officially opened,
Cleburne House straddled the Murray Street entrance. Considered a significant engineering achievement of the
time, Cleburne House's ground floor was removed to form the entrance to the arcade, and the first and second
floors of the building were propped up by piers.

Physical A three storey stuccoed masonry Victorian Georgian commercial building with Federation Free Classical

Description:  facade. The roof is concealed by a simple parapet. At the centre of the parapet wall is a moulded plaster tablet
with the word: Cleburne. Directly above this panel, surmounting the parapet wall, is a stylised rectangular
motif of geometric styling. Windows to the first and second floors are elegant multi-paned casements. There are
nwo sets of casements on each floor. Windows to the second floor are topped by a cornice, and three pilasters
in the form of classical columns separate the windows, as do elegantly detailed spandrels with geometric plaster
panels similar to the panel on the paraper. There is a cantilevered awning sheltering the ground floor, which is
now the main entrance to Car and Fiddle Arcade.

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical; (e)-Creative / Technical:

49-51 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the evolution of the retail
industry in central Hobart. Originally a large Victorian
Georgian store, it was reconstructed in the early twentieth
century and later converted to become part of a Post-War
Shopping Arcade.

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(b)-Rarity: (B-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association;

49-51 Murray Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the early retail industry of
central Hobart,

(d)-Representative of:

49-51 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a Federation Free Classical commercial
building by way of its facade which is mostly intact,

PLEASE NOTE
This data sheet is intended 1o provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comnprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Myer Department Store (Murray Street Facade - also refer C25, C75, C76  Reference: C77

and C88)
55-59 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Department Store : Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢1905
Floors: 3 Root: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco Attic: [] Basement [
Streetscape The building is located on the western side of Murray Street, and is part of an intact streetscape of historic

Contribution:  commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, This building is a dominant
element within the streetscape of the area, and possesses landmark qualities.

History:  This building is located on land that was originally granted to George Carr Clark and George Edwin John
Clark. The site was part of a one acre parcel, and was built upon by the 1840s. The buildings appear to date
from early twentieth century, as they were not constructed by the late 1890s, however appear on a Metropoliran
Drainage Plan Detailed Sheer of c1905. The buildings were connected to the City's reticulated sewerage system
by 1906. In that year several sections of the complex were occupied by Johnston and Miller, importers of
drapery, clothing, carpets, wall paper and fancy art furnishings. Day's Furniture arcade occupied another
section, as well as Mawdesley's drapers, and HI Harvey, Tailor. Johnson and Miller extended into all the
conjoined shops over the years, and owned and occupied this large commercial complex up until the late 1950s,
at which time the property was incorporated into the Myer Emporium (later Myer Department Store).

Physical A three storey stuccoed brick Federation Free Classical commercial building. The roof line is concealed bya

Description:  paraper surmounted by a classically styled balustrade interrupted by evenly spaced pediments and pillars toppea
by sphere-shaped finials. The facade is divided into six bays by a series of seven pilasters. The second floor
windows are round-arched sashes with decorative moulding and accents to the window heads. The first floor
windows are standard rectanular double-hung sashes with moulding and accents to the window heads. There
are also decorative cornices and stuccoed stringcourses to the first and second floor facade. A boxed-awning
runs the length of the facade, and is suspended by several tension wires embedded in the first floor. The
shopfront to the ground floor is glazed, including all entrances.

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:
55-59 Murray Street has strong meaning for the community
because it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours,
to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: {g)-Association:

55-59 Murray Street has the potential to yield important
information, of an archaeological nature, that may contribute
to a greater understanding of the settlement of early Hobart,
specifically the development and operation of the early retail
industry.

PLEASE NOTE ;
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

55-59 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance
because of its ability to demonstrate the principal
characteristics of a three storey stuccoed brick Federation
Free Classical commercial complex.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Myer Department Store (Murray Street Facades - refer also C25, C75, C76, Reference: C88

C77)
55-59 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shop/Office : Architectural Style: Federation Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact, Construction Date: ¢/1905
modern glazed ground floor shopfronts
and awning.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Masonry/Stucco Attic; L] Basement [J

Streetscape The building is located on the western side of Murray Street, and is part of an intact streetscape of historic

Contribution:  commercial buildings dating from the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. This building is part of the Myer
property, and is a significant element within this historic streetscape of the area.

History: The building was constructed in c1905 over the Hobart Rivuler. By 1906 the building was occupied by Johnston
and Miller, importers of drapery, clothing, carpets, wall papers and fancy art furnishings. The building
remained part of the Johnston and Miller property up until the 1950s, at which time the building was acquired
by the Myer Emporium (later Myer Department Store).

Physical A two storey stuccoed masonry Federation Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by a

Description:  parapet which is stepped at the edges and rises to a triangle at the centre. A richly decorated cornice runs
underneath the parapet and above first floor window height. There are moulded cartouches above each
window. Four pilasters, run between the cornice and awning, and divide the facade into three bays. There are
two narrow bays at the edges with long and narrow round-head casements. The centre bay is occupied by a
large round-arched window composed of three casements with mudti-paned top sashes. There is a cantilevered
boxed-awning which shelters the ground floor. There are two shops ta the ground floor, both have modern
glazed shopfronts.

y | ] '
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER B ( Refer to Scction 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

{(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

(b)-Rarity: (D)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.,

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

This place has the potential to yield important information of
an archaeological nature due to the fact that the structure was
built over a section of the Hobart Rivulet, and also that there
have been several bridges built at this junction.

(d)-Representative of:

The former Johnston and Miller building which is part of 55-
59 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance because of
its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a two
storey stuccoed masonry Federation Free Classical

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and Justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE .
‘This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Union House (formerly Duke of Clarence Hotel - refer also C36 - 135 Reference: C35
Liverpool Street & C84 - 131-133 Liverpool Street)
67-69 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Shops/Offices ' Architectural Style: Victorian Georgian/intei-War
Integrity:  This ¢1845 building was modified in in Construction Date:  ¢/845/c1925
the 19205, a new facade was
constructed.
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls: Masonry/Stucco Attic: ] Basement []
Streetscape Union House is located on the eastern side of Murray Street ar the intersection with Liverpool Street. It

Contribution:  effectively frames the NE corner of this busy intersection. The building is one of a group of mostly intact
nineteenth/early twentieth century commercial buildings located in this part of Murray and Liverpool Streets,
and makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area.

History: This building appears to have been half completed when James Sprent conducted his survey of Hobart Town
1841-1845. For, according to Sprent’s survey, a structure was located ar the corner of Liverpool Street on land
granted to John Walford Simons. Interestingly, the Duke of Clarence Inn was first licensed in 1844, its publican
was one Bernard Walford. The inn was used as a polling booth on election days, and had excellent stabling ar
the rear. Robertson claims that an inn existed on the site as early as 1832. This may have been the King
George, that, according to Bryce, operared on this site from 1825 1o 1843. According to the Assessment Rolls,
John Trowbridge operated the 'tavern’ from 1857 to 1867. John Davidson was the owner from 1872 to 1901,
There were two shops located in another section of the building (fronting onto Liverpool Street including 135
and 131-133 Liverpool Street). J. Okines was the occupant of one shop from 1867 to 1880, and expanded his
business into the other shop in 1889. In 1901, these rwo shops were owned by A.S. Brownell; and by 1910,
Brownell had acquired the entire building. Union House was modified both inside and out in c1924. A facade
was erected and parapet wall built over the western end of the building between 1924 and 1925; and the
original first floor double-hung 12-paned sash windows with sandstone lintels and sills were replaced with
timber-framed casements. This work was completed when Mr Mayne owned the building. The premises was
Jirst connected to the City's reticulared sewerage system by March of 1906. Plumbing works were later
completed in 1925, 1945, 1982 and 1991.

Physical A two storey Victorian Georgrian commercial building with Inter-War facade of brick contruction with stucco

Description:  finish. The hipped roof clad with corrugated iron is partially obscured from view by a parapet with triangular
pediments to the Murray and Liverpool Streets frontages. The pediment to Liverpool Street carries the date:
1925; while the words: Union House, are written in the Murray Street pediment. There is a prominent cornice
that runs the length of the Murray and Liverpool Streets facade, below this is a row of first floor windows that
are a mix of rectangular casements and double-hung sashes. There is a cantilevered box-awning that shelters a
ground floor divided into two shops with modern shopfronts, including large shop windows and glazed entries.

— 2 :
CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER ' ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

4

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical:

Union House is of historic heritage significance because of its
ability to demonstrate the early settlement pattern of central

Hobart.
(b)-Rarity: (f)-Community:

Union House has strong meaning for the community
PLEASE NOTE g

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest thal are not currently acknowledged.
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because it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours,
to a relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
commercial streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential; (g)-Association:

Union House has the potential to yield important information,
of an archaeological nature, that may contribute to a greater
understanding of the early settlement of Hobart, due to its long
timeuse as a public house and later commercial premises.

(d)-Representative of:

PLEASE NOTE .
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name: Commercial Building Reference: C37
71 Murray Street Hobart HCC
Onglnal Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial Present Use: Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type: Warehouse/Office Architectural Style: Federation
Integrity:  Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date:  ¢/900
Floors: 3 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Face Brick ' Attic: [ Basement
Streetscape The building is located on the eastern side of Murray Street, and is positioned between a nineteenth century
Contribution:  commercial building on its south side, and a late twentieth century commercial complex on the northern side. It
makes a valuable contribution to the streetscape of the area, which is mostly comprised of nineteenth/early
twentieth century commercial buildings.
History: This former warehouse is located on land that was originally granted to Anthony Smith Denne. This original
land parcel of 1 rood 11 perches was partially built upon by the mid-1840s, however the site now occupied by
71 Murray Street was not built upon by this time. The warehouse was constructed in ¢1900, and was connected
to the Ciry's reticulated sewerage system by June 1906. Mr WF Brownell was the owner at the time. By the late
1920s, the building was owned by Messrs D and W Murray. In 1927, a third storey was added to the building
and a section was added to the rear. The architect for the project was Mr Frank Heyward from the Launceston-
based architectural firm of A. North, Ricards and Heyward. Further drainage works were completed with the
installation of toilets in the basement and ground floor levels. By the early 1940s, the building was listed as
being owned by the Minister for Lands and Works.
Physical A three storey face brick Federation commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet, the line of which
Description: s interrupted by a series of pilasters. There are painted feature bricks to the paraper, and below this are pairs

CRITERIA FORE

(a)-Historical:

(b)-Rarity:

of single rectangular casement windows. The second floor is defined by prominent painted plaster cornices and
triangular pediments set against face bricks. Windows are a mixture of smail and large round-arch casements
separated by pilasters. The ground floor shopfront is symmetrical. There is a large round-arch central entry
flanked by large round-arch casements. A prominent cornice is located in this section, as well as brick pilasters
and narrow bands of plaster moulding to the round-arch window heads. The building rests on a sandstone block
base.

NTRY II&VREGISTER ( Refer to Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(e)-Creative / Technical:

(F)-Community:

This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
streetscape that comprises nineteenth/early twentieth
century commercial structures as well as some Post-
Modern commercial complexes.

(c)-Research Potential: g)-Association:

(d)-Representative of:

71 Murray Street is of historic heritage significance because of
its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
three storey face brick Federation commercial building.

PLEASE NOTE

This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 10 be a comprehensive
inventory of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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Name:  Commercial Building (formerly Victoria Hall) Reference: C65
6 Victoria Street Hobart HCC
Original Use:  Community, Services Present Use:  Trade and Exchange, Commercial
Feature Type:  Hall Architectural Style: Victorian Free Classical
Integrity: Externally predominantly intact. Construction Date: ¢1890 h
Floors: 2 Roof: Corrugated Iron Walls:  Brick/Stucco . Attic: [] Basement []
Streetscape The buiilding is located on the western side of Victoria Street, and is positioned hard against the street-edge. It

Contribution is flanked by a carpark and the rear of Astor Hotel. The building makes a valuable contribution to the
streetscape, which is largely composed of nineteenth and early twentieth century commercial buildings.

History:  The building is located on land that was once the garden of Macquarie House owned by William Birch. The
garden was subdivided in 1839, and the 17.5 perch allotment now occupied by Victoria Hall was granted to
Thomas Johnson. The hall was built 1890, and was connected to the Ciry reticulated sewerage system by
1908. At the time it was owned by Mr AT Smallhorn, who was a resident of Star Street. In the early 1900s, the
hall was the meeting place for the Hobart Wharf Labourers’ Union. By lare 1930s, the Motor Yacht Club of
Tasmania occupied the premises. Plans were submitted to the HCC for internal alterations in 1939. In 1950,
plans were again submirted for alterations to some internal walls, doors and the kitchen. The major addition
was that of a large bar area to the ground floor. The architect for this work was Eric H Round. The MYCT
occupied the premises until the late 1970s, when the Hobart RSL Club took over and remained at the site until
the early 1990s. In 1970, minor alterations were made to the kitchen layout, and again in 1977 when the
Hobart RSL Club occupied the site. More recent internal alterations were undertaken in 1994 and 1997, when
the building was occupied by ATSIC Tasmania and later the Sports Aboriginal Corp of Tasmania.

Physical A two storey brick and stucco Victorian Free Classical commercial building. The roof is concealed by a parapet

Description:  surmounted by a classically stvled baulstrade and a triangular pediment positioned at the centre. At the centre
of the pediment is a decorative plaster moulding depicting the earth surrrounded by a wreath motif and a
banner. Under the pediment is a prominent cornice which runs the length of the facade, and which intersects
with five classically styled pilasters. Windows are double-hung sashes with round heads surrounded by elegant
moulding. This treatment is repeated on one front entrance, while there is a triangular pediment over the main
entrance. There is a long and narrow round-head sash window to the northern elevation, and the remains of
some old painted signage on this face brick exterior wall.

Wi

CRITERIA FOR ENTRY IN REGISTER  ( Refer o Section 16 of the HCH Act for the expanded criteria.)

(a)-Historical: (e)-Creative / Technical;

(b)-Rarity: (£)-Community:
This place has strong meaning for the community because
it contributes, in conjunction with its neighbours, to a
relatively intact nineteenth/early twentieth century
Streetscape.

(c)-Research Potential: (g)-Association:

6 Victorian Street is of heritage significance because of its
association with several social and sports clubs, such as the
Motor Yacht Club of Tasmania and the RSL Club. It has
been a focus for sacial activity for more than one hundred
years.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended 1o be a comprehensive inventory
of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.
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(d)-Representative of:

6 Victorian Street is of historic heritage significance because
of its ability to demonstrate the principal characteristics of a
two storey Victorian Free Classical hall.

PLEASE NOTE :
This data sheet is intended to provide sufficient information and justification for listing the place. The data sheet is not intended to be a comprehensive inventory

of the heritage values of the place, there may be other heritage values of interest that are not currently acknowledged.






